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Net Sales and Revenues (MM)

2013 2014 2015

$37,795 $36,067 $28,863

Shareholder Value Added* (SVA)  (MM) 

2013 2014 2015

$3,390 $2,694 $774

About the cover:
“Feet on the Ground” refers to John Deere’s drive for operational excellence and 
distinctive levels of quality in all products, including the new 9620RX 4-track 
tractor shown. “Eyes on the Horizon” means looking ahead and making the investments 
necessary to help meet the world’s growing need for food, shelter, and infrastructure.

Dividends Declared (U.S. dollars per share)

Worldwide net sales and 
revenues decreased 20% in 
2015 vs. 2014 mainly due 
to lower equipment sales. 
Financial Services revenues 
rose to $2.59 billion.

use of assets and the skillful 
execution of business plans, 
yielded another year of positive 
SVA performance. SVA represents 

charge for capital.

Deere has boosted its quarterly dividend rate 12 times 
since 2004, to the current level of 60 cents per share. 
Over this time, the company returned roughly 65% 

through dividends and net share repurchases.

2013

$1.99

Net Income* (MM)

2013 2014 2015

$3,537 $3,162 $1,940

* Net income attributable to Deere & Company.

Net income was down 
39% to $1.94 billion 
but still represented 
the sixth-highest total 
in company history. 

2015

$2.40

2014

$2.22

Capital Expenditures + Research & Development (MM)

Combined R&D expense and capital expenditures totaled 
$2.1 billion, demonstrating Deere’s commitment to advanced 

capacity. The lower level of capital spending follows several 
years of heavy investment in global production capacity 
and cleaner-burning engines. 

R&D Spending

2013 2014 2015

$2,609 $2,456 $2,080

$1,425

$655 Capital Expenditures

$1,477

$1,132

$1,452

$1,004

2015 IN REVIEW
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John Deere in 2015 demonstrated its ability to deliver sound 
performance in the midst of a severe downturn in the global 
agricultural sector. Our results, though well below levels of 2014 
and other recent years, reflected the skillful execution of our 
business plans and our success controlling costs and asset levels. 
As a result, the company was able to post solid profits in a 
challenging environment while continuing to lay the groundwork 
for expanding our customer base in the future. 

For the fiscal year, Deere reported income of $1.94 billion on net 
sales and revenues of $28.9 billion. This represented a 39 percent 
decline in earnings and 22 percent lower net sales. Earnings per 
share were down less than the decline in earnings, by 33 percent, 
reflecting the impact of fewer shares outstanding due to 
continued share repurchases. 

The year’s results produced healthy levels of economic profit, or 
Shareholder Valued Added* (SVA), meaning that operating profit 
stayed above the cost of capital. SVA is the primary measure 
used in managing the company and making investment decisions. 
Since 2004, the company has generated economic profit 
totaling almost $20 billion. 

SVA was $774 million while consolidated cash flow from 
operations totaled $3.74 billion. In addition to funding important 
projects, these dollars helped us pay a record amount in 
dividends to our investors and continue with an aggressive share- 
repurchase program. Deere has increased the quarterly dividend 
rate more than five-fold since 2004 and reduced the number  
of shares outstanding by more than one-third.

In addition, the company maintained its strong financial 
condition. At year-end, Deere’s equipment operations carried 
nearly $3 billion of cash with relatively little debt. Our financial 
services operation remained conservatively capitalized and 
continued to benefit from outstanding credit quality. 

BROAD LINEUP MAKING IMPACT
Though its profits were lower, the Agriculture and Turf (A&T) 
division remained solidly profitable, with an operating margin  
of 8 percent and return on operating assets of 16 percent.  

Weathering Challenging Conditions, 
Deere Achieves Solid Results

* SVA and OROA, referred to throughout this report, are non-GAAP financial measures. See page 15 for details. 

The 944K hybrid wheel loader advances Deere’s lineup of production-class  
machines. Its 536-horsepower engine with hybrid-electric drive differentiates  
the 944K, helping deliver up to 40 percent fuel savings compared with  
conventional drivetrains.  

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Introduction of new M-Series tracked and L-Series wheeled forestry machines 
(843L feller buncher with 848L skidder in background) capped Deere’s  
largest new-product investment in its forestry operations in recent years.

These results were achieved in spite of a sharp decline in the sale 
of some of our most profitable models of equipment. During the 
year, Deere’s largest division brought important products to 
market and continued to broaden its customer base. The division 
also benefited from growth in the sale of certain models of  
small tractors and turf equipment. 

Demand for products from the Construction and Forestry (C&F) 
division weakened during the year, resulting in lower sales and 
earnings. Still, C&F had a company-leading operating margin of 
nearly 9 percent. Further, the division introduced additional 
models of equipment for large contractors and completed the 
first full year of operation at its new factories in Brazil. 

Financial Services had record profits while financing the purchase 
of roughly half of the new equipment sold by Deere during the year. 

Net income climbed to $633 million with the average loan 
portfolio edging higher. The provision for credit losses equaled  
a little more than a dollar for each $1,000 of portfolio value,  
a sign of strong credit quality. 

CREATING A DURABLE BUSINESS MODEL
In relation to the farm economy’s robust years earlier in the 
decade, the current downturn has been quite dramatic.  
Since peaking in 2013, industry sales of large agricultural 
equipment in the United States have fallen more than  
60 percent. Deere’s total equipment sales have declined more 
than 25 percent from their high. Last year’s sales decline  
was the company’s largest in percentage terms since the 1930s 
and the largest-ever in dollars. 

Even so, Deere reported the sixth-highest level of equipment 
sales and earnings in its history. This kind of performance 
highlights the continuing success of our efforts to create  
a more durable business model and cultivate a wider range of 
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Designed primarily for paddy-rice fields, the new 3036E tractor supports  
Deere’s growth plans in Southeast Asia. The machine is lightweight, fuel-efficient, 
and easy to operate, all keys to winning market share in the region. 

revenue sources. In 2015, we reduced selling, administrative,  
and general costs by $400 million and held the line on research 
and development expense. We also did a good job managing 
receivables and inventories, especially in the agriculture and turf 
operations. In addition, our performance showed the value  
of having a well-rounded business lineup, which goes beyond 
large tractors and combines. Company results were supported  
by the sale of smaller tractors, hay and forage equipment, 
commercial worksite products, turf equipment, and service parts. 

GLOBAL TRENDS GUIDING PLANS
Longer term, our confidence in Deere’s future remains 
undiminished. While farm cycles come and go, world demand  
for grain and oilseeds has proved to be remarkably consistent, 
increasing in all but two of the last 40 years and more than 
doubling over the period. At the same time, trends such as 
increased urbanization point to continuing growth in the need  
for shelter and infrastructure. 

These favorable prospects lie at the heart of our growth plans 
and our belief that Deere’s businesses will benefit from demand 
for productive equipment and advanced services well into the 
future. Given this positive long-term outlook, there is no reason 

a slowdown in the farm economy – something we’ve weathered 
and overcome many times in the past – should hinder our 
longer-term drive for higher sales and a larger market presence 
throughout the world. 

PURSUING A FAR-REACHING STRATEGY
Deere’s far-reaching operating strategy made further progress 
in 2015. Captured in the phrase “Feet on the Ground, Eyes on 
the Horizon,” the plan emphasizes managing safe, efficient 
operations; providing high-quality, advanced products; and 
investing to expand our competitive position in key markets. 

The company is reinforcing its strategic plan by placing a more 
intense focus on quality and innovation. We are doing so 
because products of exceptional quality often earn higher levels 
of customer satisfaction and claim a larger share of the market. 

Similarly, when products come to market whose innovative 
features transform an industry category – as Deere has done  
in recent years with cotton pickers, sprayers, and planters –  
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The new 9009A rough mower fills out the lineup of machines needed  
by golf courses globally. With its five independent rotary decks, the 9009A  
positions Deere to participate in more bids and capture additional business. 

a strong customer response typically follows. Last year, the 
company’s sweeping distinctive-quality effort made important 
gains toward achieving targeted quality levels by the end  
of 2016. We’ve had particular success improving our ability  
to identify and address quality issues before products leave  
the factory floor. 

During the year, Deere’s achievements in innovation won  
a record 13 gold and silver medals at a leading European  
farm show. We also received an unprecedented 13 awards for 
innovation and engineering advancement from a respected  
U.S. technical society. The company has a proud legacy in 
quality and innovation. However, it’s imperative we take our 
performance to the next level in support of our plans for 
improved growth and profitability. 

The company continued to re-evaluate its business portfolio in 
2015, narrowing its focus on businesses that we believe will  
have the greatest impact on our growth goals. During the year, 

we completed the sale of our crop insurance unit. This follows 
earlier decisions to exit the water, landscapes, and wind-energy 
businesses.

Late in the year and in early fiscal 2016, we announced a joint 
venture and two acquisitions that will strengthen our position  
in precision farming, a field likely to play a major role in  
our industry’s future. The transactions involve two planter 
companies and a software-development firm.

ADVANCED NEW PRODUCTS WINNING CUSTOMERS
In 2015, the company continued with an extensive launch  
of new products that feature improvements in power, comfort, 
performance, and emissions control. Highlighting new 
agricultural equipment were four models of our first-ever line  
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Economical tractor and hay baler combinations like this 5085E tractor  
and 459E round baler are helping John Deere dealers capture  
market share by reaching new customers. The machine setup meets  
the needs of many small livestock producers and hay growers. 

of powerful four-track tractors and a new line of round balers,  
as well as productive forage harvesters and a small tractor for 
paddy-rice applications in Asia. 

To serve the needs of large contractors, our construction and 
forestry division introduced a hybrid-electric four-wheel-drive 
loader that sets the standard for efficiency. Our forestry 
operations marked Deere’s 50th year in the skidder business 
with an all-new line of skidders, as well as harvesters and  
feller bunchers. 

In order to help customers get the most value from their 
investment in our products, the company took further steps to 
strengthen its world-class parts-distribution system. During  
the year, we doubled the size of our distribution center in Brazil, 
officially opened a new facility in India, and reconfigured our 
warehouse in Russia.

Deere augmented its global financing capabilities by 
establishing a retail-financing presence in Austria, Czech 
Republic, Croatia, and Bolivia. With these moves, the company 
now offers competitive financing to its customers in  
49 countries. 

CITIZENSHIP EFFORTS MAKING A DIFFERENCE
Long a cornerstone of John Deere’s success, our citizenship 
efforts continued making a meaningful impact in 2015.  
Total company and Deere foundation support of citizenship 
activities, whose focus includes solutions for world hunger, 
improved educational opportunities, and economic 
development, approached $30 million. 

John Deere employees continued to enrich their communities 
through extensive volunteer efforts that are becoming  
more global in scale and saw significant expansion in Brazil  
and India. Employee volunteer hours increased by more than  
20 percent for the year, exceeding 100,000 for the first time.

In one highlight, a community improvement program led by  
the Deere foundation was launched in a historic neighborhood 
of Moline, Illinois. Based on a model used in company 
communities in Brazil and India, the project encourages a 
collaborative approach to revitalization, business development, 
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and improved employment opportunities. In all, it is estimated 
that more than 15 million people saw direct benefit from the 
company’s citizenship activities in 2015.

Responsible citizenship is also reflected in our efforts to protect 
the well-being of employees and safeguard the environment. 
Deere maintained its exemplary safety record with over half of 
our locations reporting no lost-time incidents during the year. 
Both recordable injuries and those resulting in time away  
from work remained at or near all-time lows.  

On the environmental side, we exceeded our goal of recycling  
75 percent of waste from our manufacturing facilities three  
years ahead of the 2018 target date. Due to lower factory 
volumes, we were challenged to make further progress on our 
goals of reducing water and energy use and greenhouse gas 
emissions by 15 percent relative to production. One illustration 
of our commitment to lower greenhouse gas emissions is a  
new solar-energy unit at our cab factory in Bruchsal, Germany. 
It provides roughly 10 percent of the power needs of the factory 
and nearby parts warehouse. 

In other milestones, Deere again appeared in a prominent listing 
of most-ethical companies, was featured in Fortune magazine’s 
review of most-admired companies, and was recognized for 
having one of the world’s 100 most-valuable brands.

In addition, we were cited as one of America’s top employers  
by Forbes and named to listings of best places to work  
in Mexico, Spain, and Luxembourg. These are further 
acknowledgements of our ability to attract and develop  
top employee talent. 

INSPIRING UNITY AND PURPOSE
Although John Deere faces challenging conditions in the year 
ahead, we firmly believe the company is on track for long- 
term growth and success. Thanks to the tireless efforts of 
employees, dealers, and suppliers everywhere, we are making 
steady gains in helping meet the world’s growing need  
for advanced equipment and solutions and providing value  
to our customers each and every day. 

Guidance, section control, and variable-rate seeding are precision agriculture  
technologies that are changing how customers plant their crops. As a result,  
growers save on seed and get crops planted more accurately, helping boost yields.  
Announced acquisitions should accelerate adoption of these technologies globally. 
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On behalf of the John Deere team,

Samuel R. Allen             December 18, 2015

Deere’s senior management team is shown in front of a 6195R tractor at  
company headquarters in Moline, Illinois. From left: Jim Field, Mark von Pentz, John May, 
Max Guinn, Mary Jones, Jean Gilles, Sam Allen, Mike Mack, and Raj Kalathur.

At the same time, we’re confident our actions to develop a  
more durable business model will allow the company to continue 
delivering solid results even in a depressed farm economy. 

On visits to company locations throughout the world in 2015,  
I was reminded time and again of the pride that our employees 
and other stakeholders share in being associated with John Deere. 
This pride has inspired a sense of unity and purpose that 
transcends the bounds of language, culture, and nationality.  
It also gives our company a powerful competitive advantage in 
building its brand and attracting new customers.

All this reinforces my conviction that by working together we  
can overcome present challenges, seize the great opportunities 
the future holds, and leave no doubt that John Deere’s best days 
are still to come!

2015 AR_spreads_12_22.indd   9 12/30/15   3:56 PM



10

CONVERSATION WITH THE CHAIRMAN

How would you characterize Deere’s 
performance in 2015?

We had a really good year when you 
consider the economic headwinds we 
were dealing with. But, of course, that’s 
exactly the kind of challenging situation 
our operations have been preparing for.

The large-ag market in North America  
has dropped over 50 percent in the last 
couple of years. That’s generally our 
leading source of profits. Yet we still  
had our sixth-best year in equipment 
sales and earnings. Deere never earned 
more than $1.9 billion – what we made 
last year – prior to 2008. 

That tells you something about how far 
the company has come in strengthening  
its business model. 

How have we accomplished that?   

We’ve established a more variable cost 
structure, for one thing. That, coupled 
with an improving ability to match 
factory production with customer orders, 
has made a big impact. The key is being 
able to anticipate changes in demand far 
enough in advance to make the necessary 
adjustments. 

Our forecasting ability is getting better  
all the time. Net income last year equaled 
our original forecast, though we proved  
too optimistic on sales, especially  
for construction equipment. 

Another factor is having an organization 
that is highly aligned in relation to our 
goals. Employees have a clear idea of 
where we’re headed and what is expected 
of them. They believe in the company  
and are deeply committed to its success. 
Such constancy of purpose has a positive 
effect on performance. 

Deere adopted a corporate strategy  
for the period 2010-18 calling for  
a significant increase in sales and 
profitability. How would you assess  
our progress?

We’ve done well improving overall 
profitability, especially return on sales, 
throughout the business cycle. Our goal 
was to establish a cost structure capable 
of producing a 12 percent operating 
margin at mid-cycle sales and we’re 
confident we’ve accomplished that. 

We haven’t made as much headway on 
asset turns, which we’d like to improve to 
2.5 times. However, we’re confident we  
can reach the goal, or be very close, by 
the 2018 target date. Also, over a longer 
period, the company has made definite 
strides managing asset levels. 

Concerning sales, we’ll likely come up short 
of our objective of $50 billion for mid-cycle 
sales by 2018. The market opportunity we 
envisioned in 2010 has gone down in size 
due to issues like political instability in 
Russia and slower growth in China and 
Brazil. Also, we haven’t gained all the 
market share we anticipated. That’s one 
of the things our quality and innovation 
initiatives are addressing.

Sam Allen:  
Deere Positioned 
For Future Recovery

In spite of challenging market 
conditions, Deere had solid 
results in 2015 and continued 
to lay the groundwork for 
longer-term success. In this 
interview, Deere Chairman and 
CEO Sam Allen discusses the 
company’s recent performance 
and its focus on making  
the investments in capacity,  
quality, and innovation that  
will help address the world’s 
need for productive equipment 
in the future.
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All in all, though, the strategy has 
resulted in stronger performance.  
Our recent results are proof of that.

What does precision agriculture  
mean to Deere? 

Deere has been building a leadership 
position in precision agriculture since the 
introduction of yield monitors and 
automatic guidance equipment starting 
in the late 1990s. However, the pace has  
really quickened in the last few years. 

Technology has evolved to a point that 
today our customers can see real-time 
information about crop yield, moisture 
content, or seeding singulation and 
population, among other variables, from 
the seat of their tractor or combine, or 
even from their office. This information 
can be used to create planting and 
spraying prescriptions or make other 
agronomic decisions. 

Precision-farming tools provide customers 
with information to be more profitable  
and productive. They also help differentiate 
Deere’s products and services and  
could well open the door to new revenue 
streams for the company. 

We believe the announced acquisitions  
of Monosem and Precision Planting,  
as well as the SageInsights joint venture,  
will give us even more momentum in  
the precision-ag field.

When do you see a rebound in store  
for the agricultural sector?  

Nobody knows the answer, but we do 
know the current downturn is about  
too much supply, not too little demand. 
We’ve had bumper crops on a global scale 
for several years now, which has caused 
prices for grains and oilseeds to move 
lower. Demand, however, has continued  
to grow as it does almost every year.

It’s important to understand that  
today’s crop surplus is not excessive and 
could be absorbed pretty fast in case  
of a widespread drought or other event 
that disrupts production. If that were  
to happen, you can bet it would have a 
positive, and likely rapid, impact on 
commodity prices and farm incomes.

Another consideration is that Deere  
sales rarely drop more than two years in a  
row and, according to our records that  
go back about 80 years, have never done 
so for more than three. While history  
isn’t always predictive, it suggests these 
things typically sort themselves out in  
a reasonably short period of time. 

Whatever the case, we’re continuing to 
refine our cost and asset structure with an 
eye toward achieving good returns, even  
in weak markets. At the same time, we’re 
confident the investments we’ve made in 
global capacity, product support, distinctive 
quality, and advanced technology will  
have a big impact on our performance 
when markets resume their growth.
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 – Operating profit slips to  
$2.18 billion, down from  
$4.30 billion in 2014.

 – Strengthening a key 
differentiator, A&T bolsters 
dealer capabilities in precision 
agriculture; C&F focuses 
on dealer support for large, 
production-class equipment.

 – Deere and United Auto 
Workers reach agreement  
on six-year labor contract  
affecting about 10,000 Deere  
manufacturing employees at factories  
in Illinois, Iowa, and Kansas. 

 – While helping meet global emissions  
regulations, company’s engine business  
provides a competitive advantage  
for Deere machines.  
Example: 7310R tractor  
sets new fluid-efficiency  
record among high- 
horsepower tractors  
of its class at industry  
test site in Germany.

DEERE & COMPANY ENTERPRISE SVA* (MM) 

2015 HIGHLIGHTS

 – Net sales and revenues decline 
to $28.9 billion, down 20%.

 – Earnings hit $1.94 billion,  
sixth-best in company history, 
but well below prior-year level.

 – SVA declines on lower profits, 
but remains firmly positive.

 – Cash flow from operations 
continues to be strong,  
at $3.74 billion, up 6% over 
previous year.

 – Capital expenditures decline significantly, to $655 million, 
following several years of heavy investment in additional 
worldwide production capacity and cleaner-burning engines.

 – Combined dividend payments and share repurchases hit  
record $3.59 billion; dividends paid increase 4%. Number of 
shares repurchased during year reaches nearly 32 million, 
bringing total bought back since 2004 to more than  
240 million.

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS SVA (MM)

2013 2014 2015

$3,147 $2,437 $516

2013 2014 2015

$774$2,694$3,390

* SVA is a non-GAAP financial measure. See page 15 for details.

With the expansion of the parts distribution center in Campinas, Brazil,  
Deere nearly doubled its parts distribution capacity in the region  
while adding a state-of-the-art training facility. The center aims to help  
differentiate Deere and its dealers through exceptional customer support.  
Parts facilities were also upgraded in India and Russia. 
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2013 2014 2015

$3,215 $2,231 $428

AGRICULTURE & TURF SVA (MM)

–
demand for equipment 
and unfavorable effects of 
foreign-currency translation. 

–

a year earlier.

– Division continues growth in 

orders in China for U.S.-built 
cotton harvesters and combines; 
also introduces light-weight, low-cost tractor for rice farmers 
in Southeast Asia. 

– Focused on precision agriculture, company agrees to purchase 
European planter manufacturer Monosem and agricultural-
technology provider Precision Planting. Deere also forms joint 
venture to help customers better manage data. 

– Deere receives record three gold and 10 silver medals at 

Company also is awarded gold and silver medals at leading 
international agribusiness show in France. 

–
to lower shipment volumes 
and unfavorable effects of 
foreign-currency translation.

–

–

– Supporting growth outside 
U.S. and Canada, division 

–

forestry product introduction and biggest forestry investment 

–
being integrated into company 
products, forestry customers can 

jobsite mapping; feature 

and efficiency.

2013 2014 2015

$206$(68)

CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY SVA (MM)

$88

Deere introduced six new backhoe loaders, 
including the 310L shown. A heavy-lift model 

attracting new buyers 
to the Deere line. 

Unless otherwise indicated, all capitalized names of products and services are trademarks or service marks of Deere & Company.

Deere earns an Agritechnica gold medal 
for cut-control technology on its 8000 

Series forage harvesters; advancements in 
spout control are awarded a silver medal.  
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The graph compares the cumulative total returns of Deere & Company, the S&P 500 Stock Index, and the S&P 500 
Construction & Farm Machinery Index over a seven-year period. It assumes $100 was invested on October 31, 2008, 
and that dividends were reinvested. Deere & Company stock price at October 31, 2015, was $78.00. 

The Standard & Poor’s 500 Construction & Farm Machinery Index comprises Deere (DE), Caterpillar (CAT), 
Cummins (CMI), Joy Global (JOY), and Paccar (PCAR). The stock performance shown in the graph is not intended to 
forecast and does not necessarily indicate future price performance.

Copyright © 2015 Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.
All rights reserved. (www.researchdatagroup.com/S&P.htm).

At October 31 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

FINANCIAL SERVICES SVA (MM)

–

the average portfolio and a gain on 
sale of the crop insurance business.

–

– Provision for credit losses remains 

average portfolio, well below 
10- and 15-year averages.

–

–
as equipment-leasing company of the year for its commitment to 
innovation.  

–

2013 2014 2015

$258$257$243

7-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

$0
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Deere & Company S&P 500 Construction & Farm Machinery S&P 500

2015 AR_spreads_12_22.indd   14 12/30/15   3:56 PM



15

SVA: FOCUSING ON GROWTH AND SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE

and measure sustainable performance.

Additional information on these metrics and their relationship to amounts presented 
in accordance with U.S. GAAP can be found at our website, www.JohnDeere.com. 
Note: Some totals may vary due to rounding.

DEERE EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS
$MM unless indicated 2013 2014 2015

Net Sales 34,998 32,961 25,755

Average Assetsg

   With Inventories @ LIFO@ 14,569 14,113 12,491

Operating Margin % x 14.45 x 1 x 8.45
OROA % @ Standard Cost 31.8 27.7 15.7
$MM 2013 2014 2015

Cost of Assets -1,911 -1 -1,661
SVA 3,147 2,437 516

are targeting an operating return on average operating 

equally ambitious returns at other points in the cycle. 
(For purposes of this calculation, operating assets 

inventories valued at standard cost.)

AGRICULTURE & TURF
$MM unless indicated 2013 2014 2015

Average Assets

1 1

$MM 2013 2014 2015

Cost of Assets -1 -1,41 -1,221

CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY
$MM unless indicated 2013 2014 2015

Net Sales 5,866 6,581 5,963

Average Assetsg

Operating Margin %

$MM 2013 2014 2015

Cost of Assets

FINANCIAL SERVICES
$MM unless indicated 2013 2014 2015

Net Income AttributableNet Income Attributable
   to Deere & Companyp y 565 624 633

Average Equityg q y 4,073 4,575 4,655
ROE % 13.9 13.6 13.6
$MM 2013 2014 2015

Average Equity 4,073 4,575 4,655

Cost of Equity -627 -664 -705
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Positions as of December 31, 2015
LEADERSHIP TEAM

SAMUEL R. ALLEN (40)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

JEAN H. GILLES (35)
Senior Vice President, John Deere Power Systems,  
Worldwide Parts Services, Advanced Technology & Engineering, 
and Global Supply Management & Logistics

MARY K.W. JONES (18)
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

RAJESH KALATHUR (19)
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

KIMBERLY K. BEARDSLEY (25)
Vice President, Worldwide Parts Services

MARGARET A. CURRY (effective April 1, 2015)
Vice President, Taxes

PIERRE J. GUYOT (17) 
Vice President, Global Supply Management & Logistics

MATTHEW G. HANEY (2)
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel, and
Chief Counsel, Financial Services Division

MICHAEL A. HARRING (31)
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel, North America

KLAUS G. HOEHN (23)
Vice President, Advanced Technology & Engineering

MARC A. HOWZE (14)
Vice President, Global Human Resources and  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED world’s increasing need for food, shelter and infrastructure
OCTOBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013 continue to move ahead. The company remains confident in the

present direction and believes it is on track to deliver value to
OVERVIEW customers and investors in the years to come.
Organization 2015 COMPARED WITH 2014
The company’s equipment operations generate revenues and
cash primarily from the sale of equipment to John Deere dealers CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
and distributors. The equipment operations manufacture and Worldwide net income attributable to Deere & Company in 2015
distribute a full line of agricultural equipment; a variety of was $1,940 million, or $5.77 per share diluted ($5.81 basic),
commercial and consumer equipment; and a broad range of compared with $3,162 million, or $8.63 per share diluted ($8.71
equipment for construction and forestry. The company’s basic), in 2014. Net sales and revenues decreased 20 percent to
financial services primarily provide credit services, which mainly $28,863 million in 2015, compared with $36,067 million in 2014.
finance sales and leases of equipment by John Deere dealers and Net sales of the worldwide equipment operations declined
trade receivables purchased from the equipment operations. In 22 percent in 2015 to $25,775 million from $32,961 million last
addition, financial services offer extended equipment warranties. year. Sales included price realization of 1 percent and an
The information in the following discussion is presented in a unfavorable currency translation effect of 5 percent. Equipment
format that includes information grouped as consolidated, net sales in the United States and Canada decreased 18 percent
equipment operations and financial services. The company also for 2015. Outside the U.S. and Canada, net sales decreased
views its operations as consisting of two geographic areas, the 28 percent for the year, with an unfavorable currency translation
U.S. and Canada, and outside the U.S. and Canada. The effect of 10 percent for 2015.
company’s operating segments consist of agriculture and turf, Worldwide equipment operations had an operating profit
construction and forestry, and financial services. of $2,177 million in 2015, compared with $4,297 million in
Trends and Economic Conditions 2014. The operating profit decline was due primarily to lower
The company’s agriculture and turf equipment sales decreased shipment volumes, the impact of a less favorable product mix
25 percent in 2015 and are forecast to decrease by about and the unfavorable effects of foreign currency exchange. These
8 percent for 2016. Industry agricultural machinery sales in the factors were partially offset by price realization, lower selling,
U.S. and Canada for 2016 are forecast to decrease 15 to administrative and general expenses and lower production costs.
20 percent, compared to 2015. Industry sales in the European Net income of the company’s equipment operations was
Union (EU) 28 nations are forecast to be approximately the same $1,308 million for 2015, compared with $2,548 million in 2014.
to 5 percent lower in 2016, while South American industry sales In addition to the operating factors mentioned above, a lower
are projected to decrease about 10 to 15 percent from 2015 effective tax rate benefited the results. The lower rate resulted
levels. Asian sales are projected to be about the same or mainly from a reduction of a valuation allowance recorded
decrease slightly in 2016. Industry sales of turf and utility during the fourth quarter due to a change in the expected
equipment in the U.S. and Canada are expected to be realizable value of a deferred tax asset.
approximately the same to 5 percent higher. The company’s

Net income of the financial services operations attributableconstruction and forestry sales decreased 9 percent in 2015 and
to Deere & Company in 2015 increased to $633 million,are forecast to decrease about 5 percent in 2016. Global forestry
compared with $624 million in 2014. Results improved due toindustry sales are expected to decline 5 to 10 percent from the
growth in the average credit portfolio, the previously announcedstrong levels in 2015. Net income of the company’s financial
crop insurance sale and higher crop insurance marginsservices operations attributable to Deere & Company in 2016 is
experienced prior to divestiture (see Note 4), and lower selling,expected to be approximately $550 million.
administrative and general expenses. These factors were partially

Items of concern include the uncertainty of the offset by the unfavorable effects of foreign currency exchange
effectiveness of governmental actions in respect to monetary translation, less favorable financing spreads and higher losses on
and fiscal policies, the global economic recovery, the impact of residual values primarily for construction equipment operating
sovereign debt, eurozone issues, capital market disruptions, leases. The results in 2014 also benefited from a more favorable
trade agreements and geopolitical events. Significant effective tax rate. Additional information is presented in the
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and volatility in following discussion of the ‘‘Worldwide Financial Services
the price of many commodities could also impact the company’s Operations.’’
results. Designing and producing products with engines that

The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2015 wascontinue to meet high performance standards and increasingly
78.1 percent, compared with 75.2 percent last year. The increasestringent emissions regulations is one of the company’s major
was due primarily to the impact of a less favorable product mixpriorities.
and the unfavorable effects of foreign currency exchange,

The company completed a successful year even with further partially offset by price realization and lower production costs.
weakness in the global agricultural sector and slowdown in

Finance and interest income increased this year due to aconstruction equipment markets. The forecast calls for lower
larger average credit portfolio, partially offset by lower averageresults in 2016, but the outlook is considerably better than
financing rates and the unfavorable effects of currencyprevious downturns. The company remains in a strong position
translation. Other income decreased due primarily to a reductionto carry out its growth plans and attract new customers

throughout the world. The company’s plans to help meet the
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in crop insurance premiums as a result of the sale of the Crop partially offset by price realization, lower selling, administrative
Insurance operations (see Note 4), partially offset by the gain on and general expenses, and lower production costs.
the sale of the Crop Insurance operations and higher extended Worldwide Construction and Forestry Operations
warranty revenue. Research and development costs decreased The construction and forestry segment had an operating profit
largely due to the effect of currency translation. Selling, of $528 million in 2015, compared with $648 million in 2014.
administrative and general expenses decreased mainly due to the Net sales decreased 9 percent for the year mainly as a result of
effect of currency translation, lower incentive compensation and lower shipment volumes and the unfavorable effect of currency
dealer commission expenses, the sale of the Water and Crop translation, partially offset by price realization. Operating profit
Insurance operations, and the deconsolidation of Landscapes declined mainly due to lower shipment volumes, the unfavorable
(see Note 4). Interest expense increased due to higher average effects of foreign exchange and higher production costs,
interest rates and higher average borrowings, partially offset by partially offset by price realization and lower selling,
the favorable effects of currency translation. Other operating administrative and general expenses.
expenses decreased primarily due to a reduction in crop

Worldwide Financial Services Operationsinsurance claims, the Water operations’ impairment and sale in
The operating profit of the financial services segment was2014 (see Note 4), the effect of currency translation, partially
$963 million in 2015, compared with $921 million in 2014. Theoffset by higher depreciation of equipment on operating leases.
results improved due to growth in the average credit portfolio,

The company has several defined benefit pension plans and the previously announced Crop Insurance operations sale (see
defined benefit health care and life insurance plans. The Note 4) and higher crop insurance margins experienced prior to
company’s postretirement benefit costs for these plans in 2015 the divestiture, and lower selling, administrative and general
were $512 million, compared with $432 million in 2014. The expenses. These factors were partially offset by the unfavorable
long-term expected return on plan assets, which is reflected in effects of foreign currency exchange translation, less favorable
these costs, was an expected gain of 7.3 percent in 2015 and financing spreads and higher losses on residual values primarily
7.5 percent in 2014, or $824 million in 2015 and $848 million in for construction equipment operating leases. Total revenues of
2014. The actual return was a gain of $606 million in 2015 and the financial services operations, including intercompany
$1,213 million in 2014. In 2016, the expected return will be revenues, were approximately the same in 2015, compared with
approximately 7.3 percent. The company’s postretirement costs 2014. The average balance of receivables and leases financed
in 2016 are expected to decrease approximately $200 million. was 1 percent higher in 2015, compared with 2014. Interest
The company makes any required contributions to the plan expense increased 6 percent in 2015 as a result of higher
assets under applicable regulations and voluntary contributions average borrowings and higher average interest rates. The
from time to time based on the company’s liquidity and ability to financial services operations’ ratio of earnings to fixed charges
make tax-deductible contributions. Total company contributions was 3.29 to 1 in 2015, compared with 3.37 to 1 in 2014.
to the plans were $131 million in 2015 and $138 million in

Equipment Operations in U.S. and Canada2014, which include direct benefit payments for unfunded plans.
The equipment operations in the U.S. and Canada had anThese contributions also included voluntary contributions to plan
operating profit of $1,643 million in 2015, compared withassets of $3 million in 2015 and $5 million in 2014. Total
$3,311 million in 2014. The decline was due primarily to lowercompany contributions in 2016 are expected to be
shipment volumes and the impact of a less favorable productapproximately $98 million, which are primarily direct benefit
mix. The decline was partially offset by price realization. Netpayments for unfunded plans. The company has no significant
sales decreased 18 percent due primarily to lower shipmentrequired contributions to pension plan assets in 2016 under
volumes and the unfavorable effects of currency translation,applicable funding regulations. See the discussion in ‘‘Critical
partially offset by price realization. The physical volume of salesAccounting Policies’’ for more information about postretirement
decreased 18 percent, compared with 2014.benefit obligations.
Equipment Operations outside U.S. and CanadaBUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA RESULTS
The equipment operations outside the U.S. and Canada had anThe following discussion relates to operating results by
operating profit of $534 million in 2015, compared withreportable segment and geographic area. Operating profit is
$986 million in 2014. The decrease was due primarily to lowerincome before certain external interest expense, certain foreign
shipment volumes, the impact of a less favorable product mixexchange gains or losses, income taxes and corporate expenses.
and the unfavorable effects of foreign currency exchange. TheseHowever, operating profit of the financial services segment
factors were partially offset by price realization. Net sales wereincludes the effect of interest expense and foreign currency
28 percent lower primarily reflecting decreased shipmentexchange gains or losses.
volumes and the unfavorable effects of foreign currency

Worldwide Agriculture and Turf Operations translation, partially offset by price realization. The physical
The agriculture and turf segment had an operating profit of volume of sales decreased 19 percent, compared with 2014.
$1,649 million for the year, compared with $3,649 million in

MARKET CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK2014. Net sales decreased 25 percent in 2015 due largely to
Company equipment sales are projected to decrease 7 percentlower shipment volumes and the unfavorable effects of currency
for fiscal year 2016 and decrease about 11 percent for the firsttranslation. These factors were partially offset by price
quarter, compared with the same periods in 2015. For fiscal yearrealization. Lower operating profit was driven primarily by the
2016, net income attributable to Deere & Company isimpact of lower shipment volumes, a less favorable product mix
anticipated to be about $1.4 billion.and the unfavorable effects of foreign currency exchange,
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Agriculture and Turf. The company’s worldwide sales of programs, changes in and effects of crop insurance programs,
agriculture and turf equipment are forecast to decrease by about global trade agreements, animal diseases and their effects on
8 percent for fiscal year 2016, including a negative currency poultry, beef and pork consumption and prices, crop pests and
translation effect of about 2 percent. Industry sales for diseases, and the level of farm product exports (including
agricultural equipment in the U.S. and Canada are forecast to be concerns about genetically modified organisms).
down 15 to 20 percent for 2016. The decline, which reflects the Factors affecting the outlook for the company’s turf and
impact of low commodity prices and stagnant farm incomes, is utility equipment include consumer confidence, weather
expected to be most pronounced in the sale of higher conditions, customer profitability, consumer borrowing patterns,
horsepower models. Full year 2016 industry sales in the EU28 consumer purchasing preferences, housing starts, infrastructure
are forecast to be about the same to 5 percent lower, with the investment, spending by municipalities and golf courses, and
decline attributable to low commodity prices and farm incomes, consumable input costs.
including further pressure on the dairy sector. In South America,

Consumer spending patterns, real estate and housingindustry sales of tractors and combines are projected to
prices, the number of housing starts and interest rates aredecrease 10 to 15 percent mainly as a result of economic
especially important to sales of the company’s construction andconcerns in Brazil and uncertainty about government sponsored
forestry equipment. The levels of public and non-residentialfinancing. Asian sales are projected to be about the same to
construction also impact the results of the company’sdown slightly, due in part to weakness in China. Industry sales of
construction and forestry segment. Prices for pulp, paper,turf and utility equipment in the U.S. and Canada are expected
lumber and structural panels are important to sales of forestryto be about the same to 5 percent higher for 2016, benefiting
equipment.from general economic growth.

All of the company’s businesses and its reported results areConstruction and Forestry. The company’s worldwide sales of affected by general economic conditions in the global marketsconstruction and forestry equipment are forecast to decrease and industries in which the company operates, especiallyabout 5 percent for 2016, including a negative currency material changes in economic activity in these markets andtranslation effect of about 1 percent. The forecast decline in industries; customer confidence in general economic conditions;sales reflects the impact of weak conditions in the North foreign currency exchange rates and their volatility, especiallyAmerican energy sector, especially in Canada, as well as lower fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar; interest rates; andsales outside the U.S. and Canada. In forestry, global sales are inflation and deflation rates. Government spending and taxingexpected to decrease 5 to 10 percent from 2015’s strong levels, could adversely affect the economy, employment, consumer andprimarily as a result of lower sales in the U.S. and Canada. corporate spending, and company results.
Financial Services. Fiscal year 2016 net income attributable to Customer and company operations and results could be
Deere & Company for the financial services operations is affected by changes in weather patterns (including the effects of
expected to be approximately $550 million. The outlook reflects drought and drier than normal conditions in certain markets);
less favorable financing spreads and an increased provision for the political and social stability of the global markets in which
credit losses. Additionally, 2015 results benefited from a gain on the company operates; the effects of, or response to, terrorism
the sale of the Crop Insurance operations. and security threats; wars and other conflicts and the threat
SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT thereof and the response thereto; natural disasters; and the
Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation spread of major epidemics.
Reform Act of 1995: Statements under ‘‘Overview,’’ ‘‘Market Significant changes in market liquidity conditions and any
Conditions and Outlook,’’ and other forward-looking statements failure to comply with financial covenants in credit agreements
herein that relate to future events, expectations, trends and could impact access to funding and funding costs, which could
operating periods involve certain factors that are subject to reduce the company’s earnings and cash flows. Financial market
change, and important risks and uncertainties that could cause conditions could also negatively impact customer access to
actual results to differ materially. Some of these risks and capital for purchases of the company’s products and customer
uncertainties could affect particular lines of business, while confidence and purchase decisions, borrowing and repayment
others could affect all of the company’s businesses. practices, and the number and size of customer loan

The company’s agricultural equipment business is subject delinquencies and defaults. A debt crisis, in Europe or elsewhere,
to a number of uncertainties including the many interrelated could negatively impact currencies, global financial markets,
factors that affect farmers’ confidence. These factors include social and political stability, funding sources and costs, asset and
demand for agricultural products, world grain stocks, weather obligation values, customers, suppliers, demand for equipment,
conditions (including its effects on timely planting and and company operations and results. The company’s investment
harvesting), soil conditions (including low subsoil moisture), management activities could be impaired by changes in the
harvest yields, prices for commodities and livestock, crop and equity, bond and other financial markets, which would negatively
livestock production expenses, availability of transport for crops, affect earnings.
the growth and sustainability of non-food uses for some crops Additional factors that could materially affect the
(including ethanol and biodiesel production), real estate values, company’s operations, access to capital, expenses and results
available acreage for farming, the land ownership policies of include changes in and the impact of governmental trade,
various governments, changes in government farm programs and banking, monetary and fiscal policies, including financial
policies (including those in Argentina, Brazil, China, the European regulatory reform and its effects on the consumer finance
Union, India, Russia and the U.S.), international reaction to such
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industry, derivatives, funding costs and other areas, and rates, and compensation, retirement and mortality rates which
governmental programs, policies, tariffs and sanctions in impact retirement benefit costs, and significant changes in
particular jurisdictions or for the benefit of certain industries or health care costs including those which may result from
sectors (including protectionist, economic, punitive and governmental action.
expropriation policies and trade and licensing restrictions that The liquidity and ongoing profitability of John Deere Capital
could disrupt international commerce); actions by the U.S. Corporation and other credit subsidiaries depend largely on
Federal Reserve Board and other central banks; actions by the timely access to capital in order to meet future cash flow
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the U.S. requirements, to fund operations and costs associated with
Commodity Futures Trading Commission and other financial engaging in diversified funding activities, and to fund purchases
regulators; actions by environmental, health and safety of the company’s products. If general economic conditions
regulatory agencies, including those related to engine emissions, deteriorate or capital markets become volatile, funding could be
carbon and other greenhouse gas emissions, noise and the unavailable or insufficient. Additionally, customer confidence
effects of climate change; changes in labor regulations; changes levels may result in declines in credit applications and increases
to accounting standards; changes in tax rates, estimates, and in delinquencies and default rates, which could materially impact
regulations and company actions related thereto; compliance write-offs and provisions for credit losses.
with U.S. and foreign laws when expanding to new markets and

The company’s outlook is based upon assumptions relatingotherwise; and actions by other regulatory bodies including
to the factors described above, which are sometimes based uponchanges in laws and regulations affecting the sectors in which
estimates and data prepared by government agencies. Suchthe company operates. Trade, financial and other sanctions
estimates and data are often revised. The company, except asimposed by the U.S., the European Union, Russia and other
required by law, undertakes no obligation to update or revise itscountries could negatively impact company assets, operations,
outlook, whether as a result of new developments or otherwise.sales, forecasts and results. Customer and company operations
Further information concerning the company and its businesses,and results also could be affected by changes to GPS radio
including factors that potentially could materially affect thefrequency bands or their permitted uses.
company’s financial results, is included in the company’s other

Other factors that could materially affect results include filings with the SEC.
production, design and technological innovations and

2014 COMPARED WITH 2013difficulties, including capacity and supply constraints and prices;
the availability and prices of strategically sourced materials, CONSOLIDATED RESULTScomponents and whole goods; delays or disruptions in the Worldwide net income attributable to Deere & Company in 2014company’s supply chain or the loss of liquidity by suppliers; was $3,162 million, or $8.63 per share diluted ($8.71 basic),disruptions of infrastructures that support communications, compared with $3,537 million, or $9.09 per share diluted ($9.18operations or distribution; the failure of suppliers to comply with basic), in 2013. Net sales and revenues decreased 5 percent tolaws, regulations and company policy pertaining to employment, $36,067 million in 2014, compared with $37,795 million in 2013.human rights, health, safety, the environment and other ethical Net sales of the equipment operations decreased 6 percent inbusiness practices; events that damage the company’s 2014 to $32,961 million from $34,998 million in 2013. The salesreputation or brand; significant investigations, claims, lawsuits or decrease was largely due to lower shipment volumes and another legal proceedings; start-up of new plants and new unfavorable foreign currency translation effect of 1 percent,products; the success of new product initiatives and customer partially offset by price realization of 2 percent. Net sales in theacceptance of new products; changes in customer product U.S. and Canada decreased 8 percent in 2014. Net sales outsidepreferences and sales mix whether as a result of changes in the U.S. and Canada decreased 3 percent in 2014, whichequipment design to meet government regulations or for other included an unfavorable effect of 1 percent for foreign currencyreasons; gaps or limitations in rural broadband coverage, translation.capacity and speed needed to support technology solutions; oil

Worldwide equipment operations had an operating profitand energy prices, supplies and volatility; the availability and cost
of $4,297 million in 2014, compared with $5,058 million inof freight; actions of competitors in the various industries in
2013. The operating profit decline was due primarily to thewhich the company competes, particularly price discounting;
impact of lower shipment and production volumes, a lessdealer practices especially as to levels of new and used field
favorable product mix, the unfavorable effects of foreigninventories; labor relations and contracts; acquisitions and
currency exchange and higher production costs primarily relateddivestitures of businesses; the integration of new businesses; the
to the impact of engine emission programs. The decline wasimplementation of organizational changes; difficulties related to
partially offset by price realization. Results in 2014 were alsothe conversion and implementation of enterprise resource
affected by impairment charges for the company’s John Deereplanning systems that disrupt business, negatively impact supply
Landscapes and John Deere Water operations (see Notes 4or distribution relationships or create higher than expected
and 5).costs; security breaches and other disruptions to the company’s

information technology infrastructure; and changes in company The equipment operations’ net income was $2,548 million
declared dividends and common stock issuances and in 2014, compared with $2,974 million in 2013. The same
repurchases. operating factors mentioned above affected these results.

Company results are also affected by changes in the level Net income of the financial services operations attributable
and funding of employee retirement benefits, changes in market to Deere & Company in 2014 increased to $624 million,
values of investment assets, the level of interest and discount
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compared with $565 million in 2013. The improvement was due offset by price realization. As previously noted, results in 2013
primarily to growth in the credit portfolio, a more favorable were affected by impairment charges for the Landscapes and
effective tax rate, partially offset by lower crop insurance Water operations (see Notes 4 and 5).
margins, higher selling, administrative and general expenses and Worldwide Construction and Forestry Operations
a higher provision for credit losses. Additional information is The construction and forestry segment had an operating profit
presented in the following discussion of the ‘‘Worldwide of $648 million in 2014, compared with $378 million in 2013.
Financial Services Operations.’’ Net sales increased 12 percent in 2014 mainly as a result of

The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2014 was higher shipment volumes and price realization, partially offset by
75.2 percent, compared with 73.3 percent in 2013. The increase the unfavorable effect of currency translation. Operating profit
was due primarily to a less favorable product mix, the benefited in 2014 from higher shipment volumes, lower selling,
unfavorable effects of foreign currency exchange and higher administrative and general expenses and price realization,
production costs largely related to engine emission partially offset by the unfavorable effects of foreign currency
requirements, partially offset by price realization. exchange.

Finance and interest income increased in 2014 due to a Worldwide Financial Services Operations
larger average credit portfolio, partially offset by lower average The operating profit of the financial services segment was
financing rates. Other income increased due primarily to higher $921 million in 2014, compared with $870 million in 2013. The
insurance premiums and service revenue. Research and results were higher due primarily to growth in the credit
development costs decreased primarily due to the completion of portfolio, partially offset by lower crop insurance margins, higher
certain product developments in 2014 compared to 2013. selling, administrative and general expenses and a higher
Selling, administrative and general expenses decreased due provision for credit losses. Total revenues of the financial
primarily to the deconsolidation of Landscapes and the sale of services operations, including intercompany revenues, increased
the Water operations (see Note 4). Interest expense decreased 9 percent in 2014, primarily reflecting the larger portfolio. The
due to lower average borrowing rates, partially offset by higher average balance of receivables and leases financed was
average borrowings. Other operating expenses increased due 13 percent higher in 2014, compared with 2013. Interest
primarily to higher depreciation of equipment on operating expense decreased 12 percent in 2014 as a result of lower
leases, higher insurance claims and the write-down to realizable average borrowing rates, partially offset by higher average
value and sale of the Water operations, partially offset by borrowings. The financial services operations’ ratio of earnings
impairment charges in 2013 for the Landscapes operations (see to fixed charges was 3.37 to 1 in 2014, compared with 2.90 to 1
Notes 4 and 5). in 2013.

The company has several defined benefit pension plans and Equipment Operations in U.S. and Canada
defined benefit health care and life insurance plans. The The equipment operations in the U.S. and Canada had an
company’s postretirement benefit costs for these plans in 2014 operating profit of $3,311 million in 2014, compared with
were $432 million, compared with $575 million in 2013. The $4,062 million in 2013. The decline was due primarily to the
long-term expected return on plan assets, which is reflected in impact of lower shipment and production volumes, a less
these costs, was an expected gain of 7.5 percent in 2014 and favorable product mix and higher production costs primarily
7.8 percent in 2013, or $848 million in 2014 and $862 million in related to engine emission programs. The decline was partially
2013. The actual return was a gain of $1,213 million in 2014 offset by price realization. Results in 2013 were also affected by
and $1,470 million in 2013. Total company contributions to the impairment charges for the Landscapes and Water operations.
plans were $138 million in 2014 and $338 million in 2013, which Net sales decreased 8 percent due primarily to lower shipment
include direct benefit payments for unfunded plans. These volumes, partially offset by price realization. The physical volume
contributions also included voluntary contributions to plan of sales decreased 9 percent, compared with 2013.
assets of $5 million in 2014 and $227 million in 2013. Equipment Operations outside U.S. and Canada
BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA RESULTS The equipment operations outside the U.S. and Canada had an

operating profit of $986 million in 2014, compared with
Worldwide Agriculture and Turf Operations $996 million in 2013. The decrease was due primarily to theThe agriculture and turf segment had an operating profit of impact of lower shipment and production volumes, a less$3,649 million in 2014, compared with $4,680 million in 2013. favorable product mix, the unfavorable effects of foreignNet sales decreased 9 percent in 2014 due largely to lower currency exchange, higher production costs and an impairmentshipment volumes, the previously announced sales of the charge for the China operations (see Note 5), partially offset bycompany’s Landscapes and Water operations and the price realization. Results in 2013 were also affected byunfavorable effects of currency translation. Partially offsetting impairment charges for the Water operations. Net sales werethese factors was price realization. The decrease in operating 3 percent lower primarily reflecting decreased shipment volumesprofit was driven mainly by lower shipment and production and the effect of foreign currency translation, partially offset byvolumes, a less favorable product mix, the unfavorable effects of price realization. The physical volume of sales decreasedforeign currency exchange and higher production costs primarily 5 percent, compared with 2013.related to engine emission programs. The decline was partially
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY of the total cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities
held by foreign subsidiaries, in which earnings are consideredThe discussion of capital resources and liquidity has been
indefinitely reinvested, was $1,588 million and $1,025 million atorganized to review separately, where appropriate, the
October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.company’s consolidated totals, equipment operations and

financial services operations. Lines of Credit. The company also has access to bank lines
of credit with various banks throughout the world. WorldwideCONSOLIDATED
lines of credit totaled $7,205 million at October 31, 2015,Positive cash flows from consolidated operating activities in
$4,031 million of which were unused. For the purpose of2015 were $3,740 million. This resulted primarily from net
computing unused credit lines, commercial paper and short-termincome adjusted for non-cash provisions, a decrease in
bank borrowings, excluding secured borrowings and the currentreceivables related to sales, a change in the retirement benefits
portion of long-term borrowings, were primarily considered toadjustment and a decrease in insurance receivables prior to the
constitute utilization. Included in the total credit lines atCrop Insurance operations sale, which were partially offset by an
October 31, 2015 were long-term credit facility agreements ofincrease in inventories, primarily related to equipment
$2,900 million, expiring in April 2019, and $2,900 million,transferred to operating leases (see Note 6), a decrease in
expiring in April 2020. These credit agreements require Johnaccounts payable and accrued expenses, and a change in
Deere Capital Corporation (Capital Corporation) to maintain itsaccrued income taxes payable/receivable. Cash outflows from
consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges at not less thaninvesting activities were $1,059 million in 2015, due primarily to
1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter and the ratio of senior debt,the cost of receivables (excluding receivables related to sales)
excluding securitization indebtedness, to capital base (totaland cost of equipment on operating leases exceeding the
subordinated debt and stockholder’s equity excludingcollections of receivables and the proceeds from sales of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)) at not moreequipment on operating leases by $1,160 million, purchases of
than 11 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter. The creditproperty and equipment of $694 million, partially offset by
agreements also require the equipment operations to maintain aproceeds from maturities and sales exceeding purchases of
ratio of total debt to total capital (total debt and stockholders’marketable securities by $706 million and proceeds from sales of
equity excluding accumulated other comprehensive incomebusinesses, net of cash sold, of $149 million. Cash outflows from
(loss)) of 65 percent or less at the end of each fiscal quarter.financing activities were $2,119 million in 2015 due primarily to
Under this provision, the company’s excess equity capacity andrepurchases of common stock of $2,771 million and dividends
retained earnings balance free of restriction at October 31, 2015paid of $816 million, partially offset by an increase in borrowings
was $8,835 million. Alternatively under this provision, theof $1,349 million. Cash and cash equivalents increased
equipment operations had the capacity to incur additional debt$375 million during 2015.
of $16,408 million at October 31, 2015. All of these

Over the last three years, operating activities have provided requirements of the credit agreements have been met during the
an aggregate of $10,521 million in cash. In addition, increases in periods included in the consolidated financial statements.
borrowings were $6,986 million, proceeds from maturities and

Debt Ratings. To access public debt capital markets, thesales exceeded purchases of marketable securities by $931 million,
company relies on credit rating agencies to assign short-termproceeds from sales of businesses were $517 million and proceeds
and long-term credit ratings to the company’s securities as anfrom issuance of common stock (resulting from the exercise of
indicator of credit quality for fixed income investors. A securitystock options) were $496 million. The aggregate amount of these
rating is not a recommendation by the rating agency to buy, sellcash flows was used mainly to repurchase common stock of
or hold company securities. A credit rating agency may change$7,033 million, acquire receivables (excluding receivables related
or withdraw company ratings based on its assessment of theto sales) and equipment on operating leases that exceeded
company’s current and future ability to meet interest andcollections of receivables and the proceeds from sales of
principal repayment obligations. Each agency’s rating should beequipment on operating leases by $6,804 million, purchase
evaluated independently of any other rating. Lower credit ratingsproperty and equipment of $2,901 million and pay dividends of
generally result in higher borrowing costs, including costs of$2,355 million. Cash and cash equivalents decreased $490 million
derivative transactions, and reduced access to debt capitalover the three-year period.
markets. The senior long-term and short-term debt ratings and

The company has access to most global markets at outlook currently assigned to unsecured company securities by
reasonable costs and expects to have sufficient sources of global the rating agencies engaged by the company are as follows:
funding and liquidity to meet its funding needs. The company’s
exposures to receivables from customers in European countries Senior
experiencing economic strains are not significant. Sources of Long-Term Short-Term Outlook
liquidity for the company include cash and cash equivalents,

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. ....... A2 Prime-1 Stablemarketable securities, funds from operations, the issuance of
Standard & Poor’s ........................ A A-1 Stablecommercial paper and term debt, the securitization of retail

notes (both public and private markets) and committed and
Trade accounts and notes receivable primarily arise fromuncommitted bank lines of credit. The company’s commercial

sales of goods to independent dealers. Trade receivablespaper outstanding at October 31, 2015 and 2014 was
decreased by $227 million in 2015 due primarily to foreign$2,968 million and $2,633 million, respectively, while the total
currency translation and lower agriculture and turf shipmentcash and cash equivalents and marketable securities position
volumes. The ratio of trade accounts and notes receivable atwas $4,600 million and $5,002 million, respectively. The amount
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October 31 to fiscal year net sales was 12 percent in 2015 and agriculture applications. The total estimated purchase price, net
10 percent in 2014. Total worldwide agriculture and turf of cash acquired, is $325 million. The acquisitions are subject to
receivables decreased $355 million and construction and forestry customary closing conditions, including regulatory approvals,
receivables increased $128 million. The collection period for and are expected to close in the first half of 2016.
trade receivables averages less than 12 months. The percentage FINANCIAL SERVICES
of trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding The financial services operations rely on their ability to raise
12 months was 1 percent at both October 31, 2015 and 2014. substantial amounts of funds to finance their receivable and lease

Deere & Company’s stockholders’ equity was $6,743 million portfolios. Their primary sources of funds for this purpose are a
at October 31, 2015, compared with $9,063 million at combination of commercial paper, term debt, securitization of
October 31, 2014. The decrease of $2,320 million resulted from retail notes, equity capital and borrowings from Deere & Company.
an increase in treasury stock of $2,663 million, dividends The cash provided by operating activities and financing
declared of $800 million and a change in the cumulative activities was used primarily for investing activities. Cash flows
translation adjustment of $935 million, which were partially from the financial services’ operating activities, including
offset by net income attributable to Deere & Company of intercompany cash flows, were $1,582 million in 2015. Cash
$1,940 million and an increase in common stock of $150 million. used by investing activities totaled $1,235 million in 2015, due
EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS primarily to the cost of receivables (excluding trade and
The company’s equipment businesses are capital intensive and wholesale) and cost of equipment on operating leases exceeding
are subject to seasonal variations in financing requirements for collections of these receivables and the proceeds from sales of
inventories and certain receivables from dealers. The equipment equipment on operating leases by $2,056 million, partially offset
operations sell a significant portion of their trade receivables to by a decrease in trade receivables and wholesale notes of
financial services. To the extent necessary, funds provided from $657 million and proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash
operations are supplemented by external financing sources. sold, of $149 million. Cash used for financing activities totaled

$262 million in 2015, representing primarily a decrease inCash provided by operating activities of the equipment
borrowings from Deere & Company of $929 million andoperations during 2015, including intercompany cash flows, was
dividends paid of $680 million to Deere & Company, partially$3,055 million due primarily to net income adjusted for non-cash
offset by an increase in external borrowings of $1,346 million.provisions, a change in the retirement benefits and a decrease in
Cash and cash equivalents increased $44 million.trade receivables, partially offset by a decrease in accounts

payable and accrued expenses, and a change in accrued income Over the last three years, the operating activities, including
taxes payable/receivable. intercompany cash flows, have provided $4,147 million in cash.

In addition, an increase in total borrowings of $9,125 million,Over the last three years, these operating activities,
capital investment from Deere & Company of $216 million andincluding intercompany cash flows, have provided an aggregate
proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash sold, ofof $12,256 million in cash.
$149 million provided cash inflows. These amounts have been

Trade receivables held by the equipment operations used mainly to fund receivables (excluding trade and wholesale)
decreased by $221 million during 2015. The equipment and equipment on operating lease acquisitions, which exceeded
operations sell a significant portion of their trade receivables to collections and the proceeds from sales of equipment on
financial services (see previous consolidated discussion). operating leases by $10,415 million, fund an increase in trade

receivables and wholesale notes of $1,278 million, pay dividendsInventories decreased by $393 million in 2015 due primarily
to Deere & Company of $1,016 million and purchase marketableto lower agriculture and turf production volumes, lower sales
securities that exceeded proceeds from maturities and sales byand currency translation. Most of these inventories are valued on
$94 million. Cash and cash equivalents increased $518 millionthe last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. The ratios of inventories on a
over the three-year period.first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis (see Note 15), which approximates

current cost, to fiscal year cost of sales were 26 percent and Receivables and equipment on operating leases decreased by
23 percent at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. $1,410 million in 2015, compared with 2014. Total acquisition

volumes of receivables (excluding trade and wholesale notes) andTotal interest-bearing debt of the equipment operations was
cost of equipment on operating leases decreased 11 percent in$4,925 million at the end of 2015, compared with $5,077 million
2015, compared with 2014. The volumes of financing leases, retailat the end of 2014 and $5,951 million at the end of 2013. The
notes and revolving charge accounts decreased approximatelyratio of total debt to total capital (total interest-bearing debt and
26 percent, 19 percent and 1 percent, respectively, whilestockholders’ equity) at the end of 2015, 2014 and 2013 was
operating lease volumes increased 14 percent. During 2015, the42 percent, 36 percent and 37 percent, respectively.
amount of wholesale notes and trade receivables decreasedProperty and equipment cash expenditures for the 32 percent and 18 percent, respectively. At October 31, 2015 andequipment operations in 2015 were $688 million, compared with 2014, net receivables and leases administered, which include$1,045 million in 2014. Capital expenditures in 2016 are receivables administered but not owned, were $38,188 million andestimated to be $800 million. $39,629 million, respectively.

In November 2015, the company announced the signing of Total external interest-bearing debt of the financial servicesdefinitive purchase agreements to acquire Monosem, a European operations was $31,925 million at the end of 2015, comparedmarket leader for precision planters, and Precision Planting LLC., with $31,882 million at the end of 2014 and $28,524 million ata developer and distributor of retrofit components for precision the end of 2013. Total external borrowings have changed
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generally corresponding with the level of the receivable and The previous table does not include unrecognized tax
lease portfolio, the level of cash and cash equivalents, the benefit liabilities of approximately $229 million at October 31,
change in payables owed to Deere & Company and the change in 2015, since the timing of future payments is not reasonably
investment from Deere & Company. The financial services estimable at this time (see Note 8). For additional information
operations’ ratio of total interest-bearing debt to total regarding pension and other postretirement employee benefit
stockholder’s equity was to 7.6 to 1 at the end of 2015, 7.4 to 1 obligations, short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings and
at the end of 2014 and 7.3 to 1 at the end of 2013. lease obligations, see Notes 7, 18, 20 and 21, respectively.

The Capital Corporation has a revolving credit agreement to CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
utilize bank conduit facilities to securitize retail notes (see The preparation of the company’s consolidated financial
Note 13). At October 31, 2015, the facility had a total capacity, statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
or ‘‘financing limit,’’ of up to $3,500 million of secured accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates
financings at any time. The facility was renewed in November and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets,
2015 with a capacity of $3,880 million. After a three-year liabilities, revenues and expenses. Changes in these estimates
revolving period, unless the banks and Capital Corporation agree and assumptions could have a significant effect on the financial
to renew, Capital Corporation would liquidate the secured statements. The accounting policies below are those
borrowings over time as payments on the retail notes are management believes are the most critical to the preparation of
collected. At October 31, 2015, $1,848 million of short-term the company’s financial statements and require the most
securitization borrowings was outstanding under the agreement. difficult, subjective or complex judgments. The company’s other

accounting policies are described in the Notes to theDuring 2015, the financial services operations issued
Consolidated Financial Statements.$2,716 million and retired $2,685 million of retail note

securitization borrowings. During 2015, the financial services Sales Incentives
operations also issued $5,705 million and retired $4,649 million At the time a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company records
of long-term borrowings, which were primarily medium-term an estimate of the future sales incentive costs for allowances
notes. and financing programs that will be due when the dealer sells

the equipment to a retail customer. The estimate is based onOFF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
historical data, announced incentive programs, field inventoryAt October 31, 2015, the company had approximately
levels and retail sales volumes. The final cost of these programs$162 million of guarantees issued primarily to banks outside the
and the amount of accrual required for a specific sale are fullyU.S. related to third-party receivables for the retail financing of
determined when the dealer sells the equipment to the retailJohn Deere equipment. The company may recover a portion of
customer. This is due to numerous programs available at anyany required payments incurred under these agreements from
particular time and new programs that may be announced afterrepossession of the equipment collateralizing the receivables.
the company records the sale. Changes in the mix and types ofThe maximum remaining term of the receivables guaranteed at
programs affect these estimates, which are reviewed quarterly.October 31, 2015 was approximately four years.

The sales incentive accruals at October 31, 2015, 2014 andAGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
2013 were $1,463 million, $1,573 million and $1,531 million,

The payment schedule for the company’s contractual obligations respectively. The decrease in 2015 was due primarily to lower
at October 31, 2015 in millions of dollars is as follows: sales volumes. The increase in 2014 was due primarily to higher

sales incentive accruals related to the U.S. and Canada
Less More operations.
than 2&3 4&5 than

The estimation of the sales incentive accrual is impacted byTotal 1 year years years 5 years
many assumptions. One of the key assumptions is the historicalOn-balance-sheet
percent of sales incentive costs to retail sales from dealers. OverDebt*
the last five fiscal years, this percent has varied by an average ofEquipment operations .......$ 4,939 $ 465 $ 110 $ 753 $3,611
approximately plus or minus 1.0 percent, compared to theFinancial services**........... 31,672 10,291 12,322 5,447 3,612
average sales incentive costs to retail sales percent during thatTotal .......................... 36,611 10,756 12,432 6,200 7,223
period. Holding other assumptions constant, if this estimatedInterest relating to debt*** ... 4,471 618 988 712 2,153
cost experience percent were to increase or decreaseAccounts payable ................. 2,251 2,137 82 30 2
1.0 percent, the sales incentive accrual at October 31, 2015Capital leases ...................... 60 37 17 5 1

Off-balance-sheet would increase or decrease by approximately $70 million.
Purchase obligations ............ 2,361 2,300 21 15 25 Product WarrantiesOperating leases .................. 354 98 125 71 60

At the time a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company records
Total.................................$46,108 $15,946 $13,665 $7,033 $9,464 the estimated future warranty costs. The company generally

determines its total warranty liability by applying historical claims* Principal payments.
rate experience to the estimated amount of equipment that has** Securitization borrowings of $4,590 million classified as short-term on the
been sold and is still under warranty based on dealer inventoriesbalance sheet related to the securitization of retail notes are included in this

table based on the expected payment schedule (see Note 18). and retail sales. The historical claims rate is primarily determined
*** Includes projected payments related to interest rate swaps. by a review of five-year claims costs and consideration of current
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quality developments. Variances in claims experience and the to measure the benefit obligation at the beginning of the
type of warranty programs affect these estimates, which are period. The change does not affect the measurement of the
reviewed quarterly. total benefit obligations as the change in service and interest

costs offsets in the actuarial gains and losses recorded in otherThe product warranty accruals, excluding extended
comprehensive income.warranty unamortized premiums, at October 31, 2015, 2014 and

2013 were $807 million, $809 million and $822 million, The company changed to the new method to provide a
respectively. The changes were due primarily to lower sales more precise measure of interest and service costs by improving
volumes in 2015 and 2014. the correlation between the projected benefit cash flows and the

discrete spot yield curve rates. The company will account for thisEstimates used to determine the product warranty accruals
change as a change in estimate prospectively beginning in theare significantly affected by the historical percent of warranty
first quarter of 2016. The discount rates used to measure theclaims costs to sales. Over the last five fiscal years, this percent
2016 service costs are 4.3 percent and 5.0 percent for pensionhas varied by an average of approximately plus or minus
and OPEB, respectively. The discount rates used to measure the.09 percent, compared to the average warranty costs to sales
2016 interest costs are 3.4 percent and 3.5 percent for pensionpercent during that period. Holding other assumptions constant,
and OPEB, respectively. The previous method would have used aif this estimated cost experience percent were to increase or
discount rate for both service and interest costs of 4.1 percentdecrease .09 percent, the warranty accrual at October 31, 2015
for pension and 4.3 percent for OPEB. The decrease in the 2016would increase or decrease by approximately $25 million.
service and interest costs is approximately $175 million

Postretirement Benefit Obligations compared to the previous method.
Pension obligations and other postretirement employee benefit

The effect of hypothetical changes to selected assumptions(OPEB) obligations are based on various assumptions used by
on the company’s major U.S. retirement benefit plans would bethe company’s actuaries in calculating these amounts. These
as follows in millions of dollars:assumptions include discount rates, health care cost trend rates,

expected return on plan assets, compensation increases,
October 31, 2015 2016retirement rates, mortality rates and other factors. Actual results

Increase Increasethat differ from the assumptions and changes in assumptions
Percentage (Decrease) (Decrease)affect future expenses and obligations.

Assumptions Change PBO/APBO* Expense
The pension liabilities, net of pension assets, recognized on Pension

the balance sheet at October 31, 2015 and 2014 were Discount rate** ............. �/-.5 $ (654)/733 $ (32)/36
$1,022 million and $743 million, respectively. The pension assets, Expected return on assets �/-.5 (48)/48
net of pension liabilities, at October 31, 2013 were $40 million. OPEB
The increase in pension net liabilities in 2015 was due primarily Discount rate** ............. �/-.5 (356)/395 (15)/16

Expected return on assets �/-.5 (3)/3to interest on the liabilities and updated mortality assumptions
Health care costbased on the Society of Actuaries’ (SOA) RP-2015 base table and

trend rate** .............. �/-1.0 791/(606) 96/(74)MP 2015 projection scale, partially offset by return on plan
* Projected benefit obligation (PBO) for pension plans and accumulatedassets. The increase in pension net liabilities in 2014 was due

postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) for OPEB plans.primarily to decreases in discount rates and updated mortality
** Pretax impact on service cost, interest cost and amortization of gains orassumptions based on the SOA RP-2000 base table and mortality losses.

projection scale BB. The OPEB liabilities, net of OPEB assets, at
October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $5,395 million, Goodwill
$5,347 million and $4,769 million, respectively. The increase in Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually
OPEB net liabilities in 2015 was due primarily to interest on the and when events or circumstances change such that it is more
liabilities and a change in the health care cost trend, primarily likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is reduced
related to higher prescription drug costs, partially offset by the below its carrying amount. The end of the fiscal third quarter is
transition to a Medicare Advantage plan for certain retirees (see the annual measurement date. To test for goodwill impairment,
Note 7). The increase in 2014 was due primarily to the change in the carrying value of each reporting unit is compared with its fair
the mortality assumptions mentioned above and decreases in value. If the carrying value of the goodwill is considered
discount rates, partially offset by a change in the retiree medical impaired, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the
credit plan (see Note 7). carrying value exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill.

Beginning in 2016, the company will change the method An estimate of the fair value of the reporting unit is
used to estimate the service and interest cost components of determined through a combination of comparable market values
the net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit costs. for similar businesses and discounted cash flows. These
The new method uses the spot yield curve approach to estimate estimates can change significantly based on such factors as the
the service and interest costs by applying the specific spot rates reporting unit’s financial performance, economic conditions,
along the yield curve used to determine the benefit obligations interest rates, growth rates, pricing, changes in business
to relevant projected cash outflows. Prior to 2016, the service strategies and competition.
and interest costs were determined using a single weighted-
average discount rate based on hypothetical AA yield curves used
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Based on this testing, the company has not identified a other assumptions constant, if this estimated loss experience on
reporting unit for which the goodwill was impaired in 2015, the receivable portfolio were to increase or decrease .04 percent,
2014 and 2013. A 10 percent decrease in the estimated fair the allowance for credit losses at October 31, 2015 would
value of the company’s reporting units would have had no increase or decrease by approximately $14 million.
impact on the carrying value of goodwill at the annual Operating Lease Residual Values
measurement date in 2015. The carrying value of equipment on operating leases is affected
Allowance for Credit Losses by the estimated fair values of the equipment at the end of the
The allowance for credit losses represents an estimate of the lease (residual values). Upon termination of the lease, the
losses inherent in the company’s receivable portfolio. The level equipment is either purchased by the lessee or sold to a third
of the allowance is based on many quantitative and qualitative party, in which case the company may record a gain or a loss for
factors, including historical loss experience by product category, the difference between the estimated residual value and the
portfolio duration, delinquency trends, economic conditions and sales price. The residual values are dependent on current
credit risk quality. The adequacy of the allowance is assessed economic conditions and are reviewed when events or
quarterly. Different assumptions or changes in economic circumstances necessitate an evaluation. Changes in residual
conditions would result in changes to the allowance for credit value assumptions would affect the amount of depreciation
losses and the provision for credit losses. expense and the amount of investment in equipment on

operating leases.The total allowance for credit losses at October 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 was $198 million, $230 million and $240 million, The total operating lease residual values at October 31,
respectively. The allowance decreased in 2015 compared to 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $3,603 million, $2,786 million and
2014, and decreased in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily $2,115 million, respectively. The changes in 2015 and 2014 were
to foreign currency translation in both periods. due primarily to the increasing levels of operating leases.

The assumptions used in evaluating the company’s Estimates used in determining end of lease market values
exposure to credit losses involve estimates and significant for equipment on operating leases significantly impact the
judgment. The historical loss experience on the receivable amount and timing of depreciation expense. Hypothetically, if
portfolio represents one of the key assumptions involved in future market values for this equipment were to decrease
determining the allowance for credit losses. Over the last five 10 percent from the company’s present estimates, the total
fiscal years, this percent has varied by an average of impact would be to increase the company’s annual depreciation
approximately plus or minus .04 percent, compared to the for equipment on operating leases by approximately
average loss experience percent during that period. Holding $175 million.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT MARKET RISK INFORMATION for similarly rated borrowers. Cash flows for interest rate swaps
are projected and discounted using forward rates from the swapThe company is naturally exposed to various interest rate and
yield curve at the repricing dates. The net loss in these financialforeign currency risks. As a result, the company enters into
instruments’ fair values which would be caused by increasing thederivative transactions to manage certain of these exposures
interest rates by 10 percent from the market rates atthat arise in the normal course of business and not for the
October 31, 2015 would have been approximately $14 million.purpose of creating speculative positions or trading. The
The net loss from decreasing the interest rates by 10 percent atcompany’s financial services operations manage the relationship
October 31, 2014 would have been approximately $18 million.of the types and amounts of their funding sources to their

receivable and lease portfolio in an effort to diminish risk due to Foreign Currency Risk
interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations, while responding In the equipment operations, the company’s practice is to hedge
to favorable financing opportunities. Accordingly, from time to significant currency exposures. Worldwide foreign currency
time, these operations enter into interest rate swap agreements exposures are reviewed quarterly. Based on the equipment
to manage their interest rate exposure. The company also has operations’ anticipated and committed foreign currency cash
foreign currency exposures at some of its foreign and domestic inflows, outflows and hedging policy for the next twelve months,
operations related to buying, selling and financing in currencies the company estimates that a hypothetical 10 percent
other than the functional currencies. The company has entered strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to other currencies
into agreements related to the management of these foreign through 2016 would decrease the 2016 expected net cash
currency transaction risks. inflows by approximately $32 million. At October 31, 2014, a

hypothetical 10 percent weakening of the U.S. dollar underInterest Rate Risk
similar assumptions and calculations indicated a potentialQuarterly, the company uses a combination of cash flow models
approximate $16 million adverse effect on the 2015 net cashto assess the sensitivity of its financial instruments with interest
inflows.rate exposure to changes in market interest rates. The models

calculate the effect of adjusting interest rates as follows. Cash In the financial services operations, the company’s policy is
flows for financing receivables are discounted at the current to hedge the foreign currency risk if the currency of the
prevailing rate for each receivable portfolio. Cash flows for borrowings does not match the currency of the receivable
marketable securities are primarily discounted at the applicable portfolio. As a result, a hypothetical 10 percent adverse change
benchmark yield curve plus market credit spreads. Cash flows for in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to all other foreign
unsecured borrowings are discounted at the applicable currencies would not have a material effect on the financial
benchmark yield curve plus market credit spreads for similarly services cash flows.
rated borrowers. Cash flows for securitized borrowings are
discounted at the swap yield curve plus a market credit spread

29



MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used andFINANCIAL REPORTING
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating theThe management of Deere & Company is responsible for
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internalestablishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
control over financial reporting included obtaining anfinancial reporting. Deere & Company’s internal control system
understanding of internal control over financial reporting,was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testingpreparation and fair presentation of published financial
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internalstatements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also includedprinciples.
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems reasonable basis for our opinions.
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is aassurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’spresentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principal executive and principal financial officers, or personsprinciples.
performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s

Management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2015, reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
using the criteria set forth in Internal Control – Integrated reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
assessment, management believes that, as of October 31, 2015, reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
effective. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatThe Company’s independent registered public accounting
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation offirm has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the
financial statements in accordance with generally acceptedCompany’s internal control over financial reporting. This report
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of theappears below.
company are being made only in accordance with authorizationsDecember 18, 2015 of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ofREPORT OF INDEPENDENT unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’sREGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM assets that could have a material effect on the financial

Deere & Company: statements.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets Because of the inherent limitations of internal control overof Deere & Company and subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) as of financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion orOctober 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of improper management override of controls, materialconsolidated income, consolidated comprehensive income, misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented orchanges in consolidated stockholders’ equity, and consolidated detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation ofcash flows for each of the three years in the period ended the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reportingOctober 31, 2015. Our audits also included the financial to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls maystatement schedule listed in the Index under Part IV, Item 15(2). become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thatWe also have audited the Company’s internal control over the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures mayfinancial reporting as of October 31, 2015, based on criteria deteriorate.established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013)

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statementsissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, theTreadway Commission. The Company’s management is
financial position of the Company as of October 31, 2015 andresponsible for these financial statements and financial
2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows forstatement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control
each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2015, inover financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in theeffectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financialincluded in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basicControl Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presentsan opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.schedule and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all materialfinancial reporting based on our audits.
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as ofWe conducted our audits in accordance with the standards October 31, 2015, based on the criteria established in Internalof the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the CommitteeStates). Those standards require that we plan and perform the of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement and DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was Chicago, Illinois
maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial December 18, 2015
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
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DEERE & COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME
For the Years Ended October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In millions of dollars)

2015 2014 2013

Net Sales and Revenues
Net sales............................................................................................................................... .... $25,775.2 $32,960.6 $34,997.9
Finance and interest income ......................................................................................................... 2,381.1 2,282.1 2,115.1
Other income............................................................................................................................. 706.5 824.2 682.4

Total ............................................................................................................................... .. 28,862.8 36,066.9 37,795.4

Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales .............................................................................................................................. 20,143.2 24,775.8 25,667.3
Research and development expenses .............................................................................................. 1,425.1 1,452.0 1,477.3
Selling, administrative and general expenses ..................................................................................... 2,873.3 3,284.4 3,605.5
Interest expense ......................................................................................................................... 680.0 664.0 741.3
Other operating expenses ............................................................................................................. 961.1 1,093.3 820.6

Total ............................................................................................................................... .. 26,082.7 31,269.5 32,312.0

Income of Consolidated Group before Income Taxes ....................................................................... 2,780.1 4,797.4 5,483.4
Provision for income taxes ............................................................................................................ 840.1 1,626.5 1,945.9

Income of Consolidated Group..................................................................................................... 1,940.0 3,170.9 3,537.5
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates............................................................................. .9 (7.6) .1

Net Income ............................................................................................................................... 1,940.9 3,163.3 3,537.6
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests ............................................................. .9 1.6 .3

Net Income Attributable to Deere & Company ................................................................................ $ 1,940.0 $ 3,161.7 $ 3,537.3

Per Share Data
Basic ............................................................................................................................... ......... $ 5.81 $ 8.71 $ 9.18
Diluted ............................................................................................................................... ...... $ 5.77 $ 8.63 $ 9.09
Dividends declared ...................................................................................................................... $ 2.40 $ 2.22 $ 1.99
Average Shares Outstanding
Basic ............................................................................................................................... ......... 333.6 363.0 385.3
Diluted ............................................................................................................................... ...... 336.0 366.1 389.2

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEERE & COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In millions of dollars)

2015 2014 2013

Net Income ............................................................................................................................... . $ 1,940.9 $ 3,163.3 $ 3,537.6

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Income Taxes
Retirement benefits adjustment ................................................................................................... (7.7) (684.4) 1,950.0
Cumulative translation adjustment ................................................................................................ (935.1) (415.5) (70.9)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives .............................................................................................. (2.5) 2.8 10.7
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments ............................................................................................ (1.5) 6.9 (11.3)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Income Taxes ................................................................. (946.8) (1,090.2) 1,878.5

Comprehensive Income of Consolidated Group................................................................................. 994.1 2,073.1 5,416.1
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests....................................................... .5 1.3 .4

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Deere & Company.................................................................. $ 993.6 $ 2,071.8 $ 5,415.7

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEERE & COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As of October 31, 2015 and 2014
(In millions of dollars except per share amounts)

2015 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................................................................................ $ 4,162.2 $ 3,787.0
Marketable securities ............................................................................................................................... .... 437.4 1,215.1
Receivables from unconsolidated affiliates........................................................................................................ 33.3 30.2
Trade accounts and notes receivable – net ....................................................................................................... 3,051.1 3,277.6
Financing receivables – net ........................................................................................................................... 24,809.0 27,422.2
Financing receivables securitized – net ............................................................................................................ 4,834.6 4,602.3
Other receivables ............................................................................................................................... ......... 991.2 1,500.3
Equipment on operating leases – net .............................................................................................................. 4,970.4 4,015.5
Inventories ............................................................................................................................... ................. 3,817.0 4,209.7
Property and equipment – net ....................................................................................................................... 5,181.5 5,577.8
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates........................................................................................................... 303.5 303.2
Goodwill ............................................................................................................................... .................... 726.0 791.2
Other intangible assets – net......................................................................................................................... 63.6 68.8
Retirement benefits ............................................................................................................................... ...... 215.6 262.0
Deferred income taxes ............................................................................................................................... .. 2,767.3 2,776.6
Other assets ............................................................................................................................... ............... 1,583.9 1,496.9

Total Assets ............................................................................................................................... ............... $ 57,947.6 $ 61,336.4

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings ............................................................................................................................... .. $ 8,426.6 $ 8,019.2
Short-term securitization borrowings .............................................................................................................. 4,590.0 4,558.5
Payables to unconsolidated affiliates............................................................................................................... 80.6 101.0
Accounts payable and accrued expenses .......................................................................................................... 7,311.5 8,554.1
Deferred income taxes ............................................................................................................................... .. 160.8 160.9
Long-term borrowings ............................................................................................................................... .. 23,832.8 24,380.7
Retirement benefits and other liabilities ........................................................................................................... 6,787.7 6,496.5

Total liabilities ............................................................................................................................... ...... 51,190.0 52,270.9

Commitments and contingencies (Note 22)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value (authorized – 1,200,000,000 shares;

issued – 536,431,204 shares in 2015 and 2014), at paid-in amount................................................................... 3,825.6 3,675.4
Common stock in treasury, 219,743,893 shares in 2015 and 190,926,805 shares in 2014, at cost ............................... (15,497.6) (12,834.2)
Retained earnings ............................................................................................................................... ........ 23,144.8 22,004.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ............................................................................................... (4,729.4) (3,783.0)

Total Deere & Company stockholders’ equity..................................................................................................... 6,743.4 9,062.6
Noncontrolling interests ............................................................................................................................... 14.2 2.9

Total stockholders’ equity.......................................................................................................................... 6,757.6 9,065.5

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ...................................................................................................... $ 57,947.6 $ 61,336.4

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEERE & COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In millions of dollars)

2015 2014 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income ............................................................................................................................ $ 1,940.9 $ 3,163.3 $ 3,537.6
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for credit losses ...................................................................................................... 55.4 38.1 20.5
Provision for depreciation and amortization ............................................................................... 1,382.4 1,306.5 1,140.3
Impairment charges .............................................................................................................. 34.8 95.9 102.0
Share-based compensation expense ......................................................................................... 66.1 78.5 80.7
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated affiliates ..................................................................... (1.0) 9.3 9.1
Credit for deferred income taxes ............................................................................................. (18.4) (280.1) (172.6)
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Trade, notes and financing receivables related to sales ............................................................. 811.6 (749.0) (1,510.2)
Insurance receivables......................................................................................................... 333.4 (149.9) 263.4
Inventories ...................................................................................................................... (691.4) (297.9) (728.4)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ................................................................................ (503.6) (137.1) 217.1
Accrued income taxes payable/receivable ............................................................................... (137.6) 342.6 80.4
Retirement benefits........................................................................................................... 427.5 336.9 262.0

Other ............................................................................................................................... . 40.2 (231.2) (47.6)

Net cash provided by operating activities............................................................................ 3,740.3 3,525.9 3,254.3

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Collections of receivables (excluding receivables related to sales) ....................................................... 14,919.7 15,319.1 14,088.0
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities ............................................................. 860.7 1,022.5 843.9
Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases.................................................................... 1,049.4 1,091.5 936.7
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash sold........................................................................ 149.2 345.8 22.0
Cost of receivables acquired (excluding receivables related to sales) ................................................... (14,996.5) (17,240.4) (17,011.7)
Purchases of marketable securities .............................................................................................. (154.9) (614.6) (1,026.3)
Purchases of property and equipment.......................................................................................... (694.0) (1,048.3) (1,158.4)
Cost of equipment on operating leases acquired ............................................................................ (2,132.1) (1,611.0) (1,216.9)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired ............................................................................ (83.5)
Other ............................................................................................................................... ..... (60.2) (145.6) (214.5)

Net cash used for investing activities ................................................................................. (1,058.7) (2,881.0) (4,820.7)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase in total short-term borrowings........................................................................................ 501.6 89.2 2,749.4
Proceeds from long-term borrowings........................................................................................... 5,711.0 8,232.0 4,734.0
Payments of long-term borrowings ............................................................................................. (4,863.2) (5,209.1) (4,958.5)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .................................................................................... 172.1 149.5 174.5
Repurchases of common stock ................................................................................................... (2,770.7) (2,731.1) (1,531.4)
Dividends paid ........................................................................................................................ (816.3) (786.0) (752.9)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation ....................................................................... 18.5 30.8 50.7
Other ............................................................................................................................... ..... (72.1) (63.6) (59.3)

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities............................................................... (2,119.1) (288.3) 406.5

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents .................................................... (187.3) (73.6) 11.7

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents.................................................................. 375.2 283.0 (1,148.2)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ......................................................................... 3,787.0 3,504.0 4,652.2

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year .................................................................................. $ 4,162.2 $ 3,787.0 $ 3,504.0

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEERE & COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended October 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015
(In millions of dollars)

Deere & Company Stockholders

Accumulated
Total Other Non-

Stockholders’ Common Treasury Retained Comprehensive controlling
Equity Stock Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Interests

Balance October 31, 2012 ..................................... $ 6,862.0 $3,352.2 $ (8,813.8) $16,875.2 $(4,571.5) $ 19.9

Net income .......................................................... 3,537.6 3,537.3 .3
Other comprehensive income .................................. 1,878.5 1,878.4 .1
Repurchases of common stock................................. (1,531.4) (1,531.4)
Treasury shares reissued ......................................... 134.3 134.3
Dividends declared ................................................ (774.5) (766.6) (7.9)
Deconsolidation of variable interest entity.................. (10.6) (10.6)
Stock options and other shareholder transactions ....... 171.8 172.0 (.3) .1

Balance October 31, 2013 ..................................... 10,267.7 3,524.2 (10,210.9) 19,645.6 (2,693.1) 1.9

Net income .......................................................... 3,163.3 3,161.7 1.6
Other comprehensive loss ....................................... (1,090.2) (1,089.9) (.3)
Repurchases of common stock................................. (2,731.1) (2,731.1)
Treasury shares reissued ......................................... 107.8 107.8
Dividends declared ................................................ (803.7) (803.4) (.3)
Stock options and other shareholder transactions ....... 151.7 151.2 .5

Balance October 31, 2014 ..................................... 9,065.5 3,675.4 (12,834.2) 22,004.4 (3,783.0) 2.9

Net income .......................................................... 1,940.9 1,940.0 .9
Other comprehensive loss ....................................... (946.8) (946.4) (.4)
Repurchases of common stock................................. (2,770.7) (2,770.7)
Treasury shares reissued ......................................... 107.3 107.3
Dividends declared ................................................ (800.8) (799.5) (1.3)
Stock options and other shareholder transactions ....... 162.2 150.2 (.1) 12.1

Balance October 31, 2015 ..................................... $ 6,757.6 $3,825.6 $(15,497.6) $23,144.8 $(4,729.4) $ 14.2

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND CONSOLIDATION Accordingly, in these locations, sales are not recorded until a
retail customer has purchased the goods. In all cases, when a

Structure of Operations sale is recorded by the company, no significant uncertainty exists
The information in the notes and related commentary are surrounding the purchaser’s obligation to pay. No right of return
presented in a format which includes data grouped as follows: exists on sales of equipment. Service parts and certain

Equipment Operations – Includes the company’s agriculture attachments returns are estimable and accrued at the time a sale
and turf operations and construction and forestry operations is recognized. The company makes appropriate provisions based
with financial services reflected on the equity basis. on experience for costs such as doubtful receivables, sales

incentives and product warranty.Financial Services – Includes primarily the company’s
financing operations. Financing revenue is recorded over the lives of related

receivables using the interest method. Insurance premiumsConsolidated – Represents the consolidation of the
recorded in other income are generally recognized in proportionequipment operations and financial services. References to
to the costs expected to be incurred over the contract period.‘‘Deere & Company’’ or ‘‘the company’’ refer to the entire
Deferred costs on the origination of financing receivables areenterprise.
recognized as a reduction in finance revenue over the expected

Principles of Consolidation lives of the receivables using the interest method. Income and
The consolidated financial statements represent primarily the deferred costs on the origination of operating leases are
consolidation of all companies in which Deere & Company has a recognized on a straight-line basis over the scheduled lease
controlling interest. Certain variable interest entities (VIEs) are terms in finance revenue.
consolidated since the company has both the power to direct

Sales Incentivesthe activities that most significantly impact the VIEs’ economic
At the time a sale is recognized, the company records anperformance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to
estimate of the future sales incentive costs for allowances andreceive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIEs.
financing programs that will be due when a dealer sells theDeere & Company records its investment in each unconsolidated
equipment to a retail customer. The estimate is based onaffiliated company (generally 20 to 50 percent ownership) at its
historical data, announced incentive programs, field inventoryrelated equity in the net assets of such affiliate (see Note 10).
levels and retail sales volumes.Other investments (less than 20 percent ownership) are recorded

at cost. Product Warranties
Fiscal Year At the time a sale is recognized, the company records the
The company has historically and continues to use a 52/53 week estimated future warranty costs. These costs are usually
fiscal year ending on the last Sunday in the reporting period. The estimated based on historical warranty claims (see Note 22).
fiscal year ends for 2015, 2014 and 2013 were November 1,

Sales Taxes2015, November 2, 2014 and October 27, 2013, respectively.
The company collects and remits taxes assessed by differentFiscal year 2014 contained 53 weeks. For ease of presentation,
governmental authorities that are both imposed on andthe consolidated financial statements and notes continue to be
concurrent with revenue producing transactions between thedated October 31.
company and its customers. These taxes may include sales, use,

Variable Interest Entities value-added and some excise taxes. The company reports the
See Note 13 for VIEs related to securitization of financing collection of these taxes on a net basis (excluded from
receivables. revenues).
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Shipping and Handling Costs
The following are significant accounting policies in addition to Shipping and handling costs related to the sales of the
those included in other notes to the consolidated financial company’s equipment are included in cost of sales.
statements.

Advertising Costs
Use of Estimates in Financial Statements Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. This
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with expense was $157 million in 2015, $174 million in 2014 and
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires $183 million in 2013.
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

Depreciation and Amortizationreported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could
Property and equipment, capitalized software and otherdiffer from those estimates.
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulatedRevenue Recognition depreciation or amortization. These assets are depreciated overSales of equipment and service parts are recorded when the their estimated useful lives generally using the straight-linesales price is determinable and the risks and rewards of method. Equipment on operating leases is depreciated over theownership are transferred to independent parties based on the terms of the leases using the straight-line method. Property andsales agreements in effect. In the U.S. and most international equipment expenditures for new and revised products, increasedlocations, this transfer occurs primarily when goods are shipped. capacity and the replacement or major renewal of significantIn Canada and some other international locations, certain goods items are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs andare shipped to dealers on a consignment basis under which the minor renewals are generally charged to expense as incurred.risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the dealer.
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Securitization of Receivables value of derivatives that are designated and effective as fair
Certain financing receivables are periodically transferred to value hedges are recognized currently in net income. These
special purpose entities (SPEs) in securitization transactions (see changes are offset in net income to the extent the hedge was
Note 13). These securitizations qualify as collateral for secured effective by fair value changes related to the risk being hedged
borrowings and no gains or losses are recognized at the time of on the hedged item. Changes in the fair value of undesignated
securitization. The receivables remain on the balance sheet and hedges are recognized currently in the income statement. All
are classified as ‘‘Financing receivables securitized – net.’’ The ineffective changes in derivative fair values are recognized
company recognizes finance income over the lives of these currently in net income.
receivables using the interest method. All designated hedges are formally documented as to the

relationship with the hedged item as well as the risk-Receivables and Allowances
management strategy. Both at inception and on an ongoingAll financing and trade receivables are reported on the balance
basis the hedging instrument is assessed as to its effectiveness.sheet at outstanding principal adjusted for any charge-offs, the
If and when a derivative is determined not to be highly effectiveallowance for credit losses, and any deferred fees or costs on
as a hedge, the underlying hedged transaction is no longer likelyoriginated financing receivables. Allowances for credit losses are
to occur, the hedge designation is removed, or the derivative ismaintained in amounts considered to be appropriate in relation
terminated, the hedge accounting discussed above isto the receivables outstanding based on collection experience,
discontinued (see Note 27).economic conditions and credit risk quality. Receivables are

written-off to the allowance when the account is considered Foreign Currency Translation
uncollectible. The functional currencies for most of the company’s foreign

operations are their respective local currencies. The assets andImpairment of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Other
liabilities of these operations are translated into U.S. dollars atIntangible Assets
the end of the period exchange rates. The revenues andThe company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets
expenses are translated at weighted-average rates for the(including property and equipment, goodwill and other
period. The gains or losses from these translations are recordedintangible assets) when events or circumstances warrant such a
in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses fromreview. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are
transactions denominated in a currency other than thetested for impairment annually at the end of the third fiscal
functional currency of the subsidiary involved and foreignquarter each year, and more often if events or circumstances
exchange forward contracts are included in net income. Theindicate a reduction in the fair value below the carrying value.
pretax net gain (loss) for foreign exchange in 2015, 2014 andGoodwill is allocated and reviewed for impairment by reporting
2013 was $22 million, $(47) million and $(26) million,units, which consist primarily of the operating segments and
respectively.certain other reporting units. The goodwill is allocated to the

reporting unit in which the business that created the goodwill 3. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
resides. To test for goodwill impairment, the carrying value of

New Accounting Standards Adoptedeach reporting unit is compared with its fair value. If the carrying
In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)value of the goodwill or long-lived asset is considered impaired,
issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-04,a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying
Practical Expedient for the Measurement Date of an Employer’svalue exceeds the fair value of the asset (see Note 5).
Defined Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets, which amends

Derivative Financial Instruments Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 715, Compensation –
It is the company’s policy that derivative transactions are Retirement Benefits. This ASU provides a practical expedient for
executed only to manage exposures arising in the normal course entities whose fiscal year end does not coincide with a month
of business and not for the purpose of creating speculative end. The practical expedient permits defined benefit plan assets
positions or trading. The company’s financial services manage and obligations to be measured using the month end that is
the relationship of the types and amounts of their funding closest to the entity’s fiscal year end. Early adoption is
sources to their receivable and lease portfolio in an effort to permitted. The company early adopted this ASU in the fourth
diminish risk due to interest rate and foreign currency quarter of 2015. As a result, pension and other postretirement
fluctuations, while responding to favorable financing benefit plan assets and liabilities were measured as of
opportunities. The company also has foreign currency exposures October 31, 2015. The adoption did not have a material effect
at some of its foreign and domestic operations related to on the company’s consolidated financial statements.
buying, selling and financing in currencies other than the

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-07,functional currencies.
Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net

All derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent), which amends ASC 820,
sheet. Cash collateral received or paid is not offset against the Fair Value Measurement. This ASU removes the requirement to
derivative fair values on the balance sheet. Each derivative is categorize within the fair value hierarchy investments without
designated as either a cash flow hedge, a fair value hedge, or readily determinable fair values in entities that elect to measure
remains undesignated. Changes in the fair value of derivatives fair value using net asset value per share or its equivalent. The
that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges are ASU requires that these investments continue to be shown in
recorded in other comprehensive income and reclassified to the the investment disclosure amount to allow the disclosure to
income statement when the effects of the item being hedged reconcile to the investment amount presented in the balance
are recognized in the income statement. Changes in the fair
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sheet. The ASU was early adopted in the fourth quarter of fiscal customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement
year 2015 and was applied retrospectively (see pension and includes a software license. If an arrangement includes a
health care assets in Note 7). The adoption did not have a software license, the accounting for the license will be
material effect on the consolidated financial statements. consistent with licenses of other intangible assets. If the

arrangement does not include a license, the arrangement will beNew Accounting Standards to be Adopted
accounted for as a service contract. The effective date will beIn May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from
the first quarter of fiscal year 2017 and will be adoptedContracts with Customers (Topic 606), which supersedes the
prospectively. The adoption will not have a material effect on therevenue recognition requirements in ASC 605, Revenue
company’s consolidated financial statements.Recognition. This ASU is based on the principle that revenue is

recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-09,
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts, which amends
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or ASC 944, Financial Services – Insurance. This ASU requires
services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the disclosure of additional information about unpaid claims and
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash claims adjustment expenses, including a rollforward of the
flows arising from customer contracts, including significant liability of the claims adjustment liability. The effective date will
judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized be the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adoption will not
from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. In August have a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial
2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, Deferral of the statements.
Effective Date, which amends ASU No. 2014-09. As a result, the In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, Simplifying
effective date will be the first quarter of fiscal year 2019 with the Measurement of Inventory, which amends ASC 330,
early adoption permitted in the first quarter of fiscal year 2018. Inventory. This ASU simplifies the subsequent measurement of
The adoption will use one of two retrospective application inventory by using only the lower of cost or net realizable value.
methods. The company has not determined the potential effects The ASU does not apply to inventory measured using the last-in,
on the consolidated financial statements. first-out method. The effective date will be the first quarter of

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, fiscal year 2018 with early adoption permitted. The adoption will
Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an not have a material effect on the company’s consolidated
Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved financial statements.
after the Requisite Service Period, which amends ASC 718, In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-15,
Compensation – Stock Compensation. This ASU requires that a Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance
performance target that affects vesting and that could be Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements, which
achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a amends ASC 835-30, Interest – Imputation of Interest. This ASU
performance condition. Therefore, the performance target clarifies the presentation and subsequent measurement of debt
should not be reflected in estimating the grant-date fair value of issuance costs associated with lines of credit. These costs may
the award. Compensation cost should be recognized in the be presented as an asset and amortized ratably over the term of
period in which it becomes probable that the performance target the line of credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are
will be achieved and should represent the compensation cost outstanding borrowings on the arrangement. The effective date
attributable to the period(s) for which the requisite service has will be the first quarter of fiscal year 2017 and will be applied
already been rendered. The total compensation cost recognized retrospectively. The adoption will not have a material effect on
during and after the requisite service period should reflect the the company’s consolidated financial statements.
number of awards that are expected to vest and should be

4. DISPOSITIONSadjusted to reflect those awards that ultimately vest. The
In March 2015, the company closed the sale of all of the stockeffective date will be the first quarter of fiscal year 2017. The
of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, John Deere Insurance Companyadoption will not have a material effect on the company’s
and John Deere Risk Protection, Inc. (collectively the Cropconsolidated financial statements.
Insurance operations) to Farmers Mutual Hail Insurance CompanyIn April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03,
of Iowa. These operations were included in the company’sSimplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, which
financial services operating segment. At January 31, 2015, theamends ASC 835-30, Interest – Imputation of Interest. This ASU
total assets of $381 million and liabilities of $267 million wererequires that debt issuance costs related to borrowings be
classified as held for sale in the consolidated financialpresented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the
statements, which consisted of $13 million of cash and cashcarrying amount of the borrowing. This treatment is consistent
equivalents, $79 million of marketable securities, $265 million ofwith debt discounts. The ASU does not affect the amount or
other receivables, $4 million of other intangible assets-net andtiming of expenses for debt issuance costs. The effective date
$20 million of other assets. The related liabilities held for salewill be the first quarter of fiscal year 2017 and will be applied
consisted of accounts payable and accrued expenses. The totalretrospectively. The adoption will not have a material effect on
amount of proceeds from the sale was approximatelythe company’s consolidated financial statements.
$154 million, including $5 million of cash and cash equivalents

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05, sold, with a gain recorded in other income of $42 million pretax
Customer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing and $40 million after-tax. The tax expense was partially offset by
Arrangement, which amends ASC 350-40, Intangibles-Goodwill a change in a valuation allowance on a capital loss carryforward.
and Other-Internal-Use Software. This ASU provides guidance to
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The company provided certain business services for a fee during 5. SPECIAL ITEMS
a transition period.

Impairments
In May 2014, the company closed the sale of the stock and In the fourth quarter of 2014, the company recorded non-cash

certain assets of the entities that compose the company’s Water charges in cost of sales for the impairment of long-lived assets
operations to FIMI Opportunity Funds. The sale was the result of of $18 million and other assets of $16 million pretax and after-
the company’s intention to invest its resources in growing core tax. The assets are part of the company’s agriculture and turf
businesses. At April 30, 2014, the total assets of $85 million and operations in China. The impairment is the result of a decline in
liabilities of $50 million were classified as held for sale in the forecasted financial performance that indicated it was probable
consolidated financial statements, which consisted of $57 million the future cash flows would not cover the carrying amount of
of trade receivables, $10 million of other receivables, $49 million assets used to manufacture agricultural equipment in that
of inventories and $5 million of other assets less a $36 million country (see Note 26).
asset impairment. The related liabilities held for sale consisted of

In 2014, the company recorded non-cash charges ofaccounts payable and accrued expenses of $47 million and
$62 million pretax, or $30 million after-tax, related to the Waterretirement benefits and other liabilities of $3 million. The total
operations. In the first quarter, a $26 million pretax and after-taxamount of proceeds from the sale was approximately $35 million
loss was recorded in cost of sales for the impairment of long-with a loss recorded in other operating expenses of $10 million
lived assets. In the second quarter, an additional non-cashpretax and after-tax in addition to the impairments recorded (see
charge of $36 million pretax, or $4 million after-tax, wasNote 5). The company provided certain business services for a
recorded in other operating expenses for an impairment to writefee during a transition period.
the Water operations down to fair value less costs to sell. The

In December 2013, the company closed the sale of tax benefits recognized resulted primarily from a change in
60 percent of its subsidiary John Deere Landscapes, LLC valuation allowances of the Water operations. These operations
(Landscapes) to a private equity investment firm affiliated with were included in the company’s agriculture and turf operating
Clayton, Dubilier & Rice, LLC (CD&R). At October 31, 2013, the segment (see Note 26).
total assets of $505 million and liabilities of $120 million for

In 2013, the company recorded a non-cash charge for thethese operations were classified as held for sale in the
impairment of long-lived assets of $57 million pretax, orconsolidated financial statements and written down to realizable
$51 million after-tax. This consists of $50 million pretax, orvalue, which consisted of $153 million of trade receivables,
$44 million after-tax, in the third quarter and $7 million pretax$219 million of inventories, $37 million of property and
and after-tax in the fourth quarter, related to the company’sequipment, $106 million of goodwill, $25 million of other
Water operations, which were included in the agriculture andintangible assets and $10 million of other assets less a
turf operating segment. The total pretax impairment loss$45 million asset impairment. The related liabilities held for sale
consisted of $50 million recorded in cost of sales and $7 millionconsisted of accounts payable and accrued expenses. The total
in selling, administrative and general expenses. The impairmentsamount of proceeds from the sale at closing was approximately
were due to a decline in the forecasted financial performance$305 million with no significant gain or loss, which consisted of
and a review of strategic options for the business (see Note 26).$174 million equity contribution and third party debt raised by

Landscapes. In the fourth quarter of 2013, the company recorded a
non-cash charge of $45 million pretax and after-tax in otherThe equity contribution was in the form of newly issued
operating expenses for an impairment to write the Landscapescumulative convertible participating preferred units representing
operations down to realizable value. These operations were60 percent of the voting rights (on an as converted basis), which
included in the agriculture and turf operating segment (seerank senior to the company’s investment in Landscapes common
Note 4).stock as to dividends. The preferred units had an initial

liquidation preference of $174 million and accrue dividends at a 6. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
rate of 12 percent per annum. The liquidation preference is For purposes of the statement of consolidated cash flows, the
subject to the company’s rights under the stockholders company considers investments with purchased maturities of
agreement. Due to preferred dividend payment in additional three months or less to be cash equivalents. Substantially all of
preferred shares over the first two years, CD&R’s ownership the company’s short-term borrowings, excluding the current
increased over the two-year period. maturities of long-term borrowings, mature or may require

The company initially retained 40 percent of the payment within three months or less.
Landscapes business in the form of common stock. As of January The equipment operations sell a significant portion of their
2014, the company deconsolidated Landscapes and began trade receivables to financial services. These intercompany cash
reporting the results as an equity investment in unconsolidated flows are eliminated in the consolidated cash flows.
affiliates. Due to the company’s continuing involvement through

All cash flows from the changes in trade accounts andits initial 40 percent interest, Landscapes’ historical operating
notes receivable (see Note 12) are classified as operatingresults are presented in continuing operations. Landscapes was
activities in the statement of consolidated cash flows as theserebranded to SiteOne Landscapes Supply, Inc. during 2015.
receivables arise from sales to the company’s customers. Cash
flows from financing receivables that are related to sales to the
company’s customers (see Note 12) are also included in
operating activities. The remaining financing receivables are
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related to the financing of equipment sold by independent The components of net periodic postretirement benefits
dealers and are included in investing activities. cost and the assumptions related to the cost consisted of the

following in millions of dollars and in percents:The company had the following non-cash operating and
investing activities that were not included in the statement of 2015 2014 2013
consolidated cash flows. The company transferred inventory to

Health care and life insuranceequipment on operating leases of $674 million, $794 million and Service cost ......................................... $ 46 $ 44 $ 58$659 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The company Interest cost ........................................ 259 267 255
also had accounts payable related to purchases of property and Expected return on plan assets................ (55) (72) (84)
equipment of $89 million, $128 million and $198 million at Amortization of actuarial loss .................. 91 33 141
October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amortization of prior service credit ........... (77) (3) (8)

Settlements/curtailments ....................... 1 (1)Cash payments for interest and income taxes consisted of
Net cost ............................................. $ 265 $ 268 $ 362the following in millions of dollars:
Weighted-average assumptions2015 2014 2013
Discount rates ..................................... 4.2% 4.7% 3.8%

Interest: Expected long-term rates of return .......... 7.0% 7.2% 7.5%
Equipment operations......................... $ 471 $ 506 $ 511
Financial services ............................... 443 454 502 The previous pension cost in net income and other
Intercompany eliminations ................... (253) (268) (247) changes in plan assets and benefit obligations in other

comprehensive income in millions of dollars were as follows:Consolidated ....................................... $ 661 $ 692 $ 766

Income taxes: 2015 2014 2013
Equipment operations......................... $ 828 $ 1,640 $ 1,863

PensionsFinancial services ............................... 190 333 270
Net cost ............................................. $ 247 $ 164 $ 213Intercompany eliminations ................... (117) (253) (179)
Retirement benefit adjustments included

Consolidated ....................................... $ 901 $ 1,720 $ 1,954 in other comprehensive (income) loss:
Net actuarial (gain) loss................... 361 940 (1,481)
Prior service (credit) cost ................. 66 (26)7. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
Amortization of actuarial loss ........... (223) (177) (265)The company has several defined benefit pension plans and Amortization of prior service cost ...... (25) (25) (12)

postretirement health care and life insurance plans covering its Settlements/curtailments................. (11) (9) (2)
U.S. employees and employees in certain foreign countries. The Total (gain) loss recognized in
company uses an October 31 measurement date for these plans. other comprehensive

(income) loss .......................... 168 729 (1,786)The components of net periodic pension cost and the
Total recognized in comprehensiveassumptions related to the cost consisted of the following in (income) loss .................................... $ 415 $ 893 $(1,573)

millions of dollars and in percents:

2015 2014 2013 The previous postretirement benefits cost in net income
and other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations inPensions
other comprehensive income in millions of dollars were asService cost ......................................... $ 282 $ 244 $ 273
follows:Interest cost......................................... 474 480 439

Expected return on plan assets ................ (769) (776) (778)
2015 2014 2013Amortization of actuarial loss................... 223 177 265

Amortization of prior service cost ............. 25 25 12 Health care and life insurance
Other postemployment benefits ............... 1 5 Net cost ............................................. $ 265 $ 268 $ 362
Settlements/curtailments ........................ 11 9 2 Retirement benefit adjustments included

in other comprehensive (income) loss:Net cost ............................................. $ 247 $ 164 $ 213
Net actuarial (gain) loss................... (141) 748 (1,165)

Weighted-average assumptions Prior service credit ......................... (3) (370) (2)
Discount rates ...................................... 4.0% 4.5% 3.8% Amortization of actuarial loss ........... (91) (33) (141)
Rate of compensation increase ................ 3.8% 3.8% 3.9% Amortization of prior service credit .... 77 3 8
Expected long-term rates of return ........... 7.3% 7.5% 7.8% Settlements/curtailments................. (2) 1

Total (gain) loss recognized in
other comprehensive
(income) loss .......................... (160) 349 (1,300)

Total recognized in comprehensive
(income) loss .................................... $ 105 $ 617 $ (938)
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The benefit plan obligations, funded status and the The amounts recognized at October 31 in millions of
assumptions related to the obligations at October 31 in millions dollars consist of the following:
of dollars follow:

Health Care
andHealth Care

Pensions Life Insuranceand
Pensions Life Insurance 2015 2014 2015 2014

2015 2014 2015 2014 Amounts recognized in
balance sheetChange in benefit obligations

Noncurrent asset........................... $ 216 $ 262Beginning of year balance............ $(12,190) $(10,968) $(6,304) $(5,926)
Current liability ............................. (44) (51) $ (20) $ (21)Service cost .............................. (282) (244) (46) (44)
Noncurrent liability ........................ (1,194) (954) (5,375) (5,326)Interest cost ............................. (474) (480) (259) (267)

Actuarial gain (loss) .................... (174) (1,306) 172 (757) Total........................................... $(1,022) $ (743) $(5,395) $(5,347)
Amendments............................. (66) 3 370

Amounts recognized inBenefits paid............................. 781 675 344 336
accumulated otherHealth care subsidies .................. (20) (22)
comprehensive income – pretaxOther postemployment benefits .... (1) (5)

Net actuarial loss .......................... $ 4,393 $ 4,266 $ 1,442 $ 1,675Settlements/curtailments............. 2 2 1
Prior service cost (credit) ................. 83 42 (334) (407)Foreign exchange and other......... 218 136 25 6
Total........................................... $ 4,476 $ 4,308 $ 1,108 $ 1,268End of year balance .................... (12,186) (12,190) (6,084) (6,304)

Change in plan assets (fair value)
The total accumulated benefit obligations for all pensionBeginning of year balance............ 11,447 11,008 957 1,157

Actual return on plan assets ......... 582 1,132 24 81 plans at October 31, 2015 and 2014 was $11,508 million and
Employer contribution................. 83 87 48 51 $11,425 million, respectively.
Benefits paid............................. (781) (675) (344) (336)

The accumulated benefit obligations and fair value of planSettlements/curtailments............. (2) (2)
assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations inForeign exchange and other......... (165) (103) 4 4
excess of plan assets were $7,254 million and $6,669 million,End of year balance .................... 11,164 11,447 689 957
respectively, at October 31, 2015 and $1,381 million and

Funded status .......................... $ (1,022) $ (743) $(5,395) $(5,347) $916 million, respectively, at October 31, 2014. The projected
Weighted-average assumptions benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for pension
Discount rates ........................... 4.1% 4.0% 4.3% 4.2% plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets
Rate of compensation increase ..... 3.8% 3.8% were $8,196 million and $6,958 million, respectively, at

October 31, 2015 and $8,213 million and $7,208 million,In the fourth quarter of 2015, the company decided to
respectively, at October 31, 2014.transition Medicare eligible wage and certain Medicare eligible

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive incomesalaried retirees to a Medicare Advantage plan offered by a
that are expected to be amortized as net expense (income)private insurance company. This transition, which will take effect
during fiscal 2016 in millions of dollars follow:in January 2016, will not affect the participants’ level of benefits

and is expected to result in future cost savings for the company.
Health Care

In the fourth quarter of 2015 and 2014, the company and
updated mortality assumptions based on tables issued by the Pensions Life Insurance
Society of Actuaries. Net actuarial loss..................................... $ 208 $ 75

Prior service cost (credit) ........................... 16 (78)For Medicare eligible salaried retirees that primarily retire
after July 1, 1993 and are eligible for postretirement medical Total ..................................................... $ 224 $ (3)
benefits, the company’s postretirement benefit plan consists of
annual Retiree Medical Credits (RMCs). The RMC is a monetary Actuarial gains and losses are recorded in accumulated
amount provided to the retirees annually to assist with their other comprehensive income (loss). To the extent unamortized
medical costs. In October 2014, the RMC plan was modified to gains and losses exceed 10% of the higher of the market-related
change the annual cost sharing provisions. Beginning in 2015, value of assets or the benefit obligation, the excess is amortized
the annual RMC amount did not increase and the rate of future as a component of net periodic cost over the remaining service
changes will continue to be set each year by the company. period of the active participants. For plans in which all or almost

all of the plan’s participants are inactive, the amortization
period is the remaining life expectancy of the inactive
participants.

The company expects to contribute approximately
$73 million to its pension plans and approximately $25 million
to its health care and life insurance plans in 2016, which are
primarily direct benefit payments for unfunded plans.
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The benefits expected to be paid from the benefit plans, determined using a single weighted-average discount rate. The
which reflect expected future years of service, are as follows in change does not affect the measurement of the total benefit
millions of dollars: obligations as the change in service and interest costs offsets in

the actuarial gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive
Health Care income. The new method provides a more precise measure of

and interest and service costs by improving the correlation betweenPensions Life Insurance* the projected benefit cash flows and the discrete spot yield
2016 ................................................... $ 697 $ 317 curve rates. The company will account for this change as a
2017 ................................................... 688 333 change in estimate prospectively beginning in the first quarter of
2018 ................................................... 685 339 2016. See ‘‘Postretirement Benefit Obligations’’ in Critical2019 ................................................... 690 342 Accounting Policies for additional details.2020 ................................................... 694 344
2021 to 2025 ........................................ 3,484 1,766 Fair value measurement levels in the following tables are

defined in Note 26.* Net of prescription drug group benefit subsidy under Medicare Part D.

The fair values of the pension plan assets at October 31,The annual rates of increase in the per capita cost of 2015 follow in millions of dollars:covered health care benefits (the health care cost trend rates)
used to determine accumulated postretirement benefit Total Level 1 Level 2
obligations were based on the trends for medical and Cash and short-term investments ................ $ 867 $ 378 $ 489prescription drug claims for pre- and post-65 age groups due to Equity:
the effects of Medicare. At October 31, 2015, the weighted- U.S. equity securities and funds .............. 3,075 3,053 22
average composite trend rates for these obligations were International equity securities ................. 1,802 1,781 21
assumed to be a .8 percent increase from 2015 to 2016, Fixed Income:
followed by an increase of 7.9 percent from 2016 to 2017, Government and agency securities ........... 386 197 189

Corporate debt securities ....................... 751 1 750gradually decreasing to 4.8 percent from 2024 to 2025 and all
Mortgage-backed securities.................... 83 83future years. The small estimated increase from 2015 to 2016
Fixed income funds............................... 26 26resulted from the transition to the Medicare Advantage plan in

Real estate ............................................. 133 130 3January 2016. The obligations at October 31, 2014 and the cost
Derivative contracts – assets* .................... 190 25 165in 2015 assumed a 6.2 percent increase from 2014 to 2015, Derivative contracts – liabilities** ............... (26) (4) (22)gradually decreasing to 5.0 percent from 2022 to 2023 and all Receivables, payables and other.................. 4 3 1

future years. An increase of one percentage point in the Securities lending collateral ....................... 745 92 653
assumed health care cost trend rate would increase the Securities lending liability .......................... (745) (92) (653)
accumulated postretirement benefit obligations by $807 million Securities sold short ................................. (470) (466) (4)
and the aggregate of service and interest cost component of net Total of Level 1 and Level 2 assets........... 6,821 $5,124 $1,697
periodic postretirement benefits cost for the year by $45 million.

Investments at net asset value***:A decrease of one percentage point would decrease the
Short-term investments ......................... 195obligations by $619 million and the cost by $34 million.
U.S. equity funds.................................. 33

The discount rate assumptions used to determine the International equity funds ...................... 540
postretirement obligations at October 31, 2015 and 2014 were Corporate debt funds ............................ 26

Fixed income funds............................... 495based on hypothetical AA yield curves represented by a series of
Real estate.......................................... 501annualized individual discount rates. These discount rates
Hedge funds ....................................... 625represent the rates at which the company’s benefit obligations
Private equity/venture capital ................. 1,604could effectively be settled at the October 31 measurement
Other investments ................................ 324dates.

Total net assets ..................................... $11,164Beginning in 2016, the company will change the method
* Includes contracts for interest rates of $137 million, foreign currency ofused to estimate the service and interest cost components of

$17 million, equity of $30 million and other of $6 million.the net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit costs. ** Includes contracts for interest rates of $7 million, foreign currency of
The new method uses the spot yield curve approach to estimate $15 million and other of $4 million.

*** Investments are measured at fair value using the net asset value per sharethe service and interest costs by applying the specific spot rates
practical expedient, and therefore, are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.along the yield curve used to determine the benefit obligations

to relevant projected cash outflows. Previously, those costs were
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The fair values of the health care assets at October 31, The fair values of the pension plan assets at October 31,
2015 follow in millions of dollars: 2014 follow in millions of dollars:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2

Cash and short-term investments ............ $ 35 $ 25 $ 10 Cash and short-term investments ................ $ 977 $ 426 $ 551
Equity: Equity:

U.S. equity securities and funds........... 229 229 U.S. equity securities and funds ............... 3,088 3,088
International equity securities ............. 39 39 International equity securities and funds.... 2,046 2,046

Fixed Income: Fixed Income:
Government and agency securities ....... 84 78 6 Government and agency securities ........... 434 412 22
Corporate debt securities ................... 35 35 Corporate debt securities ....................... 322 1 321
Mortgage-backed securities ................ 13 13 Mortgage-backed securities .................... 96 11 85
Fixed income funds ........................... 1 1 Fixed income funds ............................... 127 127

Real estate ......................................... 4 4 Real estate ............................................. 132 132
Derivative contracts – assets*................. 4 1 3 Derivative contracts – assets* ..................... 322 14 308
Receivables, payables and other .............. 1 1 Derivative contracts – liabilities** ................ (39) (9) (30)
Securities lending collateral ................... 65 9 56 Receivables, payables and other .................. 1 1
Securities lending liability ...................... (65) (9) (56) Securities lending collateral ........................ 847 847
Securities sold short ............................. (10) (10) Securities lending liability........................... (847) (847)

Securities sold short ................................. (477) (477)Total of Level 1 and Level 2 assets ....... 435 $ 368 $ 67
Total of Level 1 and Level 2 assets ........ 7,029 $5,771 $1,258

Investments at net asset value**:
Short-term investments ..................... 4 Investments at net asset value***:
International equity funds .................. 103 Short-term investments.......................... 108
Fixed income funds ........................... 47 U.S. equity funds .................................. 38
Real estate funds.............................. 10 International equity funds....................... 382
Hedge funds.................................... 50 Fixed income funds ............................... 957
Private equity/venture capital.............. 34 Real estate funds .................................. 442
Other investments ............................ 6 Hedge funds........................................ 593

Private equity/venture capital .................. 1,578Total net assets .................................. $ 689
Other investments ................................ 320

* Includes contracts for interest rates of $2 million, foreign currency of
Total net assets ...................................... $11,447$1 million and equity of $1 million.

** Investments are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share * Includes contracts for interest rates of $246 million, foreign currency of
practical expedient, and therefore, are not classified in the fair value hierarchy. $61 million, equity of $11 million and other of $4 million.

** Includes contracts for interest rates of $6 million, foreign currency of
$25 million and other of $8 million.

*** Investments are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share
practical expedient, and therefore, are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.
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The fair values of the health care assets at October 31, their proportionate share of the limited partnership’s fair value
2014 follow in millions of dollars: that is determined by the general partner. The general partner

values these investments using a combination of NAV, an income
Total Level 1 Level 2 approach (primarily estimated cash flows discounted over the

Cash and short-term investments............. $ 52 $ 37 $ 15 expected holding period), or market approach (primarily the
Equity: valuation of similar securities and properties). Real estate

U.S. equity securities and funds ........... 310 310 investment trusts are primarily valued at the closing prices in the
International equity securities .............. 57 57 active markets in which the investment trades. Real estate

Fixed Income: investment funds and other investments are primarily valued atGovernment and agency securities ........ 164 159 5 NAV, based on the fair value of the underlying securities.Corporate debt securities .................... 33 33
Mortgage-backed securities ................ 13 13 Interest Rate, Foreign Currency and Other Derivative
Fixed income funds ........................... 1 1 Instruments – The derivatives are valued using either an income

Real estate.......................................... 5 5 approach (discounted cash flow) using market observable inputs,
Derivative contracts – assets* ................. 5 5 including swap curves and both forward and spot exchange
Derivative contracts – liabilities** ............ (1) (1) rates, or a market approach (closing prices in the active marketReceivables, payables and other............... 1 1 in which the derivative instrument trades).Securities lending collateral .................... 126 126
Securities lending liability ....................... (126) (126) The primary investment objective for the pension and health
Securities sold short.............................. (13) (13) care plans assets is to maximize the growth of these assets to

support the projected obligations to the beneficiaries over a longTotal of Level 1 and Level 2 assets........ 627 $ 557 $ 70
period of time, and to do so in a manner that is consistent withInvestments at net asset value***: the company’s risk tolerance. The asset allocation policy is theShort-term investments ...................... 3
most important decision in managing the assets and it isInternational equity funds ................... 121
reviewed regularly. The asset allocation policy considers the long-Fixed income funds ........................... 69
term asset class risk/return expectations since the obligations areReal estate funds .............................. 12
long-term in nature. The current target allocations for pensionHedge funds .................................... 72

Private equity/venture capital .............. 44 assets are approximately 49 percent for equity securities,
Other investments............................. 9 24 percent for debt securities, 5 percent for real estate and

22 percent for other investments. The target allocations forTotal net assets .................................. $ 957
health care assets are approximately 53 percent for equity* Includes contracts for interest rates of $3 million and foreign currency of
securities, 28 percent for debt securities, 4 percent for real estate$2 million.
and 15 percent for other investments. The allocation percentages** Includes contracts for foreign currency of $1 million.

*** Investments are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share above include the effects of combining derivatives with other
practical expedient, and therefore, are not classified in the fair value hierarchy. investments to manage asset allocations and exposures to

interest rates and foreign currency exchange. The assets are wellFair values are determined as follows:
diversified and are managed by professional investment firms as

Cash and Short-Term Investments – Includes accounts well as by investment professionals who are company employees.
that are valued based on the account value, which approximates As a result of the company’s diversified investment policy, there
fair value, and investment funds that are valued on the fund’s were no significant concentrations of risk.
net asset value (NAV) based on the fair value of the underlying

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assetssecurities. Also included are securities that are valued using a
reflects management’s expectations of long-term average ratesmarket approach (matrix pricing model) in which all significant
of return on funds invested to provide for benefits included ininputs are observable or can be derived from or corroborated by
the projected benefit obligations. A market related value of planobservable market data.
assets is used to calculate the expected return on assets. The

Equity Securities and Funds – The values are determined market related value recognizes changes in the fair value ofprimarily by closing prices in the active market in which the pension plan assets systematically over a five-year period. Theequity investment trades, or the fund’s NAV, based on the fair market related value of the health care and life insurance planvalue of the underlying securities. assets equal fair value. The expected return is based on the
Fixed Income Securities and Funds – The securities are outlook for inflation and for returns in multiple asset classes,

valued using either a market approach (matrix pricing model) in while also considering historical returns, asset allocation and
which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived from investment strategy. The company’s approach has emphasized
or corroborated by observable market data such as interest the long-term nature of the return estimate such that the return
rates, yield curves, volatilities, credit risk and prepayment speeds, assumption is not changed significantly unless there are
or they are valued using the closing prices in the active market in fundamental changes in capital markets that affect the
which the fixed income investment trades. Fixed income funds company’s expectations for returns over an extended period of
are valued using the NAV, based on the fair value of the time (i.e., 10 to 20 years). The average annual return of the
underlying securities or closing prices in the active market in company’s U.S. pension fund was approximately 8.0 percent
which the investment trades. during the past ten years and approximately 9.0 percent during

the past 20 years. Since return premiums over inflation and totalReal Estate, Venture Capital, Private Equity, Hedge
returns for major asset classes vary widely even over ten-yearFunds and Other – The investments, which are structured as
periods, recent history is not necessarily indicative oflimited partnerships, are valued at estimated fair value based on
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long-term future expected returns. The company’s systematic A comparison of the statutory and effective income tax
methodology for determining the long-term rate of return for provision and reasons for related differences in millions of
the company’s investment strategies supports the long-term dollars follow:
expected return assumptions.

2015 2014 2013
The company has created certain Voluntary Employees’

U.S. federal income tax provision at aBeneficiary Association trusts (VEBAs) for the funding of statutory rate of 35 percent .................. $ 973 $1,679 $1,919postretirement health care benefits. The future expected asset Increase (decrease) resulting from:
returns for these VEBAs are lower than the expected return on State and local income taxes, net of federal
the other pension and health care plan assets due to investment income tax benefit ................................ 23 75 87
in a higher proportion of liquid securities. These assets are in German branch deferred tax write-off ........... 56
addition to the other postretirement health care plan assets that Differences in taxability of

foreign (earnings) losses ......................... (449) (305) 43have been funded under Section 401(h) of the U.S. Internal
Nondeductible impairment charges .............. 32 29Revenue Code and maintained in a separate account in the
Research and business tax credits ................ (76) (99) (56)company’s pension plan trust.
Tax rates on foreign earnings...................... (36) (71) (34)

The company has defined contribution plans related to Valuation allowance on deferred taxes .......... 384 454 (14)
employee investment and savings plans primarily in the U.S. The Other – net ............................................. 21 (138) (84)
company’s contributions and costs under these plans were Provision for income taxes ....................... $ 840 $1,627 $1,946
$185 million in 2015, $184 million in 2014 and $178 million in
2013. The contribution rate varies primarily based on the

At October 31, 2015, accumulated earnings in certaincompany’s performance in the prior year and employee
subsidiaries outside the U.S. totaled $5,282 million for which noparticipation in the plans.
provision for U.S. income taxes or foreign withholding taxes has

8. INCOME TAXES been made, because it is expected that such earnings will be
The provision for income taxes by taxing jurisdiction and by reinvested outside the U.S. indefinitely. Determination of the
significant component consisted of the following in millions of amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability on these
dollars: unremitted earnings is not practicable. At October 31, 2015, the

amount of cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities
2015 2014 2013 held by these foreign subsidiaries was $1,588 million.

Current: Deferred income taxes arise because there are certain itemsU.S.: that are treated differently for financial accounting than forFederal ............................................ $ 377 $1,217 $1,405
income tax reporting purposes. An analysis of the deferredState .............................................. 32 126 145
income tax assets and liabilities at October 31 in millions ofForeign............................................... 449 564 569
dollars follows:Total current ................................. 858 1,907 2,119

2015 2014Deferred:
U.S.: Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Federal ............................................ 21 (189) (117) Tax Tax Tax Tax
State .............................................. 4 (11) (11) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Foreign............................................... (43) (80) (45)
Other postretirement

Total deferred ............................... (18) (280) (173) benefit liabilities ................. $1,972 $1,968
Tax over book depreciation....... $ 574 $ 542Provision for income taxes ....................... $ 840 $1,627 $1,946
Accrual for sales allowances...... 618 654
Lease transactions .................. 528 404Based upon the location of the company’s operations, the Tax loss and tax

consolidated income before income taxes in the U.S. in 2015, credit carryforwards............. 604 514
2014 and 2013 was $1,838 million, $3,219 million and Foreign unrealized losses ......... 458 146
$4,124 million, respectively, and in foreign countries was Pension liability – net .............. 315 160
$942 million, $1,578 million and $1,359 million, respectively. Accrual for employee benefits ... 172 229

Share-based compensation....... 141 145Certain foreign operations are branches of Deere & Company
Inventory .............................. 22and are subject to U.S. as well as foreign income tax regulations.
Goodwill and otherThe pretax income by location and the preceding analysis of the

intangible assets ................. 80 89income tax provision by taxing jurisdiction are not directly
Allowance for credit losses ....... 72 73related. Deferred gains on distributed

foreign earnings ................. 33 32
Deferred compensation ........... 51 47
Undistributed foreign earnings 25 26
Other items........................... 436 119 440 116
Less valuation allowances ........ (940) (637)

Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities .................... $3,932 $1,326 $3,793 $1,177
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Deere & Company files a consolidated federal income tax jurisdictions in Canada and Germany, also remain subject to
return in the U.S., which includes the wholly-owned financial examination by taxing authorities.
services subsidiaries. These subsidiaries account for income taxes The company’s policy is to recognize interest related to
generally as if they filed separate income tax returns. income taxes in interest expense and interest income, and

At October 31, 2015, certain tax loss and tax credit recognize penalties in selling, administrative and general
carryforwards of $604 million, of which $88 million are capital expenses. During 2015, 2014 and 2013, the total amount of
losses, were available with $226 million expiring from 2016 expense from interest and penalties was $23 million, $11 million
through 2035 and $378 million with an indefinite carryforward and $9 million and the interest income was $3 million, $4 million
period. and $4 million, respectively. At October 31, 2015 and 2014, the

liability for accrued interest and penalties totaled $69 million andIn March 2013, the company changed the corporate
$54 million and the receivable for interest was $2 million andstructure of most of its German operations from a branch to a
$2 million, respectively.subsidiary of Deere & Company. The change provides the

company increased flexibility and efficiency in funding growth in 9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
international operations. As a result, the tax status of these The major components of other income and other operating
operations changed. Formerly, as a branch these earnings were expenses consisted of the following in millions of dollars:
taxable in the U.S. as earned. As a subsidiary, these earnings are

2015 2014 2013now taxable in the U.S. if they are distributed to Deere &
Company as dividends, which is the same as the company’s other Other income
foreign subsidiaries. The earnings of the new German subsidiary Insurance premiums and fees earned.......... $ 173 $ 297 $ 252

Revenues from services............................ 280 276 256remain taxable in Germany. Due to the change in tax status and
Investment income ................................. 26 17 15the expectation that the German subsidiary’s earnings are
Other................................................... 228 234 159indefinitely reinvested, the deferred tax assets and liabilities

related to U.S. taxable temporary differences for the previous Total ............................................. $ 707 $ 824 $ 682
German branch were written off. The effect of this write-off was

Other operating expensesa decrease in net deferred tax assets and a charge to the income
Depreciation of equipment ontax provision of $56 million during the second fiscal quarter of

operating leases ................................. $ 577 $ 494 $ 3892013.
Insurance claims and expenses .................. 183 324 204

A reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax Cost of services...................................... 160 151 143
benefits at October 31 in millions of dollars follows: Other................................................... 41 124 85

Total ............................................. $ 961 $1,093 $ 8212015 2014 2013

Beginning of year balance ......................... $ 213 $ 272 $ 265
The company offers extended equipment warranties and,Increases to tax positions taken during the

prior to the divestiture of the crop insurance subsidiaries (seecurrent year .......................................... 32 28 30
Note 4), issued crop insurance policies. To limit losses andIncreases to tax positions taken during
reduce exposure to crop insurance claims, the company utilizedprior years ............................................ 29 20 24

Decreases to tax positions taken during reinsurance. Although reinsurance contracts permitted recovery
prior years ............................................ (15) (84) (51) of certain claims from reinsurers, the insurance subsidiary was

Decreases due to lapse of statute not relieved of its primary obligation to the policyholders. The
of limitations......................................... (11) (4) (5) premiums ceded by the crop insurance subsidiary in 2015, 2014

Settlements.............................................. (6) and 2013 were $54 million, $288 million and $337 million, andForeign exchange ...................................... (13) (19) 9 claims recoveries on the ceded business were $65 million,
End of year balance .................................. $ 229 $ 213 $ 272 $304 million and $294 million, respectively. The amounts from

reinsurance are netted against the insurance premiums and fees
The amount of unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, earned and the insurance claims and expenses in the table

2015 that would affect the effective tax rate if the tax benefits above.
were recognized was $79 million. The remaining liability was 10. UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATED COMPANIES
related to tax positions for which there are offsetting tax

Unconsolidated affiliated companies are companies in whichreceivables, or the uncertainty was only related to timing. The
Deere & Company generally owns 20 percent to 50 percent ofcompany expects that any reasonably possible change in the
the outstanding voting shares. Deere & Company does notamounts of unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months
control these companies and accounts for its investments inwould not be significant.
them on the equity basis. The investments in these companies

The company files its tax returns according to the tax laws primarily consist of Bell Equipment Limited (32 percent
of the jurisdictions in which it operates, which includes the U.S. ownership), Deere-Hitachi Construction Machinery Corporation
federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. (50 percent ownership), Deere-Hitachi Máquinas de Construção
The U.S. Internal Revenue Service has completed the do Brasil S.A. (50 percent ownership) and SiteOne Landscapes
examination of the company’s federal income tax returns for Supply, LLC. (35 percent ownership). The unconsolidated
periods prior to 2009. The years 2009 through 2012 federal affiliated companies primarily manufacture or market equipment
income tax returns are currently under examination. Various and landscapes products. Deere & Company’s share of
state and foreign income tax returns, including major tax
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the income or loss of these companies is reported in the Gross Gross
consolidated income statement under ‘‘Equity in income (loss) of Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
unconsolidated affiliates.’’ The investment in these companies is Cost Gains Losses Value
reported in the consolidated balance sheet under ‘‘Investments 2014in unconsolidated affiliates.’’ Equity fund..................... $ 39 $ 6 $ 45

Fixed income fund............ 10 10Combined financial information of the unconsolidated
U.S. government debtaffiliated companies in millions of dollars follows:

securities .................... 806 3 $ 1 808
Municipal debt securities ... 31 3 34Operations 2015 2014 2013
Corporate debt securities ... 167 7 2 172Sales................................................... $3,290 $3,082 $2,299
Mortgage-backedNet income .......................................... 23 1 10

securities*................... 145 3 2 146Deere & Company’s equity in
Marketable securities ...... $1,198 $ 22 $ 5 $1,215net income (loss)................................ 1 (8)

Financial Position 2015 2014 * Primarily issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises.

Total assets.................................................... $2,139 $2,101 The contractual maturities of debt securities at October 31,Total external borrowings.................................. 660 648
2015 in millions of dollars follow:Total net assets .............................................. 878 842

Deere & Company’s share of the net assets........... 303 303 Amortized Fair
Cost ValueConsolidated retained earnings at October 31, 2015

Due in one year or less ................................. $ 51 $ 50include undistributed earnings of the unconsolidated affiliates of
Due after one through five years .................... 88 91$165 million. Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates were
Due after five through 10 years ...................... 99 101$1 million in 2015, $1 million in 2014 and $10 million in 2013.
Due after 10 years ....................................... 40 42

In the ordinary course of business, the company purchases Mortgage-backed securities ........................... 108 110
components and finished goods and sells these products to the Debt securities........................................... $ 386 $ 394
unconsolidated affiliated companies. Transactions with
unconsolidated affiliated companies reported in the statement

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturitiesof consolidated income in millions of dollars follow:
because some securities may be called or prepaid. Because of
the potential for prepayment on mortgage-backed securities,2015 2014 2013
they are not categorized by contractual maturity. Proceeds fromNet sales .............................................. $ 37 $ 39 $ 54
the sales of available-for-sale securities were $120 million inPurchases ............................................. 1,284 1,415 1,427
2015, $6 million in 2014 and $7 million in 2013. Realized gains,

11. MARKETABLE SECURITIES realized losses, the increase (decrease) in net unrealized gains or
losses and unrealized losses that have been continuous for overAll marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale, with
twelve months were not significant in 2015, 2014 and 2013.unrealized gains and losses shown as a component of
Unrealized losses at October 31, 2015 and 2014 were primarilystockholders’ equity. Realized gains or losses from the sales of
the result of an increase in interest rates and were notmarketable securities are based on the specific identification
recognized in income due to the ability and intent to hold tomethod.
maturity. There were no significant impairment write-downs inThe amortized cost and fair value of marketable securities the periods reported.at October 31 in millions of dollars follow:
12. RECEIVABLES

Gross Gross
Trade Accounts and Notes ReceivableAmortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Trade accounts and notes receivable at October 31 consisted ofCost Gains Losses Value
the following in millions of dollars:2015

Equity fund..................... $ 38 $ 5 $ 43 2015 2014U.S. government debt
Trade accounts and notes:securities .................... 79 3 82

Agriculture and turf ....................................... $2,278 $2,633Municipal debt securities ... 29 2 31
Construction and forestry ............................... 773 645Corporate debt securities ... 121 4 $ 1 124

International debt Trade accounts and notes receivable – net ............. $3,051 $3,278
securities .................... 48 1 47

Mortgage-backed
At October 31, 2015 and 2014, dealer notes included insecurities*................... 108 3 1 110

the previous table were $90 million and $61 million, and the
Marketable securities ...... $ 423 $ 17 $ 3 $ 437 allowance for credit losses was $41 million and $55 million,
* Primarily issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises. respectively.

The equipment operations sell a significant portion of their
trade receivables to financial services and provide compensation
to these operations at approximate market rates of interest.
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Trade accounts and notes receivable primarily arise from Financing receivables at October 31 related to the
sales of goods to independent dealers. Under the terms of the company’s sales of equipment that were included in the table
sales to dealers, interest is primarily charged to dealers on above consisted of the following in millions of dollars:
outstanding balances, from the earlier of the date when goods

2015 2014are sold to retail customers by the dealer or the expiration of
Unrestricted Unrestrictedcertain interest-free periods granted at the time of the sale to the

Retail notes*:dealer, until payment is received by the company. Dealers cannot
Equipment:cancel purchases after the equipment is shipped and are

Agriculture and turf...................... $ 1,792 $ 2,125responsible for payment even if the equipment is not sold to retail
Construction and forestry .............. 356 403customers. The interest-free periods are determined based on the

Total ..................................... 2,148 2,528type of equipment sold and the time of year of the sale. These
Wholesale notes.................................... 4,269 5,390periods range from one to twelve months for most equipment.
Sales-type leases ................................... 690 844Interest-free periods may not be extended. Interest charged may

not be forgiven and the past due interest rates exceed market Total ......................................... 7,107 8,762
rates. The company evaluates and assesses dealers on an ongoing Less:
basis as to their creditworthiness and generally retains a security Unearned finance income:
interest in the goods associated with the trade receivables. The Equipment notes ............................ 178 212
company is obligated to repurchase goods sold to a dealer upon Sales-type leases............................. 45 57
cancellation or termination of the dealer’s contract for such Total ..................................... 223 269
causes as change in ownership and closeout of the business.

Financing receivables related to the
Trade accounts and notes receivable have significant company’s sales of equipment ............ $ 6,884 $ 8,493

concentrations of credit risk in the agriculture and turf sector
* These retail notes generally arise from sales of equipment by company-ownedand construction and forestry sector as shown in the previous dealers or through direct sales.

table. On a geographic basis, there is not a disproportionate
concentration of credit risk in any area. Financing receivable installments, including unearned

finance income, at October 31 are scheduled as follows inFinancing Receivables
millions of dollars:Financing receivables at October 31 consisted of the following in

millions of dollars: 2015 2014
Unrestricted/Securitized Unrestricted/Securitized2015 2014

Due in months:Unrestricted/Securitized Unrestricted/Securitized
0 – 12................................. $13,006 $ 2,057 $14,357 $ 1,878Retail notes: 13 – 24 ............................... 4,987 1,418 5,254 1,331Equipment: 25 – 36 ............................... 3,719 921 4,053 880Agriculture and turf ............ $15,359 $ 4,236 $16,970 $ 3,975 37 – 48 ............................... 2,444 426 2,819 457Construction and forestry .... 2,086 686 1,951 697 49 – 60 ............................... 1,283 95 1,575 120

Total ............................... 17,445 4,922 18,921 4,672 Thereafter ........................... 348 5 414 6
Wholesale notes....................... 4,269 5,390 Total ..................................... $25,787 $ 4,922 $28,472 $ 4,672Revolving charge accounts.......... 2,740 2,603
Financing leases (direct and

The maximum terms for retail notes are generally sevensales-type) ........................... 1,333 1,558
years for agriculture and turf equipment and five years forTotal financing receivables ...... 25,787 4,922 28,472 4,672
construction and forestry equipment. The maximum term for

Less: financing leases is generally five years, while the average termUnearned finance income: for wholesale notes is less than twelve months.Equipment notes ............... 726 74 753 56
Financing leases ................ 108 136 At October 31, 2015 and 2014, the unpaid balances of

receivables administered but not owned were $22 million andTotal............................ 834 74 889 56
$54 million, respectively. At October 31, 2015 and 2014,Allowance for credit losses ...... 144 13 161 14 worldwide financing receivables administered, which include

Financing receivables – net ....... $24,809 $ 4,835 $27,422 $ 4,602 financing receivables administered but not owned, totaled
$29,666 million and $32,078 million, respectively.

The residual values for investments in financing leases at Past due balances of financing receivables still accruing
October 31, 2015 and 2014 totaled $115 million and finance income represent the total balance held (principal plus
$112 million, respectively. accrued interest) with any payment amounts 30 days or more

Financing receivables have significant concentrations of past the contractual payment due date. Non-performing
credit risk in the agriculture and turf sector and construction and financing receivables represent loans for which the company has
forestry sector as shown in the previous table. On a geographic ceased accruing finance income. These receivables are generally
basis, there is not a disproportionate concentration of credit risk 120 days delinquent and the estimated uncollectible amount,
in any area. The company generally retains as collateral a after charging the dealer’s withholding account, has been
security interest in the equipment associated with retail notes,
wholesale notes and financing leases.
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written off to the allowance for credit losses. Finance income for Total Total
non-performing receivables is recognized on a cash basis. Total Non- Financing
Accrual of finance income is generally resumed when the Past Due Performing Current Receivables
receivable becomes contractually current and collections are Retail Notes:reasonably assured. Agriculture and turf ...... $ 155 $ 107 $19,966 $20,228

Construction andAn age analysis of past due financing receivables that are
forestry .................. 77 17 2,462 2,556still accruing interest and non-performing financing receivables

Other:at October 31 follows in millions of dollars:
Agriculture and turf ...... 37 15 8,208 8,260
Construction and30–59 60–89 90 Days

forestry .................. 19 2 1,134 1,155Days Days or Greater Total
Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Total ...................... $ 288 $ 141 $31,770 32,199

2015 Less allowance for credit losses ..................................... 175
Retail Notes:

Total financing receivables – net .................................. $32,024Agriculture and turf .... $ 112 $ 54 $ 47 $ 213
Construction and

forestry................. 64 29 12 105 An analysis of the allowance for credit losses and
Other: investment in financing receivables follows in millions of dollars:

Agriculture and turf .... 26 12 4 42
Construction and Revolving

forestry................. 13 5 3 21 Retail Charge
Notes Accounts Other TotalTotal .......................... $ 215 $ 100 $ 66 $ 381

2015
Allowance:Total Total
Beginning of year balance ........ $ 109 $ 41 $ 25 $ 175Total Non- Financing

Provision ........................ 22 21 3 46Past Due Performing Current Receivables
Write-offs ...................... (26) (37) (4) (67)

Retail Notes: Recoveries ...................... 10 15 1 26
Agriculture and turf .... $ 213 $ 98 $18,574 $18,885 Translation adjustments .... (20) (3) (23)
Construction and

End of year balance* ............... $ 95 $ 40 $ 22 $ 157forestry................. 105 21 2,556 2,682
Other: Financing receivables:

Agriculture and turf .... 42 13 7,175 7,230 End of year balance................. $21,567 $ 2,740 $ 5,494 $29,801
Construction and

Balance individually evaluated ... $ 40 $ 6 $ 46forestry................. 21 10 973 1,004

Total .................... $ 381 $ 142 $29,278 29,801 2014
Allowance:Less allowance for credit losses ..................................... 157 Beginning of year balance ........ $ 101 $ 41 $ 31 $ 173

Total financing receivables – net .................................. $29,644 Provision ........................ 18 11 2 31
Write-offs ...................... (16) (26) (7) (49)
Recoveries ...................... 11 15 2630–59 60–89 90 Days
Translation adjustments .... (5) (1) (6)Days Days or Greater Total

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due End of year balance* ............... $ 109 $ 41 $ 25 $ 175
2014 Financing receivables:
Retail Notes: End of year balance................. $22,784 $ 2,603 $ 6,812 $32,199

Agriculture and turf ...... $ 93 $ 34 $ 28 $ 155
Balance individually evaluated ... $ 26 $ 1 $ 27Construction and

forestry .................. 54 16 7 77 2013Other: Allowance:Agriculture and turf ...... 23 12 2 37 Beginning of year balance ........ $ 110 $ 40 $ 27 $ 177Construction and Provision (credit) .............. (2) 5 7 10forestry .................. 12 3 4 19 Write-offs ...................... (11) (21) (3) (35)
Total ............................ $ 182 $ 65 $ 41 $ 288 Recoveries ...................... 9 17 1 27

Translation adjustments .... (5) (1) (6)

End of year balance* ............... $ 101 $ 41 $ 31 $ 173(continued)

Financing receivables:
End of year balance................. $21,160 $ 2,593 $ 6,206 $29,959

Balance individually evaluated ... $ 21 $ 33 $ 54

* Individual allowances were not significant.
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Past-due amounts over 30 days represented 1.28 percent commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose
and .90 percent of the receivables financed at October 31, 2015 accounts were modified in troubled debt restructurings.
and 2014, respectively. The allowance for credit losses Other Receivables
represented .53 percent and .54 percent of financing receivables Other receivables at October 31 consisted of the following in
outstanding at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. In millions of dollars:
addition, at October 31, 2015 and 2014, the company’s financial
services operations had $179 million and $196 million, 2015 2014
respectively, of deposits withheld from dealers and merchants Taxes receivable .................................................. $ 720 $ 697
available for potential credit losses. Reinsurance receivables......................................... 502

Insurance premium receivables ............................... 23Financing receivables are considered impaired when it is
Other ................................................................ 271 278probable the company will be unable to collect all amounts due
Other receivables................................................ $ 991 $1,500according to the contractual terms. Receivables reviewed for

impairment generally include those that are either past due, or
have provided bankruptcy notification, or require significant Reinsurance and insurance premium receivables were
collection efforts. Receivables, which are impaired, are generally associated with the financial services’ crop insurance subsidiary
classified as non-performing. (see Note 9), which was sold in 2015 (see Note 4).

An analysis of the impaired financing receivables at 13. SECURITIZATION OF FINANCING RECEIVABLES
October 31 follows in millions of dollars: The company, as a part of its overall funding strategy,

periodically transfers certain financing receivables (retail notes)Unpaid Average
into variable interest entities (VIEs) that are special purposeRecorded Principal Specific Recorded
entities (SPEs), or a non-VIE banking operation, as part of itsInvestment Balance Allowance Investment
asset-backed securities programs (securitizations). The structure2015*
of these transactions is such that the transfer of the retail notesReceivables with specific
did not meet the criteria of sales of receivables, and is,allowance** ................. $ 14 $ 13 $ 2 $ 13
therefore, accounted for as a secured borrowing. SPEs utilized inReceivables without a

specific allowance*** ..... 14 14 20 securitizations of retail notes differ from other entities included
in the company’s consolidated statements because the assetsTotal ............................. $ 28 $ 27 $ 2 $ 33
they hold are legally isolated. Use of the assets held by the SPEs

Agriculture and turf .... $ 19 $ 18 $ 2 $ 20 or the non-VIE is restricted by terms of the documents governing
Construction and the securitization transactions.

forestry ................ $ 9 $ 9 $ 13
In securitizations of retail notes related to secured

2014* borrowings, the retail notes are transferred to certain SPEs or to
Receivables with specific a non-VIE banking operation, which in turn issue debt toallowance** ................. $ 9 $ 9 $ 2 $ 10 investors. The debt securities issued to the third party investorsReceivables without a

result in secured borrowings, which are recorded as ‘‘Short-termspecific allowance** ...... 6 6 7
securitization borrowings’’ on the consolidated balance sheet.

Total ............................. $ 15 $ 15 $ 2 $ 17 The securitized retail notes are recorded as ‘‘Financing
Agriculture and turf .... $ 12 $ 12 $ 2 $ 13 receivables securitized – net’’ on the balance sheet. The total

restricted assets on the balance sheet related to theseConstruction and
forestry ................ $ 3 $ 3 $ 4 securitizations include the financing receivables securitized less

an allowance for credit losses, and other assets primarily* Finance income recognized was not material.
representing restricted cash. For those securitizations in which** Primarily retail notes.

*** Primarily retail notes and wholesale receivables. retail notes are transferred into SPEs, the SPEs supporting the
secured borrowings are consolidated unless the company does

A troubled debt restructuring is generally the modification not have both the power to direct the activities that most
of debt in which a creditor grants a concession it would not significantly impact the SPEs’ economic performance and the
otherwise consider to a debtor that is experiencing financial obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that
difficulties. These modifications may include a reduction of the could potentially be significant to the SPEs. No additional
stated interest rate, an extension of the maturity dates, a support to these SPEs beyond what was previously contractually
reduction of the face amount or maturity amount of the debt, or required has been provided during the reporting periods.
a reduction of accrued interest. During 2015, 2014 and 2013,

In certain securitizations, the company consolidates thethe company identified 107, 66 and 92 financing receivable
SPEs since it has both the power to direct the activities thatcontracts, primarily operating loans and retail notes, as troubled
most significantly impact the SPEs’ economic performancedebt restructurings with aggregate balances of $8 million,
through its role as servicer of all the receivables held by the$3 million and $16 million pre-modification and $7 million,
SPEs, and the obligation through variable interests in the SPEs$2 million and $15 million post-modification, respectively. During
to absorb losses or receive benefits that could potentially bethese same periods, there were no significant troubled debt
significant to the SPEs. The restricted assets (retail notesrestructurings that subsequently defaulted and were written off.
securitized, allowance for credit losses and other assets) of theAt October 31, 2015, the company had no significant
consolidated SPEs totaled $3,006 million and $3,011 million at
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October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The liabilities (short- The components of consolidated restricted assets related
term securitization borrowings and accrued interest) of these to secured borrowings in securitization transactions at
SPEs totaled $2,743 million and $2,942 million at October 31, October 31 were as follows in millions of dollars:
2015 and 2014, respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2015, as

2015 2014part of a receivable transfer, the company retained $228 million
Financing receivables securitized (retail notes) ......... $4,848 $4,616of securitization borrowings, with a balance of $189 million at
Allowance for credit losses .................................. (13) (14)October 31, 2015. This amount is not shown as a liability above
Other assets ..................................................... 109 108as the borrowing is not outstanding to a third party. The credit

holders of these SPEs do not have legal recourse to the Total restricted securitized assets ....................... $4,944 $4,710
company’s general credit.

The components of consolidated secured borrowings andIn certain securitizations, the company transfers retail notes
other liabilities related to securitizations at October 31 were asto a non-VIE banking operation, which is not consolidated since
follows in millions of dollars:the company does not have a controlling interest in the entity.

The company’s carrying values and interests related to the
2015 2014securitizations with the unconsolidated non-VIE were restricted

Short-term securitization borrowings....................... $4,590 $4,559assets (retail notes securitized, allowance for credit losses and
Accrued interest on borrowings .............................. 2 1other assets) of $249 million and $368 million at October 31,
Total liabilities related to restricted2015 and 2014, respectively. The liabilities (short-term

securitized assets ........................................... $4,592 $4,560securitization borrowings and accrued interest) were
$238 million and $351 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The secured borrowings related to these restricted

securitized retail notes are obligations that are payable as theIn certain securitizations, the company transfers retail notes
retail notes are liquidated. Repayment of the securedinto bank-sponsored, multi-seller, commercial paper conduits,
borrowings depends primarily on cash flows generated by thewhich are SPEs that are not consolidated. The company does not
restricted assets. Due to the company’s short-term credit rating,service a significant portion of the conduits’ receivables, and
cash collections from these restricted assets are not required totherefore, does not have the power to direct the activities that
be placed into a segregated collection account until immediatelymost significantly impact the conduits’ economic performance.
prior to the time payment is required to the secured creditors.These conduits provide a funding source to the company (as well
At October 31, 2015, the maximum remaining term of allas other transferors into the conduit) as they fund the retail
securitized retail notes was approximately six years.notes through the issuance of commercial paper. The company’s

carrying values and variable interest related to these conduits 14. EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES
were restricted assets (retail notes securitized, allowance for Operating leases arise primarily from the leasing of John Deere
credit losses and other assets) of $1,689 million and equipment to retail customers. Initial lease terms generally
$1,331 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The range from four to 60 months. Net equipment on operating
liabilities (short-term securitization borrowings and accrued leases at October 31 consisted of the following in millions of
interest) related to these conduits were $1,611 million and dollars:
$1,267 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

2015 2014The company’s carrying amount of the liabilities to the
Equipment on operating leases:unconsolidated conduits, compared to the maximum exposure to

Agriculture and turf....................................... $3,909 $3,261loss related to these conduits, which would only be incurred in
Construction and forestry ............................... 1,061 755the event of a complete loss on the restricted assets, was as

follows at October 31 in millions of dollars: Equipment on operating leases – net .................... $4,970 $4,016

2015
The equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over

Carrying value of liabilities ................................................... $1,611 the terms of the lease. The accumulated depreciation on this
Maximum exposure to loss .................................................. 1,689 equipment was $793 million and $634 million at October 31,

2015 and 2014, respectively. The corresponding depreciationThe total assets of unconsolidated VIEs related to
expense was $577 million in 2015, $494 million in 2014 andsecuritizations were approximately $54 billion at October 31,
$389 million in 2013.2015.

Future payments to be received on operating leases
totaled $1,704 million at October 31, 2015 and are scheduled in
millions of dollars as follows: 2016 – $712, 2017 – $508, 2018 –
$294, 2019 – $156 and 2020 – $34.
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15. INVENTORIES Capitalized software has an estimated useful life of three
years. The amounts of total capitalized software costs, includingMost inventories owned by Deere & Company and its U.S.
purchased and internally developed software, classified asequipment subsidiaries are valued at cost, on the ‘‘last-in, first-
‘‘Other Assets’’ at October 31, 2015 and 2014 were $934 millionout’’ (LIFO) basis. Remaining inventories are generally valued at
and $912 million, less accumulated amortization of $681 millionthe lower of cost, on the ‘‘first-in, first-out’’ (FIFO) basis, or
and $656 million, respectively. Capitalized interest on softwaremarket. The value of gross inventories on the LIFO basis
was $2 million at October 31, 2015. Amortization of theserepresented 66 percent and 65 percent of worldwide gross
software costs was $103 million in 2015, $106 million in 2014inventories at FIFO value at October 31, 2015 and 2014,
and $93 million in 2013. The cost of leased software assetsrespectively. The pretax favorable income effects from the
under capital leases amounting to $86 million and $77 million atliquidation of LIFO inventory during 2015 and 2014 were
October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is included in otherapproximately $22 million and $13 million, respectively. If all
assets.inventories had been valued on a FIFO basis, estimated

inventories by major classification at October 31 in millions of The cost of compliance with foreseeable environmental
dollars would have been as follows: requirements has been accrued and did not have a material

effect on the company’s consolidated financial statements.
2015 2014

17. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS – NETRaw materials and supplies .................................... $1,559 $1,724
Work-in-process .................................................. 450 654 The changes in amounts of goodwill by operating segments
Finished goods and parts ...................................... 3,234 3,360 were as follows in millions of dollars:

Total FIFO value............................................ 5,243 5,738 Agriculture ConstructionLess adjustment to LIFO value ................................ 1,426 1,528 and and
Inventories ........................................................ $3,817 $4,210 Turf Forestry Total

Balance at October 31, 2013 .............. $ 302 $ 603 $ 905
16. PROPERTY AND DEPRECIATION Less accumulated impairment losses 60 60

Net balance ................................. 242 603 845A summary of property and equipment at October 31 in millions
Divestiture* .................................... (60) (60)of dollars follows:
Translation adjustments and other....... (7) (47) (54)

Useful Lives* Balance at October 31, 2014 .............. 235 556 791(Years) 2015 2014 Less accumulated impairment losses*
Equipment Operations Net balance ................................. 235 556 791Land .............................................. $ 114 $ 120 Translation adjustments and other....... (8) (57) (65)Buildings and building equipment ........ 23 3,016 3,037

Goodwill at October 31, 2015 ........... $ 227 $ 499 $ 726Machinery and equipment .................. 11 5,055 5,089
Dies, patterns, tools, etc. ................... 8 1,567 1,552 * Accumulated impairment losses were also reduced by $60 million related to
All other ......................................... 5 875 889 the sale of the Water operations (see Note 4).
Construction in progress .................... 345 530

The components of other intangible assets are as follows inTotal at cost................................. 10,972 11,217
millions of dollars:Less accumulated depreciation ............ 5,846 5,694

Total........................................... 5,126 5,523 Useful Lives*
(Years) 2015 2014Financial Services

Land .............................................. 4 4 Amortized intangible assets:
Buildings and building equipment ........ 27 73 71 Customer lists and relationships ............... 14 $ 23 $ 20
All other ......................................... 6 36 37 Technology, patents, trademarks and other 17 96 90

Total at cost................................. 113 112 Total at cost ..................................... 119 110
Less accumulated depreciation ............ 58 57 Less accumulated amortization** ............. 55 45

Total........................................... 55 55 Total ............................................... 64 65
Property and equipment – net ........... $ 5,181 $ 5,578 Unamortized intangible assets:

Licenses .............................................. 4* Weighted-averages
Other intangible assets – net .................... $ 64 $ 69

Total property and equipment additions in 2015, 2014 and
* Weighted-averages2013 were $666 million, $1,016 million and $1,158 million and
** Accumulated amortization at 2015 and 2014 for customer lists anddepreciation was $692 million, $696 million and $637 million, relationships was $10 million and $9 million and technology, patents,

respectively. Capitalized interest was $6 million, $6 million and trademarks and other was $45 million and $36 million, respectively.
$13 million in the same periods, respectively. The cost of leased

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulatedproperty and equipment under capital leases of $27 million and
amortization. The amortization of other intangible assets in$36 million and accumulated depreciation of $14 million and
2015, 2014 and 2013 was $10 million, $11 million and$15 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is
$22 million, respectively. The estimated amortization expense forincluded in property and equipment.
the next five years is as follows in millions of dollars: 2016 – $12,
2017 – $12, 2018 – $8, 2019 – $5 and 2020 – $5.
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18. TOTAL SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS equipment operations had the capacity to incur additional debt
of $16,408 million at October 31, 2015. All of theseTotal short-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the
requirements of the credit agreements have been met during thefollowing in millions of dollars:
periods included in the consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014 Deere & Company has an agreement with Capital
Equipment Operations Corporation pursuant to which it has agreed to continue to own,
Commercial paper................................................ $ 225 $ 45 directly or through one or more wholly-owned subsidiaries, at
Notes payable to banks ........................................ 154 146 least 51 percent of the voting shares of capital stock of Capital
Long-term borrowings due within one year ............... 86 243 Corporation and to maintain Capital Corporation’s consolidated

Total ............................................................. 465 434 tangible net worth at not less than $50 million. This agreement
also obligates Deere & Company to make payments to CapitalFinancial Services
Corporation such that its consolidated ratio of earnings to fixedCommercial paper................................................ 2,743 2,588

Notes payable to banks ........................................ 52 267 charges is not less than 1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter.
Long-term borrowings due within one year* ............. 5,167 4,730 Deere & Company’s obligations to make payments to Capital

Corporation under the agreement are independent of whetherTotal ............................................................. 7,962 7,585
Capital Corporation is in default on its indebtedness, obligationsShort-term borrowings ....................................... 8,427 8,019
or other liabilities. Further, Deere & Company’s obligations under

Financial Services the agreement are not measured by the amount of Capital
Short-term securitization borrowings ....................... 4,590 4,559 Corporation’s indebtedness, obligations or other liabilities.
Total short-term borrowings................................ $13,017 $12,578 Deere & Company’s obligations to make payments under this

agreement are expressly stated not to be a guaranty of any* Includes unamortized fair value adjustments related to interest rate swaps.
specific indebtedness, obligation or liability of Capital

The short-term securitization borrowings for financial Corporation and are enforceable only by or in the name of
services are secured by financing receivables (retail notes) on the Capital Corporation. No payments were required under this
balance sheet (see Note 13). Although these securitization agreement during the periods included in the consolidated
borrowings are classified as short-term since payment is required financial statements.
if the retail notes are liquidated early, the payment schedule for 19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
these borrowings of $4,590 million at October 31, 2015 based

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at October 31 consistedon the expected liquidation of the retail notes in millions of
of the following in millions of dollars:dollars is as follows: 2016 – $2,337, 2017 – $1,413, 2018 –

$661, 2019 – $157, 2020 – $21 and 2021 – $1. 2015 2014
The weighted-average interest rates on total short-term Equipment Operations

borrowings, excluding current maturities of long-term Accounts payable:
borrowings, at October 31, 2015 and 2014 were .9 percent and Trade payables.................................................... $1,435 $1,661
1.0 percent, respectively. Dividends payable................................................ 193 210

Other ................................................................ 186 208Lines of credit available from U.S. and foreign banks were Accrued expenses:$7,205 million at October 31, 2015. At October 31, 2015, Dealer sales discounts .......................................... 1,423 1,551
$4,031 million of these worldwide lines of credit were unused. Employee benefits ............................................... 1,122 1,350
For the purpose of computing the unused credit lines, Product warranties .............................................. 807 809
commercial paper and short-term bank borrowings, excluding Unearned revenue ............................................... 379 355
secured borrowings and the current portion of long-term Other ................................................................ 1,256 1,374
borrowings, were primarily considered to constitute utilization. Total ............................................................. 6,801 7,518
Included in the above lines of credit were long-term credit

Financial Servicesfacility agreements for $2,900 million, expiring in April 2019, and Accounts payable:$2,900 million, expiring in April 2020. The agreements are Deposits withheld from dealers and merchants .......... 179 196
mutually extendable and the annual facility fees are not Other ................................................................ 258 468
significant. These credit agreements require Capital Corporation Accrued expenses:
to maintain its consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges at Unearned revenue ............................................... 671 647
not less than 1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter and the ratio of Accrued interest .................................................. 111 103

Employee benefits ............................................... 71 87senior debt, excluding securitization indebtedness, to capital
Insurance claims reserve* ...................................... 29 247base (total subordinated debt and stockholder’s equity excluding
Other ................................................................ 192 279accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)) at not more

than 11 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter. The credit Total ............................................................. 1,511 2,027
agreements also require the equipment operations to maintain a Eliminations**........................................................ 1,001 991
ratio of total debt to total capital (total debt and stockholders’

Accounts payable and accrued expenses .................... $7,311 $8,554equity excluding accumulated other comprehensive income
* See Note 9(loss)) of 65 percent or less at the end of each fiscal quarter.
** Primarily trade receivable valuation accounts which are reclassified as accruedUnder this provision, the company’s excess equity capacity and

expenses by the equipment operations as a result of their trade receivablesretained earnings balance free of restriction at October 31, 2015 being sold to financial services.
was $8,835 million. Alternatively under this provision, the
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20. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Long-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following The company generally determines its warranty liability by
in millions of dollars: applying historical claims rate experience to the estimated

amount of equipment that has been sold and is still under
2015 2014 warranty based on dealer inventories and retail sales. The

Equipment Operations historical claims rate is primarily determined by a review of five-
Notes and debentures: year claims costs and current quality developments.

4.375% notes due 2019.................................... $ 750 $ 750
The premiums for the company’s extended warranties are8-1/2% debentures due 2022 ............................ 105 105

primarily recognized in income in proportion to the costs2.60% notes due 2022 ..................................... 1,000 1,000
expected to be incurred over the contract period. The6.55% debentures due 2028 .............................. 200 200

5.375% notes due 2029.................................... 500 500 unamortized extended warranty premiums (unearned revenue)
8.10% debentures due 2030 .............................. 250 250 included in the following table totaled $454 million and
7.125% notes due 2031.................................... 300 300 $425 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
3.90% notes due 2042 ..................................... 1,250 1,250

A reconciliation of the changes in the warranty liability andOther notes ................................................... 106 288
unearned premiums in millions of dollars follows:

Total ......................................................... 4,461 4,643
Warranty Liability/Financial Services

Unearned PremiumsNotes and debentures:
Medium-term notes due 2016 – 2025: 2015 2014

(principal $17,610 – 2015, $17,939 – 2014)
Beginning of year balance .............................. $1,234 $1,164Average interest rates of 1.4% – 2015,
Payments...................................................... (779) (792)1.2% – 2014 ............................................... 17,857* 18,141*
Amortization of premiums received .................... (161) (142)2.75% senior note due 2022: ($500 principal)
Accruals for warranties .................................... 810 797Swapped $500 to variable interest rate
Premiums received.......................................... 209 228of 1.1% – 2015, .9% – 2014 ........................... 512* 498*
Foreign exchange ........................................... (52) (21)Other notes ................................................... 1,003 1,099
End of year balance ....................................... $1,261 $1,234Total ......................................................... 19,372 19,738

Long-term borrowings** .................................... $23,833 $24,381
At October 31, 2015, the company had approximately

* Includes unamortized fair value adjustments related to interest rate swaps. $162 million of guarantees issued primarily to banks outside the
** All interest rates are as of year end. U.S. related to third-party receivables for the retail financing of

John Deere equipment. The company may recover a portion ofThe approximate principal amounts of the equipment
any required payments incurred under these agreements fromoperations’ long-term borrowings maturing in each of the next
repossession of the equipment collateralizing the receivables. Atfive years in millions of dollars are as follows: 2016 – $86,
October 31, 2015, the company had accrued losses of2017 – $48, 2018 – $63, 2019 – $752 and 2020 – $2. The
approximately $4 million under these agreements. The maximumapproximate principal amounts of the financial services’ long-
remaining term of the receivables guaranteed at October 31,term borrowings maturing in each of the next five years in
2015 was approximately four years.millions of dollars are as follows: 2016 – $5,159, 2017 – $5,124,

2018 – $5,124, 2019 – $2,876 and 2020 – $2,394. At October 31, 2015, the company had commitments of
approximately $165 million for the construction and acquisition21. LEASES
of property and equipment. At October 31, 2015, the company

At October 31, 2015, future minimum lease payments under also had pledged or restricted assets of $99 million, primarily as
capital leases amounted to $60 million as follows: 2016 – $37, collateral for borrowings and restricted other assets. In addition,
2017 – $13, 2018 – $4, 2019 – $3, 2020 – $2, and later years see Note 13 for restricted assets associated with borrowings
$1. Total rental expense for operating leases was $200 million in related to securitizations.
2015, $205 million in 2014 and $237 million in 2013. At

The company also had other miscellaneous contingenciesOctober 31, 2015, future minimum lease payments under
totaling approximately $30 million at October 31, 2015, foroperating leases amounted to $354 million as follows: 2016 –
which it believes the probability for payment is substantially$98, 2017 – $72, 2018 – $53, 2019 – $40, 2020 – $31, and later
remote. The accrued liability for these contingencies was notyears $60.
material at October 31, 2015.

The company is subject to various unresolved legal actions
which arise in the normal course of its business, the most
prevalent of which relate to product liability (including asbestos
related liability), retail credit, employment, software licensing,
patent, trademark and environmental matters. The company
believes the reasonably possible range of losses for these
unresolved legal actions in addition to the amounts accrued
would not have a material effect on its financial statements.
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23. CAPITAL STOCK 24. STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS
Changes in the common stock account in millions were as The company issues stock options and restricted stock awards to
follows: key employees under plans approved by stockholders. Restricted

stock is also issued to nonemployee directors for their services
Number of as directors under a plan approved by stockholders. Options are

Shares Issued Amount awarded with the exercise price equal to the market price and
Balance at October 31, 2012 ................... 536.4 $ 3,352 become exercisable in one to three years after grant. Options
Stock options and other ......................... 172 expire ten years after the date of grant. Restricted stock awards

generally vest after three years. The compensation cost for stockBalance at October 31, 2013 ................... 536.4 3,524
Stock options and other ......................... 151 options, service based restricted stock units and market/service

based restricted stock units, which is based on the fair value atBalance at October 31, 2014 ................... 536.4 3,675
the grant date, is recognized on a straight-line basis over theStock options and other ......................... 151
requisite period the employee is required to render service. TheBalance at October 31, 2015 .................. 536.4 $ 3,826
compensation cost for performance/service based units, which is
based on the fair value at the grant date, is recognized over the

The number of common shares the company is authorized employees’ requisite service period and periodically adjusted for
to issue is 1,200 million. The number of authorized preferred the probable number of shares to be awarded. According to
shares, none of which has been issued, is nine million. these plans at October 31, 2015, the company is authorized to

The Board of Directors at its meeting in December 2013 grant an additional 16.9 million shares related to stock options
authorized the repurchase of up to $8,000 million of common or restricted stock.
stock (102.6 million shares based on the October 31, 2015 The fair value of each option award was estimated on the
closing common stock price of $78.00 per share). At October 31, date of grant using a binomial lattice option valuation model.
2015, this repurchase program had $3,461 million (44.4 million Expected volatilities are based on implied volatilities from traded
shares at the same price) remaining to be repurchased. call options on the company’s stock. The expected volatilities are
Repurchases of the company’s common stock under this plan constructed from the following three components: the starting
will be made from time to time, at the company’s discretion, in implied volatility of short-term call options traded within a few
the open market. days of the valuation date; the predicted implied volatility of

A reconciliation of basic and diluted net income per share long-term call options; and the trend in implied volatilities over
attributable to Deere & Company follows in millions, except per the span of the call options’ time to maturity. The company uses
share amounts: historical data to estimate option exercise behavior and

employee termination within the valuation model. The expected
2015 2014 2013 term of options granted is derived from the output of the option

Net income attributable to valuation model and represents the period of time that options
Deere & Company.............................. $1,940.0 $3,161.7 $3,537.3 granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rates

Less income allocable to participating utilized for periods throughout the contractual life of the
securities ......................................... .8 1.0 .9 options are based on U.S. Treasury security yields at the time of

Income allocable to common stock ........... $1,939.2 $3,160.7 $3,536.4 grant.
Average shares outstanding .................... 333.6 363.0 385.3 The assumptions used for the binomial lattice model to

determine the fair value of options follow:Basic per share.................................... $ 5.81 $ 8.71 $ 9.18

2015 2014 2013Average shares outstanding .................... 333.6 363.0 385.3
Effect of dilutive stock options ................ 2.4 3.1 3.9 Risk-free interest rate ...... .04% – 2.3% .03% – 2.9% .04% – 1.7%

Expected dividends ......... 2.5% 2.3% 2.3%Total potential shares outstanding ........ 336.0 366.1 389.2
Expected volatility........... 23.4% – 25.7% 25.9% – 32.0% 26.6% – 32.5%

Diluted per share................................. $ 5.77 $ 8.63 $ 9.09 Weighted-average
volatility .................... 25.6% 31.9% 32.4%

Expected term (in years) ... 7.2 – 8.2 7.3 – 7.4 7.3 – 7.9All stock options outstanding were included in the
computation during 2015, 2014 and 2013, except 2.4 million in
2014 and 2.4 million in 2013 that had an antidilutive effect
under the treasury stock method.
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Stock option activity at October 31, 2015 and changes The company’s nonvested restricted shares at October 31,
during 2015 in millions of dollars and shares follow: 2015 and changes during 2015 in millions of shares follow:

Remaining Grant-Date
Contractual Aggregate Shares Fair Value*

Exercise Term Intrinsic Service based onlyShares Price* (Years) Value
Nonvested at beginning of year ............... .3 $83.00

Outstanding at beginning Granted .............................................. .1 88.66
of year ............................. 14.9 $71.64 Vested................................................ (.1) 76.37

Granted................................ 3.0 88.19
Nonvested at end of year ....................... .3 87.58Exercised .............................. (2.9) 58.65

Expired or forfeited................. (.2) 87.44 Performance/service and
Outstanding at end of year..... 14.8 77.39 6.21 $ 94.5 market/service based

Nonvested at beginning of year ............... .4 $91.30Exercisable at end of year ...... 9.3 72.78 5.19 84.8
Granted .............................................. .1 97.88* Weighted-averages
Expired or forfeited ............................... (.1) 93.31

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options Nonvested at end of year ....................... .4 96.87granted during 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $19.67, $24.74 and
* Weighted-averages$23.73, respectively. The total intrinsic values of options

exercised during 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $98 million, During 2015, 2014 and 2013, the total share-based$125 million and $183 million, respectively. During 2015, 2014 compensation expense was $66 million, $79 million andand 2013, cash received from stock option exercises was $81 million, respectively, with recognized income tax benefits of$172 million, $149 million and $175 million with tax benefits of $25 million, $29 million and $30 million, respectively. At$36 million, $46 million and $68 million, respectively. October 31, 2015, there was $46 million of total unrecognized
The company granted 248 thousand, 236 thousand and compensation cost from share-based compensation

254 thousand restricted stock units to employees and arrangements granted under the plans, which is related to
nonemployee directors in 2015, 2014 and 2013, of which nonvested shares. This compensation is expected to be
122 thousand, 102 thousand and 110 thousand are subject to recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately
service based only conditions, 63 thousand, 67 thousand and two years. The total grant-date fair values of stock options and
72 thousand are subject to performance/service based restricted shares vested during 2015, 2014 and 2013 were
conditions, 63 thousand, 67 thousand and 72 thousand are $74 million, $69 million and $68 million, respectively.
subject to market/service based conditions, respectively. The The company currently uses shares that have beenservice based only units award one share of common stock for repurchased through its stock repurchase programs to satisfyeach unit at the end of the vesting period and include dividend share option exercises. At October 31, 2015, the company hadequivalent payments. 220 million shares in treasury stock and 44 million shares

The performance/service based units are subject to a remaining to be repurchased under its current publicly
performance metric based on the company’s compound annual announced repurchase program (see Note 23).
revenue growth rate, compared to a benchmark group of 25. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ITEMScompanies over the vesting period. The market/service based

The after-tax changes in accumulated other comprehensiveunits are subject to a market related metric based on total
income at October 31 in millions of dollars follow:shareholder return, compared to the same benchmark group of

companies over the vesting period. The performance/service Total
based units and the market/service based units both award Unrealized Unrealized Accumulated
common stock in a range of zero to 200 percent for each unit Retirement Cumulative Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Other

Benefits Translation on on Comprehensivegranted based on the level of the metric achieved and do not
Adjustment Adjustment Derivatives Investments Income (Loss)include dividend equivalent payments over the vesting period.

2012........... $(4,759) $ 184 $ (14) $ 17 $(4,572)The weighted-average fair values of the service based only units
Periodat the grant dates during 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $88.66,
Change........ 1,950 (71) 11 (11) 1,879$87.16 and $86.88 per unit, respectively, based on the market
2013........... (2,809) 113 (3) 6 (2,693)price of a share of underlying common stock. The fair value of
Periodthe performance/service based units at the grant date
Change........ (684) (416) 3 7 (1,090)during 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $81.78, $81.53 and $80.73
2014........... (3,493) (303) 13 (3,783)per unit, respectively, based on the market price of a share of
Periodunderlying common stock excluding dividends. The fair value of
Change........ (8) (935) (2) (1) (946)the market/service based units at the grant date during 2015,
2015........... $(3,501) $(1,238) $ (2) $ 12 $(4,729)2014 and 2013 were $113.97, $116.86 and $106.75 per unit,

respectively, based on a lattice valuation model excluding
dividends.
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Following are amounts recorded in and reclassifications Before Tax After
out of other comprehensive income (loss), and the income tax Tax (Expense) Tax
effects, in millions of dollars: Amount Credit Amount

2014Before Tax After
Cumulative translation adjustment:Tax (Expense) Tax

Unrealized (loss) on translationAmount Credit Amount
adjustment...................................... $ (427) $ 2 $ (425)

2015 Reclassification of loss
Cumulative translation adjustment................ $(938) $ 3 $(935) to Other operating expenses* ............. 9 9
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives: Net unrealized (loss) on translation

Unrealized hedging (loss) ........................ (12) 4 (8) adjustment...................................... (418) 2 (416)
Reclassification of realized (gain) loss to:

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives:Interest rate contracts – Interest expense 12 (4) 8
Unrealized hedging (loss) ....................... (14) 5 (9)Foreign exchange contracts –
Reclassification of realized (gain) loss to:Other operating expenses ................. (4) 2 (2)

Interest rate contracts – Interest expense ... 13 (5) 8
Net unrealized (loss) on derivatives............ (4) 2 (2) Foreign exchange contracts –

Other operating expenses................ 6 (2) 4Unrealized gain (loss) on investments:
Unrealized holding gain .......................... 12 (4) 8 Net unrealized gain on derivatives............ 5 (2) 3
Reclassification of realized (gain) loss –

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments:Other income .................................... (14) 5 (9)
Unrealized holding gain ......................... 10 (3) 7

Net unrealized (loss) on investments.......... (2) 1 (1)
Net unrealized gain on investments.......... 10 (3) 7

Retirement benefits adjustment:
Retirement benefits adjustment:Pensions

PensionsNet actuarial (loss) and prior
Net actuarial (loss) ............................ (940) 343 (597)service (cost) .................................. (427) 151 (276)
Reclassification through amortization ofReclassification through amortization of

actuarial (gain) loss and prior serviceactuarial (gain) loss and prior service
(credit) cost to net income:**(credit) cost to net income:*

Actuarial loss............................. 177 (64) 113Actuarial loss .............................. 223 (81) 142
Prior service cost........................ 25 (9) 16Prior service cost ......................... 25 (9) 16
Settlements/curtailments ............. 9 (3) 6Settlements/curtailments .............. 11 (4) 7

Health care and life insuranceHealth care and life insurance
Net actuarial (loss) and priorNet actuarial gain and prior

service credit ................................ (378) 138 (240)service credit ................................. 145 (52) 93
Reclassification through amortization ofReclassification through amortization of

actuarial (gain) loss and prioractuarial (gain) loss and prior service
service (credit) cost to net income:**(credit) cost to net income:*

Actuarial loss............................. 33 (12) 21Actuarial loss .............................. 91 (34) 57
Prior service (credit) .................... (3) 1 (2)Prior service (credit) ..................... (77) 29 (48)
Settlements/curtailments ............. (1) (1)Settlements/curtailments .............. 1 1

Net unrealized (loss) on retirementNet unrealized (loss) on retirement
benefits adjustment .......................... (1,078) 394 (684)benefits adjustment ............................ (8) (8)

Total other comprehensive income (loss)....... $(1,481) $ 391 $(1,090)Total other comprehensive income (loss) ....... $(952) $ 6 $(946)
* Represents the accumulated translation adjustments related to the foreign* These accumulated other comprehensive income amounts are included in net

subsidiaries of the Water operations that were sold (see Note 4).periodic postretirement costs. See Note 7 for additional detail.
** These accumulated other comprehensive income amounts are included in net

periodic postretirement costs. See Note 7 for additional detail.
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26. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTSBefore Tax After
The fair values of financial instruments that do not approximateTax (Expense) Tax
the carrying values at October 31 in millions of dollars follow:Amount Credit Amount

2013 2015 2014Cumulative translation adjustment ............... $ (74) $ 3 $ (71)
Carrying Fair Carrying FairUnrealized gain (loss) on derivatives:

Value Value* Value Value*Unrealized hedging gain......................... 43 (14) 29
Reclassification of realized (gain) loss to: Financing receivables – net .......... $ 24,809 $ 24,719 $ 27,422 $ 27,337

Interest rate contracts – Interest expense ... 22 (8) 14
Financing receivablesForeign exchange contracts –

securitized – net..................... $ 4,835 $ 4,820 $ 4,602 $ 4,573Other operating expenses ................ (49) 17 (32)
Short-term securitizationNet unrealized gain on derivatives ............ 16 (5) 11

borrowings............................ $ 4,590 $ 4,590 $ 4,559 $ 4,562
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments:

Long-term borrowings due withinUnrealized holding (loss) ........................ (17) 6 (11)
one year:Net unrealized (loss) on investments ......... (17) 6 (11) Equipment operations .......... $ 86 $ 78 $ 243 $ 233

Retirement benefits adjustment: Financial services ................ 5,167 5,167 4,730 4,743
Pensions Total ............................. $ 5,253 $ 5,245 $ 4,973 $ 4,976Net actuarial gain and prior

service credit ................................ 1,507 (552) 955 Long-term borrowings:
Reclassification through amortization of Equipment operations .......... $ 4,461 $ 4,835 $ 4,643 $ 5,095

actuarial (gain) loss and prior service Financial services ................ 19,372 19,348 19,738 19,886
(credit) cost to net income:* Total ............................. $ 23,833 $ 24,183 $ 24,381 $ 24,981

Actuarial loss ............................. 265 (101) 164
* Fair value measurements above were Level 3 for all financing receivables andPrior service cost ........................ 12 (6) 6

Level 2 for all borrowings.Settlements/curtailments ............. 2 2
Health care and life insurance

Fair values of the financing receivables that were issuedNet actuarial gain and prior
long-term were based on the discounted values of their relatedservice credit ................................ 1,167 (426) 741
cash flows at interest rates currently being offered by theReclassification through amortization of

actuarial (gain) loss and prior service company for similar financing receivables. The fair values of the
(credit) cost to net income:* remaining financing receivables approximated the carrying

Actuarial loss ............................. 141 (54) 87 amounts.
Prior service (credit) .................... (8) 3 (5)

Fair values of long-term borrowings and short-term
Net unrealized gain on retirement securitization borrowings were based on current market quotesbenefits adjustment ........................... 3,086 (1,136) 1,950

for identical or similar borrowings and credit risk, or on the
Total other comprehensive income (loss) ....... $ 3,011 $(1,132) $ 1,879 discounted values of their related cash flows at current market

interest rates. Certain long-term borrowings have been swapped* These accumulated other comprehensive income amounts are included in net
periodic postretirement costs. See Note 7 for additional detail. to current variable interest rates. The carrying values of these

long-term borrowings included adjustments related to fair valueThe noncontrolling interests’ comprehensive income was hedges.$.5 million in 2015, $1.3 million in 2014 and $.4 million in 2013,
which consisted of net income of $.9 million in 2015,
$1.6 million in 2014 and $.3 million in 2013 and cumulative
translation adjustments of $(.4) million in 2015, $(.3) million in
2014 and $.1 million in 2013.
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Assets and liabilities measured at October 31 at fair value Fair value, nonrecurring, Level 3 measurements from
on a recurring basis in millions of dollars follow: impairments at October 31 in millions of dollars follow:

2015* 2014* Fair Value* Losses*

Marketable securities 2015 2014 2015 2014 2013
Equity fund ................................................ $ 43 $ 45 Equipment on operating
Fixed income fund ....................................... 10 leases – net....................... $ 479 $ 10
U.S. government debt securities ..................... 82 808

Property and equipment – net $ 33 $ 53 $ 10 $ 44 $ 48Municipal debt securities .............................. 31 34
Corporate debt securities .............................. 124 172 Other intangible assets – net ... $ 9International debt securities .......................... 47
Mortgage-backed securities**........................ 110 146 Other assets ......................... $ 112 $ 15 $ 15 $ 16

Total marketable securities ............................... 437 1,215 Assets held for sale –
Other assets Water operations ............... $ 36

Derivatives:
* See financing receivables with specific allowances in Note 12 that were notInterest rate contracts .................................. 353 319

significant. See Note 5 for impairments.Foreign exchange contracts ........................... 50 18
Cross-currency interest rate contracts .............. 25 16 Level 1 measurements consist of quoted prices in active

Total assets*** .................................................. $ 865 $ 1,568 markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 measurements
include significant other observable inputs such as quotedAccounts payable and accrued expenses
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; identicalDerivatives:
assets or liabilities in inactive markets; observable inputs such asInterest rate contracts .................................. $ 60 $ 81

Foreign exchange contracts ........................... 18 29 interest rates and yield curves; and other market-corroborated
inputs. Level 3 measurements include significant unobservableTotal liabilities ................................................... $ 78 $ 110
inputs.

* All measurements above were Level 2 measurements except for Level 1
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received tomeasurements of U.S. government debt securities of $37 million and

$741 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and the equity sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fund of $43 million and $45 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, transaction between market participants at the measurement
respectively, and the fixed income fund of $10 million at October 31, 2014. date. In determining fair value, the company uses variousIn addition, $29 million of the international debt securities were Level 3

methods including market and income approaches. Themeasurements at October 31, 2015. There were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 during 2015 and 2014. company utilizes valuation models and techniques that maximize

** Primarily issued by U.S. government sponsored enterprises. the use of observable inputs. The models are industry-standard
*** Excluded from this table were cash equivalents, which were carried at cost models that consider various assumptions including time valuesthat approximates fair value. The cash equivalents consist primarily of

and yield curves as well as other economic measures. Thesemoney market funds that were Level 1 measurements.
valuation techniques are consistently applied.

Fair value, recurring, Level 3 measurements from available The following is a description of the valuationfor sale marketable securities at October 31 in millions of dollars methodologies the company uses to measure certain financialfollow: instruments on the balance sheet and nonmonetary assets at
fair value:2015

Marketable Securities – The portfolio of investments,Beginning of period balance..............................................
except for the Level 3 measurement international debtPurchases...................................................................... $ 30

Change in unrealized gain (loss) ......................................... (1) securities, is primarily valued on a market approach (matrix
pricing model) in which all significant inputs are observable orEnd of period balance ...................................................... $ 29
can be derived from or corroborated by observable market data
such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, credit risk and
prepayment speeds. Funds are primarily valued using the fund’s
net asset value, based on the fair value of the underlying
securities. The Level 3 measurement international debt
securities are primarily valued using an income approach based
on discounted cash flows using yield curves derived from
limited, observable market data.

Derivatives – The company’s derivative financial
instruments consist of interest rate swaps and caps, foreign
currency futures, forwards and swaps, and cross-currency
interest rate swaps. The portfolio is valued based on an income
approach (discounted cash flow) using market observable
inputs, including swap curves and both forward and spot
exchange rates for currencies.

59



Financing Receivables – Specific reserve impairments are Fair Value Hedges
based on the fair value of the collateral, which is measured Certain interest rate contracts (swaps) were designated as fair
using a market approach (appraisal values or realizable values). value hedges of borrowings. The total notional amounts of the
Inputs include a selection of realizable values (see Note 12). receive-fixed/pay-variable interest rate contracts at October 31,

2015 and 2014 were $8,618 million and $8,798 million,Equipment on Operating Leases-Net – The impairments are
respectively. The effective portions of the fair value gains orbased on an income approach (discounted cash flow), using the
losses on these contracts were offset by fair value gains orcontractual payments, plus an estimate of equipment sale price
losses on the hedged items (fixed-rate borrowings). Anyat lease maturity. Inputs include realized sales values.
ineffective portions of the gains or losses were recognized

Property and Equipment-Net – The impairments are currently in interest expense. The ineffective portions were a
measured at the lower of the carrying amount, or fair value. The gain of $2 million and loss of $2 million in 2015 and 2014,
valuations were based on a cost approach. The inputs include respectively. The cash flows from these contracts were recorded
replacement cost estimates adjusted for physical deterioration in operating activities in the statement of consolidated cash
and economic obsolescence. flows.

Other Intangible Assets-Net – The impairments are The gains (losses) on these contracts and the underlying
measured at the lower of the carrying amount, or fair value. The borrowings recorded in interest expense follow in millions of
valuations were based on an income approach (discounted cash dollars:
flows). The inputs include estimates of future cash flows.

2015 2014Other Assets – The impairments are measured at the lower
Interest rate contracts* ........................................ $ 104 $ (13)of the carrying amount, or fair value. The valuations were based
Borrowings** ..................................................... (102) 11on a market approach. The inputs include sales of comparable
* Includes changes in fair values of interest rate contracts excluding netassets.

accrued interest income of $173 million and $168 million during 2015 and
Assets Held For Sale-Water Operations – The impairment 2014, respectively.

** Includes adjustments for fair values of hedged borrowings excluding accruedof the disposal group was measured at the lower of carrying
interest expense of $274 million and $267 million during 2015 and 2014,amount, or fair value less cost to sell. Fair value was based on
respectively.the probable sale price. The inputs included estimates of the

final sale price (see Note 5). Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
The company has certain interest rate contracts (swaps and27. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
caps), foreign exchange contracts (futures, forwards and swaps)

Cash Flow Hedges and cross-currency interest rate contracts (swaps), which were
Certain interest rate and cross-currency interest rate contracts not formally designated as hedges. These derivatives were held
(swaps) were designated as hedges of future cash flows from as economic hedges for underlying interest rate or foreign
borrowings. The total notional amounts of the receive-variable/ currency exposures primarily for certain borrowings and
pay-fixed interest rate contracts at October 31, 2015 and 2014 purchases or sales of inventory. The total notional amounts of
were $2,800 million and $3,050 million, respectively. The total the interest rate swaps at October 31, 2015 and 2014 were
notional amounts of the cross-currency interest rate contracts $6,333 million and $6,317 million, the foreign exchange
were $60 million and $70 million at October 31, 2015 and 2014, contracts were $3,160 million and $3,524 million and the cross-
respectively. The effective portions of the fair value gains or currency interest rate contracts were $76 million and
losses on these cash flow hedges were recorded in other $98 million, respectively. At October 31, 2015 and 2014, there
comprehensive income (OCI) and subsequently reclassified into were also $1,069 million and $1,703 million, respectively, of
interest expense or other operating expenses (foreign exchange) interest rate caps purchased and the same amounts sold at the
in the same periods during which the hedged transactions same capped interest rate to facilitate borrowings through
affected earnings. These amounts offset the effects of interest securitization of retail notes. The fair value gains or losses from
rate or foreign currency exchange rate changes on the related the interest rate contracts were recognized currently in interest
borrowings. Any ineffective portions of the gains or losses on all expense and the gains or losses from foreign exchange
cash flow interest rate contracts designated as cash flow contracts in cost of sales or other operating expenses, generally
hedges were recognized currently in interest expense or other offsetting over time the expenses on the exposures being
operating expenses (foreign exchange) and were not material hedged. The cash flows from these non-designated contracts
during any years presented. The cash flows from these contracts were recorded in operating activities in the statement of
were recorded in operating activities in the statement of consolidated cash flows.
consolidated cash flows.

The amount of loss recorded in OCI at October 31, 2015
that is expected to be reclassified to interest expense or other
operating expenses in the next twelve months if interest rates
or exchange rates remain unchanged is approximately $4 million
after-tax. These contracts mature in up to 35 months. There
were no gains or losses reclassified from OCI to earnings based
on the probability that the original forecasted transaction would
not occur.
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Fair values of derivative instruments in the consolidated position at October 31, 2015 and October 31, 2014, was
balance sheet at October 31 in millions of dollars follow: $41 million and $57 million, respectively. The company, due to

its credit rating and amounts of net liability position, has not
2015 2014 posted any collateral. If the credit-risk-related contingent

Other Assets features were triggered, the company would be required to post
Designated as hedging instruments: collateral up to an amount equal to this liability position, prior
Interest rate contracts......................................... $ 299 $ 266 to considering applicable netting provisions.
Cross-currency interest rate contracts .................... 14 13

Derivative instruments are subject to significant
Total designated............................................. 313 279 concentrations of credit risk to the banking sector. The

Not designated as hedging instruments: company manages individual counterparty exposure by setting
Interest rate contracts......................................... 54 53 limits that consider the credit rating of the counterparty, the
Foreign exchange contracts.................................. 50 18 credit default swap spread of the counterparty and other
Cross-currency interest rate contracts .................... 11 3 financial commitments and exposures between the company

Total not designated ....................................... 115 74 and the counterparty banks. All interest rate derivatives are
transacted under International Swaps and DerivativesTotal derivative assets ......................................... $ 428 $ 353
Association (ISDA) documentation. Some of these agreements

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses include credit support provisions. Each master agreementDesignated as hedging instruments:
permits the net settlement of amounts owed in the event ofInterest rate contracts......................................... $ 8 $ 35
default or termination.

Total designated............................................. 8 35
Derivatives are recorded without offsetting for netting

Not designated as hedging instruments: arrangements or collateral. The impact on the derivative assetsInterest rate contracts......................................... 52 46
and liabilities related to netting arrangements and any collateralForeign exchange contracts.................................. 18 29
received or paid at October 31 in millions of dollars follows:

Total not designated ....................................... 70 75
Gross Amounts Netting Collateral NetTotal derivative liabilities...................................... $ 78 $ 110

Recognized Arrangements Received Amount

2015The classification and gains (losses) including accrued
Assets ........... $ 428 $ (62) $ 366interest expense related to derivative instruments on the
Liabilities ....... 78 (62) 16statement of consolidated income consisted of the following in 2014

millions of dollars: Assets ........... $ 353 $ (76) $ (5) $ 272
Liabilities ....... 110 (76) 342015 2014 2013

Fair Value Hedges 28. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA DATA FOR THE YEARS
Interest rate contracts – Interest expense ........... $ 277 $ 155 $ (89) ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013
Cash Flow Hedges The company’s operations are presently organized and reported
Recognized in OCI in three major business segments described as follows:
(Effective Portion):

The agriculture and turf segment primarily manufacturesInterest rate contracts – OCI (pretax)*................ (16) (10) (15)
and distributes a full line of agriculture and turf equipment andForeign exchange contracts – OCI (pretax)* ........ 4 (4) 58
related service parts – including large, medium and utility

Reclassified from OCI tractors; loaders; combines, corn pickers, cotton and sugarcane
(Effective Portion): harvesters and related front-end equipment and sugarcane
Interest rate contracts – Interest expense* ......... (12) (13) (22) loaders; tillage, seeding and application equipment, includingForeign exchange contracts – Other expense*..... 4 (6) 49

sprayers, nutrient management and soil preparation machinery;
Recognized Directly in Income hay and forage equipment, including self-propelled forage
(Ineffective Portion) ....................................... ** ** ** harvesters and attachments, balers and mowers; turf and utility
Not Designated as Hedges equipment, including riding lawn equipment and walk-behind
Interest rate contracts – Interest expense* ......... $ (17) $ 3 $ (6) mowers, golf course equipment, utility vehicles, and commercial
Foreign exchange contracts – Cost of sales......... 97 25 35 mowing equipment, along with a broad line of associatedForeign exchange contracts – Other expense*..... 304 79 20

implements; integrated agricultural management systems
Total not designated .................................. $ 384 $ 107 $ 49 technology and solutions; and other outdoor power products.

* Includes interest and foreign exchange gains (losses) from cross-currency The construction and forestry segment primarily
interest rate contracts. manufactures and distributes a broad range of machines and** The amounts are not significant.

service parts used in construction, earthmoving, material
handling and timber harvesting – including backhoe loaders;Counterparty Risk and Collateral
crawler dozers and loaders; four-wheel-drive loaders; excavators;Certain of the company’s derivative agreements contain credit
motor graders; articulated dump trucks; landscape loaders; skid-support provisions that may require the company to post
steer loaders; and log skidders, feller bunchers, log loaders, logcollateral based on the size of the net liability positions and
forwarders, log harvesters and related attachments.credit ratings. The aggregate fair value of all derivatives with

credit-risk-related contingent features that were in a net liability
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The products and services produced by the segments OPERATING SEGMENTS 2015 2014 2013
above are marketed primarily through independent retail dealer

Interest income*networks and major retail outlets.
Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 14 $ 17 $ 24

The financial services segment primarily finances sales and Construction and forestry ...................... 2 1 2
Financial services ................................. 1,687 1,754 1,668leases by John Deere dealers of new and used agriculture and
Corporate ........................................... 61 57 55turf equipment and construction and forestry equipment. In
Intercompany ...................................... (253) (268) (247)addition, the financial services segment provides wholesale

financing to dealers of the foregoing equipment, finances retail Total .............................................. $ 1,511 $ 1,561 $ 1,502
revolving charge accounts and offers extended equipment * Does not include finance rental income for equipment on operating leases.
warranties.

Interest expenseBecause of integrated manufacturing operations and
Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 160 $ 175 $ 167common administrative and marketing support, a substantial Construction and forestry ...................... 45 37 36number of allocations must be made to determine operating Financial services ................................. 455 431 488

segment and geographic area data. Intersegment sales and Corporate ........................................... 273 289 297
revenues represent sales of components and finance charges, Intercompany ...................................... (253) (268) (247)
which are generally based on market prices. Total .............................................. $ 680 $ 664 $ 741

Information relating to operations by operating segment in
millions of dollars follows. In addition to the following Depreciation* and amortization expense
unaffiliated sales and revenues by segment, intersegment sales Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 659 $ 681 $ 627
and revenues in 2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows: Construction and forestry ...................... 133 115 106
agriculture and turf net sales of $49 million, $89 million and Financial services ................................. 590 511 407
$69 million, construction and forestry net sales of $1 million, Total .............................................. $ 1,382 $ 1,307 $ 1,140
$1 million and $2 million, and financial services revenues of

* Includes depreciation for equipment on operating leases.$225 million, $228 million and $220 million, respectively.
Equity in income (loss) ofOPERATING SEGMENTS 2015 2014 2013

unconsolidated affiliates
Net sales and revenues Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 7 $ 8 $ (1)
Unaffiliated customers: Construction and forestry ...................... (7) (18)

Agriculture and turf net sales .............. $19,812 $26,380 $29,132 Financial services ................................. 1 2 1
Construction and forestry net sales ...... 5,963 6,581 5,866

Total .............................................. $ 1 $ (8)
Total net sales .............................. 25,775 32,961 34,998

Financial services revenues..................... 2,591 2,577 2,349 Identifiable operating assets
Other revenues* .................................. 497 529 448 Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 8,332 $ 9,442 $10,799

Construction and forestry ...................... 3,295 3,405 3,461Total ................................................. $28,863 $36,067 $37,795
Financial services ................................. 40,909 42,784 38,646

* Other revenues are primarily the equipment operations’ revenues for finance Corporate* ......................................... 5,412 5,705 6,615
and interest income, and other income as disclosed in Note 31, net of

Total .............................................. $57,948 $61,336 $59,521certain intercompany eliminations.

* Corporate assets are primarily the equipment operations’ retirement benefits,Operating profit deferred income tax assets, marketable securities and cash and cash
Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 1,649 $ 3,649 $ 4,680 equivalents as disclosed in Note 31, net of certain intercompany
Construction and forestry ...................... 528 648 378 eliminations.
Financial services*................................ 963 921 870

Capital additionsTotal operating profit ........................ 3,140 5,218 5,928
Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 522 $ 868 $ 981

Interest income ................................... 61 57 55 Construction and forestry ...................... 138 145 174
Investment income ............................... 2 2 Financial services ................................. 6 3 3
Interest expense .................................. (273) (289) (297)

Total .............................................. $ 666 $ 1,016 $ 1,158Foreign exchange gains (losses) from
equipment operations’ financing

Investments in unconsolidated affiliatesactivities ......................................... 13 (2) (8)
Agriculture and turf .............................. $ 116 $ 110 $ 24Corporate expenses – net ...................... (160) (196) (197)
Construction and forestry ...................... 177 182 187Income taxes ....................................... (840) (1,627) (1,946)
Financial services ................................. 10 11 10

Total .............................................. (1,199) (2,055) (2,391)
Total .............................................. $ 303 $ 303 $ 221

Net income ......................................... 1,941 3,163 3,537
Less: Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interests ..................... 1 1

Net income attributable to
Deere & Company ............................. $ 1,940 $ 3,162 $ 3,537

* Operating profit of the financial services business segment includes the
effect of its interest expense and foreign exchange gains or losses.
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The company views and has historically disclosed its 29. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
operations as consisting of two geographic areas, the U.S. and Common stock per share sales prices from New York Stock
Canada, and outside the U.S. and Canada, shown below in Exchange composite transactions quotations follow:
millions of dollars. No individual foreign country’s net sales and

First Second Third Fourthrevenues were material for disclosure purposes.
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS 2015 2014 2013
2015 Market price

Net sales and revenues High ......................................... $ 90.85 $ 92.75 $ 97.33 $ 97.14
Unaffiliated customers: Low.......................................... $ 84.55 $ 86.64 $ 88.98 $ 72.89

U.S. and Canada: 2014 Market price
Equipment operations High ......................................... $ 91.33 $ 93.89 $ 94.53 $ 87.16

net sales (87%)* .......................... $ 16,498 $ 20,171 $ 21,821 Low.......................................... $ 81.50 $ 84.05 $ 85.11 $ 80.01
Financial services revenues (78%)* ...... 2,252 2,220 2,031

At October 31, 2015, there were 23,415 holders of recordTotal......................................... 18,750 22,391 23,852
of the company’s $1 par value common stock.

Outside U.S. and Canada:
Quarterly information with respect to net sales andEquipment operations net sales ......... 9,277 12,790 13,177

revenues and earnings is shown in the following schedule. TheFinancial services revenues ............... 339 357 318
company’s fiscal year ends in October and its interim periodsTotal......................................... 9,616 13,147 13,495
(quarters) end in January, April and July. Such information is

Other revenues ..................................... 497 529 448 shown in millions of dollars except for per share amounts.
Total ................................................... $ 28,863 $ 36,067 $ 37,795

First Second Third Fourth
* The percentages indicate the approximate proportion of each amount that Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

relates to the U.S. only and are based upon a three-year average for 2015,
2014 and 2013. 2015

Net sales and revenues ................ $ 6,383 $ 8,171 $ 7,594 $ 6,715
Operating profit Net sales ................................... 5,605 7,399 6,839 5,932

U.S. and Canada: Gross profit ............................... 1,184 1,704 1,482 1,262
Equipment operations ..................... $ 1,643 $ 3,311 $ 4,062 Income before income taxes .......... 568 1,017 738 457
Financial services ............................ 802 727 706 Net income attributable to

Deere & Company .................... 387 690 512 351Total......................................... 2,445 4,038 4,768
Per share data:

Outside U.S. and Canada: Basic ..................................... 1.13 2.05 1.54 1.09
Equipment operations ..................... 534 986 996 Diluted .................................. 1.12 2.03 1.53 1.08
Financial services ............................ 161 194 164 Dividends declared ................... .60 .60 .60 .60

Dividends paid ........................ .60 .60 .60 .60Total......................................... 695 1,180 1,160
2014*Total ................................................... $ 3,140 $ 5,218 $ 5,928
Net sales and revenues ................ $ 7,654 $ 9,948 $ 9,500 $ 8,965
Net sales ................................... 6,949 9,246 8,723 8,043

Property and equipment Gross profit ............................... 1,753 2,374 2,112 1,946
U.S. ................................................... $ 3,098 $ 3,154 $ 2,997 Income before income taxes .......... 965 1,464 1,292 1,076
Germany .............................................. 568 640 647 Net income attributable to
Other countries ..................................... 1,515 1,784 1,823 Deere & Company .................... 681 981 851 649

Per share data:Total ............................................... $ 5,181 $ 5,578 $ 5,467
Basic ..................................... 1.83 2.67 2.35 1.84
Diluted .................................. 1.81 2.65 2.33 1.83
Dividends declared ................... .51 .51 .60 .60
Dividends paid ........................ .51 .51 .51 .60

Net income per share for each quarter must be computed independently. As a
result, their sum may not equal the total net income per share for the year.
* See Note 5 for ‘‘Special Items.’’

30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
A quarterly dividend of $.60 per share was declared at the Board
of Directors meeting on December 2, 2015, payable on
February 1, 2016 to stockholders of record on December 31,
2015.
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31. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA

INCOME STATEMENT
For the Years Ended October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In millions of dollars)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Net Sales and Revenues
Net sales ................................................................................... $25,775.2 $32,960.6 $34,997.9
Finance and interest income .......................................................... 77.0 76.5 80.8 $ 2,557.0 $ 2,475.0 $ 2,280.5
Other income ............................................................................. 602.7 622.6 549.1 258.9 330.2 288.4

Total ..................................................................................... 26,454.9 33,659.7 35,627.8 2,815.9 2,805.2 2,568.9

Costs and Expenses
Cost of sales............................................................................... 20,145.2 24,777.8 25,668.8
Research and development expenses ............................................... 1,425.1 1,452.0 1,477.3
Selling, administrative and general expenses ..................................... 2,393.8 2,765.1 3,143.9 487.3 529.2 473.2
Interest expense.......................................................................... 272.8 289.4 297.1 455.0 430.9 487.6
Interest compensation to Financial Services ...................................... 204.8 212.1 202.7
Other operating expenses ............................................................. 195.0 285.4 223.7 911.7 925.6 739.0

Total ..................................................................................... 24,636.7 29,781.8 31,013.5 1,854.0 1,885.7 1,699.8

Income of Consolidated Group before Income Taxes ........................ 1,818.2 3,877.9 4,614.3 961.9 919.5 869.1
Provision for income taxes............................................................. 509.9 1,329.6 1,640.7 330.2 296.9 305.2

Income of Consolidated Group ..................................................... 1,308.3 2,548.3 2,973.6 631.7 622.6 563.9

Equity in Income (Loss) of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates
Financial Services ..................................................................... 632.9 624.5 565.0 1.2 1.9 1.1
Other .................................................................................... (.3) (9.5) (1.0)

Total .................................................................................. 632.6 615.0 564.0 1.2 1.9 1.1

Net Income ............................................................................... 1,940.9 3,163.3 3,537.6 632.9 624.5 565.0

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests..................... .9 1.6 .3

Net Income Attributable to Deere & Company ................................ $ 1,940.0 $ 3,161.7 $ 3,537.3 $ 632.9 $ 624.5 $ 565.0

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ reflect the basis of consolidation described in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated group data in the ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ income statement reflect the results of the agriculture and turf
operations and construction and forestry operations. Transactions between the ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ and ‘‘Financial Services’’ have been eliminated to arrive at
the consolidated financial statements.
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31. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA (continued)

BALANCE SHEET
As of October 31, 2015 and 2014
(In millions of dollars except per share amounts)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES
2015 2014 2015 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................................ $ 2,900.0 $ 2,569.2 $ 1,262.2 $ 1,217.8
Marketable securities .................................................................................. 47.7 700.4 389.7 514.7
Receivables from unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ................................. 2,428.7 3,663.9
Trade accounts and notes receivable – net....................................................... 485.2 706.0 3,553.1 3,554.4
Financing receivables – net ........................................................................... .9 18.5 24,808.1 27,403.7
Financing receivables securitized – net ............................................................ 4,834.6 4,602.3
Other receivables........................................................................................ 849.5 848.0 152.9 659.0
Equipment on operating leases – net .............................................................. 4,970.4 4,015.5
Inventories ................................................................................................ 3,817.0 4,209.7
Property and equipment – net....................................................................... 5,126.2 5,522.5 55.3 55.3
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates .................................... 4,817.6 5,106.5 10.5 10.9
Goodwill ................................................................................................... 726.0 791.2
Other intangible assets – net ........................................................................ 63.6 64.8 4.0
Retirement benefits .................................................................................... 211.9 263.5 25.0 32.9
Deferred income taxes ................................................................................. 3,092.0 2,981.9 67.9 64.9
Other assets .............................................................................................. 807.3 850.6 779.1 648.2

Total Assets.............................................................................................. $ 25,373.6 $ 28,296.7 $ 40,908.8 $ 42,783.6

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings ................................................................................ $ 464.3 $ 434.1 $ 7,962.3 $ 7,585.1
Short-term securitization borrowings .............................................................. 4,590.0 4,558.5
Payables to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ........................................ 80.6 101.0 2,395.4 3,633.7
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.......................................................... 6,801.2 7,518.4 1,511.2 2,027.0
Deferred income taxes ................................................................................. 86.8 87.1 466.6 344.1
Long-term borrowings ................................................................................. 4,460.6 4,642.5 19,372.2 19,738.2
Retirement benefits and other liabilities .......................................................... 6,722.5 6,448.1 86.4 82.8

Total liabilities ................................................................................. 18,616.0 19,231.2 36,384.1 37,969.4

Commitments and contingencies (Note 22)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value (authorized – 1,200,000,000 shares;

issued – 536,431,204 shares in 2015 and 2014), at paid-in amount .................. 3,825.6 3,675.4 2,050.8 2,023.1
Common stock in treasury, 219,743,893 shares in 2015

and 190,926,805 shares in 2014, at cost ..................................................... (15,497.6) (12,834.2)
Retained earnings....................................................................................... 23,144.8 22,004.4 2,764.8 2,811.8
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ............................................... (4,729.4) (3,783.0) (290.9) (20.7)

Total Deere & Company stockholders’ equity .................................................... 6,743.4 9,062.6 4,524.7 4,814.2
Noncontrolling interests............................................................................... 14.2 2.9

Total stockholders’ equity ......................................................................... 6,757.6 9,065.5 4,524.7 4,814.2

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ...................................................... $ 25,373.6 $ 28,296.7 $ 40,908.8 $ 42,783.6

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ reflect the basis of consolidation described in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements. Transactions between the ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ and ‘‘Financial Services’’ have been eliminated to arrive at the
consolidated financial statements.
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31. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA (continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(In millions of dollars)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income.............................................................................. $ 1,940.9 $ 3,163.3 $ 3,537.6 $ 632.9 $ 624.5 $ 565.0
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Provision for credit losses ....................................................... 5.5 2.9 10.8 49.9 35.2 9.7
Provision for depreciation and amortization ................................ 791.8 795.7 733.0 688.5 574.9 492.2
Impairment charges ............................................................... 15.3 95.9 102.0 19.5
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries

 and affiliates .................................................................... 46.6 (463.4) (369.0) (1.0) (1.7) (.9)
Provision (credit) for deferred income taxes ................................ (139.8) (236.4) (204.6) 121.4 (43.7) 32.0
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables ............................................................... 113.4 231.5 26.1
Insurance receivables .......................................................... 333.4 (149.9) 263.4
Inventories........................................................................ (17.0) 496.2 (69.6)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ................................. (253.8) (277.0) 470.5 (245.4) 263.3 (207.9)
Accrued income taxes payable/receivable ................................ (133.0) 330.5 84.2 (4.6) 12.1 (3.8)
Retirement benefits ............................................................ 414.3 323.0 241.6 13.2 13.9 20.4

Other .................................................................................. 271.1 70.0 106.0 (25.7) (7.7) 73.5

Net cash provided by operating activities ............................. 3,055.3 4,532.2 4,668.6 1,582.1 1,320.9 1,243.6

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Collections of receivables (excluding trade and wholesale) ................. 16,266.1 16,772.0 15,440.0
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities .............. 700.1 1,000.1 800.1 160.6 22.4 43.8
Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases ..................... 1,049.4 1,091.5 936.7
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash sold ......................... 345.8 22.0 149.2
Cost of receivables acquired (excluding trade and wholesale) ............. (16,327.8) (19,015.3) (18,792.7)
Purchases of marketable securities ............................................... (60.0) (504.1) (911.1) (94.9) (110.5) (115.2)
Purchases of property and equipment ........................................... (688.1) (1,045.2) (1,155.2) (5.9) (3.1) (3.2)
Cost of equipment on operating leases acquired ............................. (3,043.6) (2,684.2) (2,107.2)
Increase in investment in Financial Services .................................... (27.4) (66.8) (121.6)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired ............................. (83.5)
Decrease (increase) in trade and wholesale receivables ..................... 657.0 (782.0) (1,152.7)
Other ..................................................................................... 6.8 (98.6) (120.0) (45.1) (47.1) (94.5)

Net cash used for investing activities .................................. (68.6) (368.8) (1,569.3) (1,235.0) (4,756.3) (5,845.0)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in total short-term borrowings........................... 211.9 (65.8) 36.0 289.7 155.0 2,713.5
Change in intercompany receivables/payables ................................. 928.6 (367.5) (2,007.2) (928.6) 367.5 2,007.2
Proceeds from long-term borrowings ............................................ 6.2 60.7 282.9 5,704.8 8,171.3 4,451.1
Payments of long-term borrowings............................................... (214.2) (819.1) (191.0) (4,649.0) (4,390.0) (4,767.4)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock...................................... 172.1 149.5 174.5
Repurchases of common stock .................................................... (2,770.7) (2,731.1) (1,531.4)
Capital investment from Equipment Operations............................... 27.4 66.8 121.6
Dividends paid ......................................................................... (816.3) (786.0) (752.9) (679.6) (150.0) (186.0)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation ........................ 18.5 30.8 50.7
Other ..................................................................................... (45.4) (27.7) (40.1) (26.7) (35.9) (19.2)

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities ................ (2,509.3) (4,556.2) (3,978.5) (262.0) 4,184.7 4,320.8

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents ..... (146.6) (61.3) (5.4) (40.7) (12.3) 17.1

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ................... 330.8 (454.1) (884.6) 44.4 737.0 (263.5)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year .......................... 2,569.2 3,023.3 3,907.9 1,217.8 480.8 744.3

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ................................... $ 2,900.0 $ 2,569.2 $ 3,023.3 $ 1,262.2 $ 1,217.8 $ 480.8

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ reflect the basis of consolidation described in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements. Transactions between the ‘‘Equipment Operations’’ and ‘‘Financial Services’’ have been eliminated to arrive at the
consolidated financial statements.
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Net Sales and Revenues (MM)

2013 2014 2015

$37,795 $36,067 $28,863

Shareholder Value Added* (SVA)  (MM) 

2013 2014 2015

$3,390 $2,694 $774

About the cover:
“Feet on the Ground” refers to John Deere’s drive for operational excellence and 
distinctive levels of quality in all products, including the new 9620RX 4-track 
tractor shown. “Eyes on the Horizon” means looking ahead and making the investments 
necessary to help meet the world’s growing need for food, shelter, and infrastructure.

Dividends Declared (U.S. dollars per share)

Worldwide net sales and 
revenues decreased 20% in 
2015 vs. 2014 mainly due 
to lower equipment sales. 
Financial Services revenues 
rose to $2.59 billion.

use of assets and the skillful 
execution of business plans, 
yielded another year of positive 
SVA performance. SVA represents 

charge for capital.

Deere has boosted its quarterly dividend rate 12 times 
since 2004, to the current level of 60 cents per share. 
Over this time, the company returned roughly 65% 

through dividends and net share repurchases.

2013

$1.99

Net Income* (MM)

2013 2014 2015

$3,537 $3,162 $1,940

* Net income attributable to Deere & Company.

Net income was down 
39% to $1.94 billion 
but still represented 
the sixth-highest total 
in company history. 

2015

$2.40

2014

$2.22

Capital Expenditures + Research & Development (MM)

Combined R&D expense and capital expenditures totaled 
$2.1 billion, demonstrating Deere’s commitment to advanced 

capacity. The lower level of capital spending follows several 
years of heavy investment in global production capacity 
and cleaner-burning engines. 

R&D Spending

2013 2014 2015

$2,609 $2,456 $2,080

$1,425

$655 Capital Expenditures

$1,477

$1,132

$1,452

$1,004

2015 IN REVIEW
DEERE & COMPANY
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Net sales and revenues................................. $28,863 $36,067 $37,795 $36,157 $32,013 $26,005 $23,112 $28,438 $24,082 $22,148
Net sales ................................................... 25,775 32,961 34,998 33,501 29,466 23,573 20,756 25,803 21,489 19,884
Finance and interest income .......................... 2,381 2,282 2,115 1,981 1,923 1,825 1,842 2,068 2,055 1,777
Research and development expenses ............... 1,425 1,452 1,477 1,434 1,226 1,052 977 943 817 726
Selling, administrative and general expenses ..... 2,873 3,284 3,606 3,417 3,169 2,969 2,781 2,960 2,621 2,324
Interest expense.......................................... 680 664 741 783 759 811 1,042 1,137 1,151 1,018
Income from continuing operations* ............... 1,940 3,162 3,537 3,065 2,800 1,865 873 2,053 1,822 1,453
Net income* .............................................. 1,940 3,162 3,537 3,065 2,800 1,865 873 2,053 1,822 1,694
Return on net sales ..................................... 7.5% 9.6% 10.1% 9.1% 9.5% 7.9% 4.2% 8.0% 8.5% 8.5%
Return on beginning Deere & Company

stockholders’ equity ................................. 21.4% 30.8% 51.7% 45.1% 44.5% 38.7% 13.4% 28.7% 24.3% 24.7%
Comprehensive income (loss)*........................ 994 2,072 5,416 2,171 2,502 2,079 (1,333) 1,303 2,201 1,795

Income per share from
continuing operations – basic* ................... $ 5.81 $ 8.71 $ 9.18 $ 7.72 $ 6.71 $ 4.40 $ 2.07 $ 4.76 $ 4.05 $ 3.11

 – diluted*................. 5.77 8.63 9.09 7.63 6.63 4.35 2.06 4.70 4.00 3.08
Net income per share – basic* ....................... 5.81 8.71 9.18 7.72 6.71 4.40 2.07 4.76 4.05 3.63

 – diluted*..................... 5.77 8.63 9.09 7.63 6.63 4.35 2.06 4.70 4.00 3.59
Dividends declared per share ......................... 2.40 2.22 1.99 1.79 1.52 1.16 1.12 1.06 .91 .78
Dividends paid per share ............................... 2.40 2.13 1.94 1.74 1.41 1.14 1.12 1.03 .851⁄2 .74
Average number of common

shares outstanding (in millions) – basic......... 333.6 363.0 385.3 397.1 417.4 424.0 422.8 431.1 449.3 466.8
 – diluted ...... 336.0 366.1 389.2 401.5 422.4 428.6 424.4 436.3 455.0 471.6

Total assets................................................ $57,948 $61,336 $59,521 $56,266 $48,207 $43,267 $41,133 $38,735 $38,576 $34,720
Trade accounts and notes receivable – net ....... 3,051 3,278 3,758 3,799 3,295 3,464 2,617 3,235 3,055 3,038
Financing receivables – net............................ 24,809 27,422 25,633 22,159 19,924 17,682 15,255 16,017 15,631 14,004
Financing receivables securitized – net............. 4,835 4,602 4,153 3,618 2,905 2,238 3,108 1,645 2,289 2,371
Equipment on operating leases – net............... 4,970 4,016 3,152 2,528 2,150 1,936 1,733 1,639 1,705 1,494
Inventories................................................. 3,817 4,210 4,935 5,170 4,371 3,063 2,397 3,042 2,337 1,957
Property and equipment – net ....................... 5,181 5,578 5,467 5,012 4,352 3,791 4,532 4,128 3,534 2,764
Short-term borrowings:

Equipment operations............................... 465 434 1,080 425 528 85 490 218 130 282
Financial services ..................................... 7,962 7,585 7,709 5,968 6,324 5,241 3,537 6,621 7,495 5,436

Total.................................................. 8,427 8,019 8,789 6,393 6,852 5,326 4,027 6,839 7,625 5,718
Short-term securitization borrowings:

Financial services ..................................... 4,590 4,559 4,109 3,575 2,777 2,209 3,132 1,682 2,344 2,403
Long-term borrowings:

Equipment operations............................... 4,461 4,643 4,871 5,445 3,167 3,329 3,073 1,992 1,973 1,969
Financial services ..................................... 19,372 19,738 16,707 17,008 13,793 13,486 14,319 11,907 9,825 9,615

Total.................................................. 23,833 24,381 21,578 22,453 16,960 16,815 17,392 13,899 11,798 11,584
Total Deere & Company stockholders’ equity ..... 6,743 9,063 10,266 6,842 6,800 6,290 4,819 6,533 7,156 7,491

Book value per share* .................................. $ 21.29 $ 26.23 $ 27.46 $ 17.64 $ 16.75 $ 14.90 $ 11.39 $ 15.47 $ 16.28 $ 16.48
Capital expenditures .................................... $ 655 $ 1,004 $ 1,132 $ 1,360 $ 1,050 $ 795 $ 767 $ 1,117 $ 1,025 $ 774
Number of employees (at year end) ................. 57,180 59,623 67,044 66,859 61,278 55,650 51,262 56,653 52,022 46,549

* Attributable to Deere & Company.
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